
October 12, 2023

M E E T I N G   N O T I C E 

SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

Members of the Board Audit Committee: 
District 2 Director Barbara F. Keegan, Committee Chairperson
District 4 Director Jim Beall, Committee Vice Chairperson
District 3 Director Richard P. Santos, Committee Member

Staff Support of the Board Audit Committee: 
Rick Callender, Esq., Chief Executive Officer
Carlos Orellana, District Counsel
Michele King, Clerk of the Board
Melanie Richardson, Assistant Chief Executive Officer 
Tina Yoke, Chief Operating Officer
Darin Taylor, Chief Financial Officer
Rachael Gibson, Chief of External Affairs
Rechelle Blank, Chief Operating Officer
Chris Hakes, Chief Operating Officer
Aaron Baker, Chief Operating Officer
Brian Hopper, Sr. Assistant District Counsel 
Leslie Orta, Sr. Assistant District Counsel
Joseph Aranda, Assistant District Counsel
Rita Chan, Sr. Assistant District Counsel
Andrew Gschwind, Assistant District Counsel 
Cecil Lawson, Deputy Administrative Officer
Marta Lugo, Deputy Administrative Officer
Tony Ndah, Deputy Administrative Officer 
Emmanuel Aryee, Deputy Operating Officer     
Bhavani Yerrapotu, Deputy Operating Officer 
Alexander Gordon, Assistant Officer
Anthony Mendiola, Program Administrator
Manpreet Sra, Management Analyst
George Skiles, Partner, Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting

A Santa Clara Valley Water District regular Board Audit Committee Meeting has been scheduled 
to occur at 2:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 18, 2023 in the Headquarters Building Boardroom 
located at the Santa Clara Valley Water District, 5700 Almaden Expressway, San Jose.

Members of the public may join the meeting via Zoom Teleconference at: 
https://valleywater.zoom.us/j/91608079873.

The meeting agenda and corresponding materials are located on our website:  
https://www.valleywater.org/how-we-operate/committees/board-committees. 

Santa Clara Valley Water District  |  5750 Almaden Expressway, San Jose, CA  95118-3686  |  (408) 265-2600  |  www.valleywater.org

Clean Water • Healthy Environment • Flood Protection

♺
1

https://valleywater.zoom.us/j/83937945203
https://www.valleywater.org/how-we-operate/committees/board-committees


2



BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Barbara F. Keegan, Chairperson - District 2 
Jim Beall, Vice Chairperson - District 4 
Richard P. Santos - District 3

DARIN TAYLOR

Committee Liaison

Nicole Merritt
Assistant Deputy Clerk II 
Office/Clerk of the Board 
(408) 630-3262 
nmerritt@valleywater.org

www.valleywater.org

District Mission: Provide Silicon Valley safe, clean water for a healthy life, environment and economy.

Note: The finalized Board Agenda, exception items and supplemental items will be posted prior to the meeting in accordance with the Brown Act.

All public records relating to an open session item on this agenda, which are not 

exempt from disclosure pursuant to the California Public Records Act, that are 

distributed to a majority of the legislative body, will be available to the public through 

the legislative body agenda web page at the same time that the public records are 

distributed or made available to the legislative body.  Santa Clara Valley Water 

District will make reasonable efforts to accommodate persons with disabilities wishing 

to participate in the legislative body’s meeting. Please advise the Clerk of the Board 

Office of any special needs by calling (408) 265-2600.

Santa Clara Valley Water District

Board Audit Committee Meeting

Headquarters Building Boardroom

5700 Almaden Expressway, San Jose, CA 95118

Join Zoom Meeting:  
https://valleywater.zoom.us/j/91608079873

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA

Wednesday, October 18, 2023

2:00 PM

3



Santa Clara Valley Water District 
Board Audit Committee 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

2:00 PMWednesday, October 18, 2023 Headquarters Building Boardroom 
5700 Almaden Expressway, 

San Jose, CA 95118
Join Zoom Meeting:  

https://valleywater.zoom.us/j/91608079873

***IMPORTANT NOTICES AND PARTICIPATION INSTRUCTIONS***

Santa Clara Valley Water District (Valley Water) Board of Directors/Board Committee 

meetings are held as a “hybrid” meetings, conducted in-person as well as by 

telecommunication, and is compliant with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act.

To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members 

of the public have an option to participate by teleconference/video conference or attend 

in-person.  To observe and participate in the meeting by teleconference/video conference, 

please see the meeting link located at the top of the agenda.  If attending in -person, you are 

required to comply with  Ordinance 22-03 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE SANTA CLARA 

VALLEY WATER DISTRICT SPECIFYING RULES OF DECORUM FOR PARTICIPATION 

I N  B O A R D  A N D  C O M M I T T E E  M E E T I N G S  l o c a t e d  a t 
https://s3.us-west-2.amazonaws.com/valleywater.org.if-us-west-2/f2-live/s3fs-public/Ord.pdf

In accordance with the requirements of Gov. Code Section 54954.3(a), members of the 

public wishing to address the Board/Committee during public comment or on any item 

listed on the agenda, may do so by filling out a Speaker Card and submitting it to the Clerk or 
using the “Raise Hand” tool located in the Zoom meeting application to identify yourself in order 
to speak,  at the time the item is called . Speakers will be acknowledged by the Board 

Chair in the order requests are received and granted speaking access to address the Board.

• Members of the Public may test their connection to Zoom Meetings at: 

https://zoom.us/test

• Members of the Public are encouraged to review our overview on joining Valley Water 

Board Meetings at:  https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TojJpYCxXm0

Valley Water, in complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 

requests individuals who require special accommodations to access and/or participate 

in Valley Water Board of Directors/Board Committee meetings to please contact the 

Clerk of the Board’s office at (408) 630-2711, at least 3 business days before the 

scheduled meeting to ensure that Valley Water may assist you.

This agenda has been prepared as required by the applicable laws of the State of

California, including but not limited to, Government Code Sections 54950 et. seq. and has not
October 18, 2023 Page 1 of 4  

4



been prepared with a view to informing an investment decision in any of Valley Water ’s 

bonds, notes or other obligations.  Any projections, plans or other forward-looking 

statements included in the information in this agenda are subject to a variety of 

uncertainties that could cause any actual plans or results to differ materially from any such 

statement.  The information herein is not intended to be used by investors or potential 

investors in considering the purchase or sale of Valley Water ’s bonds, notes or other 

obligations and investors and potential investors should rely only on information filed by 

Valley Water on the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic Municipal Market 

Access System for municipal securities disclosures and Valley Water ’s Investor Relations 

website, maintained on the World Wide Web at https://emma.msrb.org/ and 

https://www.valleywater.org/how-we-operate/financebudget/investor-relations, respectively.

Under the Brown Act, members of the public are not required to provide identifying 

information in order to attend public meetings.  Through the link below, the Zoom webinar 

program requests entry of a name and email address, and Valley Water is unable to modify 

this requirement.  Members of the public not wishing to provide such identifying information 

are encouraged to enter “Anonymous” or some other reference under name and to enter a 

fictional email address (e.g., attendee@valleywater.org) in lieu of their actual address.  

Inputting such values will not impact your ability to access the meeting through Zoom.

Join Zoom Meeting:

https://valleywater.zoom.us/j/91608079873

Meeting ID: 916 0807 9873

Join by Phone:

1 (669) 900-9128, 91608079873#

CALL TO ORDER:1.

Roll Call.1.1.

TIME OPEN FOR PUBLIC COMMENT ON ANY ITEM NOT ON THE AGENDA.2.

Notice to the public: Members of the public who wish to address the Board/Committee

on any item not listed on the agenda may do so by filling out a Speaker Card and

submitting it to the Clerk or using the “Raise Hand” tool located in the Zoom meeting

application to identify yourself to speak.  Speakers will be acknowledged by the

Board/Committee Chair in the order requests are received and granted speaking

access to address the Board/Committee.  Speakers’ comments should be limited to

three minutes or as set by the Chair.  The law does not permit Board/Committee action

on, or extended discussion of, any item not on the agenda except under special

circumstances.  If Board/Committee action is requested, the matter may be placed on a

future agenda.  All comments that require a response will be referred to staff for a reply

in writing. The Board/Committee may take action on any item of business appearing on

the posted agenda.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:3.

October 18, 2023 Page 2 of 4  

5



3.1. 23-1036Approval of September 20, 2023 Board Audit Committee Minutes. 

Approve the minutes.Recommendation:

Candice Kwok-Smith, 408-630-3193Manager:

Attachment 1:  092023 BAC MinutesAttachments:

REGULAR AGENDA:4.

4.1. 23-1019Receive and Discuss the Draft Report on the Tri-Annual Risk Assessment

(CY 2023) from the Chief Audit Executive (CAE).

Receive and Discuss the Draft Report on the Tri-Annual Risk 

Assessment (CY 2023) from the CAE.

Recommendation:

Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068Manager:

Attachment 1:  2023 Risk Assessment Draft Report

Attachment 2:  PowerPoint

Attachments:

4.2. 23-1104Receive Information on Amendment No. 1 A4650A with Vasquez & 

Company LLP for performing the audit of the FY2022, FY2023, & FY2024 

financial statements (with option to extend two additional years), to 

increase the fee from $368,205 by $398,586 for a total revised 

Not-to-Exceed Fee of $766,791.

Recommendation:

Manager:

Receive information on Amendment No. 1 to Agreement No. 

A4650A with Vasquez & Company LLP for performing the audit 

of the FY2022, FY2023, & FY2024 financial statements (with 

option to extend two additional years), to increase the three-year 

agreement fee from $214,436 by $221,000 for a total revised 

Not-to-exceed Fee of $435,436. To increase the two-year option 

fee from $153,769 by $177,586 for a revised total fee of 

$331,355, increasing the total amount from $368,205 by 

$398,586 for a total revised Not-to-Exceed Fee of $766,791 for 

five years.  

Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068

Attachment A:  Gov. Code § 84308, Vasquez & Company LLP

Attachment 1:  Amendment No. 1 to Agreement A4650A

Attachments:

4.3. 23-0901Review and Discuss the 2023 Board Audit Committee (BAC) Work Plan. 

Review and discuss topics of interest raised at prior BAC 

meetings and make any necessary adjustments to the 2023 

BAC Work Plan.

Recommendation:

Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068Manager:

Attachment 1:  BAC Work PlanAttachments:

October 18, 2023 Page 3 of 4  

6

https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11095
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=652fee8a-7d68-423f-8c35-53dbc53f823b.pdf
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11078
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2517f781-5a55-4377-8ead-c8bfae0c5b69.pdf
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5cb642db-bf46-4012-a5ff-a59afa7e541f.pdf
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=11163
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d927db21-b96d-4845-905b-761f7b1a63b5.pdf
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2cb71e0d-5b24-41b7-9f9c-60dbda5600d4.pdf
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=10960
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3b702264-7a33-48bf-acc0-3c6df9e343c9.pdf


CLERK REVIEW AND CLARIFICATION OF COMMITTEE REQUESTS.5.

This is an opportunity for the Clerk to review and obtain clarification on any formally

moved, seconded, and approved requests and recommendations made by the

Committee during the meeting.

ADJOURN:6.

Adjourn to Regular Meeting at 2:00 p.m., on November 15, 2023.6.1.

October 18, 2023 Page 4 of 4  

7



8



Santa Clara Valley Water District

File No.: 23-1036 Agenda Date: 10/18/2023
Item No.: 3.1.

COMMITTEE AGENDA MEMORANDUM
Board Audit Committee

Government Code § 84308 Applies:  Yes ☐   No ☒
(If “YES” Complete Attachment A - Gov. Code § 84308)

SUBJECT: ..title

Approval of September 20, 2023 Board Audit Committee Minutes.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve the minutes.

SUMMARY:
In accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, a summary of Committee discussions, and details of all
actions taken by the Board Audit Committee, during all open and public Committee meetings, is
transcribed and submitted to the Committee for review and approval.

Upon Committee approval, minutes transcripts are finalized and entered into the Committee’s
historical records archives and serve as historical records of the Committee’s meetings.

ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE IMPACT:
There are no Environmental Justice impacts associated with this item.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1:  092023 BAC Minutes

UNCLASSIFIED MANAGER:
Candice Kwok-Smith, 408-630-3193

Santa Clara Valley Water District Printed on 10/12/2023Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™9

http://www.legistar.com/


10



BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 

   DRAFT MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING SESSION 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 20, 2023 
2:00 PM 

(Paragraph numbers coincide with agenda item numbers) 

1. CALL TO ORDER:

A regular meeting of the Santa Clara Valley Water District (Valley Water) Board
Audit Committee (Committee) was called to order in the Valley Water
Headquarters Building Boardroom at 5700 Almaden Expressway, San Jose,
California, and by Zoom teleconference, at 2:00 p.m.

1.1 Roll Call.

Committee members in attendance were District 3 Director Richard P. 
Santos, District 4 Director Jim Beall, Vice Chairperson, and District 2 
Director Barbara F. Keegan, Chairperson presiding, constituting a quorum 
of the Committee. 

Staff members in attendance were: Emmanuel Aryee, Salam Baqleh, Sarah 
Berning, Rick Callender, Jessica Collins, Enrique De Anda, Alicia 
Fraumeni, Walter Gonzalez, Andy Gschwind, Brian Hopper, Michele King, 
Candice Kwok-Smith, Cecil Lawson, Dave Leon, Janice Lum, Becky 
Manchester, Velia Mariscal, Patrice McElroy, Anthony Mendiola, Nicole 
Merritt, Carlos Orellana, Max Overland, Tony Ndah, My Nguyen, Luz 
Penilla, Alison Phagan, Mario Rivas, Michelle San Miguel, My Nguyen, 
Max Overland, Steve Peters, Michelle San Miguel, Diahann Soleno, 
Manpreet Sra, Charlene Sun, Darin Taylor, Cheryl Togami, Zuberi White, 
Kristen Yasukawa, and Tina Yoke. 

Public in attendance were: Valley Water Director Eisenberg, and 
George Skiles (Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting).  

2. TIME OPEN FOR PUBLIC COMMENT ON ANY ITEM NOT ON THE AGENDA:
Chairperson Keegan declared time open for public comment on any item not on
the agenda. There was no one who wished to speak.

10/12/2023

Attachment 1 
Page 1 of 411



3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

3.1. Approval of August 16, 2023 Board Audit Committee Meeting Minutes.

Recommendation: Approve the minutes. 

The Committee considered the attached minutes of the August 16, 
2023 Committee meeting. 

Public Comments: 
None. 

It was moved by Director Santos and seconded by Vice Chairperson 
Beall, and unanimously carried that the minutes be approved. 

4. REGULAR AGENDA:

4.1.    Receive an Update on the Status of the 2023 Risk Assessment.

Recommendation: Receive an update on the status of the on-going 2023 Risk 
     Assessment. 

George Skiles reviewed the information on this item, per the attached 
Committee Agenda Memo. 

     George Skiles, Darin Taylor, and Cecil Lawson were available to answer 
     questions. 

Public Comments: 
None. 

The Committee received the information, took no formal action, and noted 
the following: 

• The Committee noted this Item is progressing as planned and a risk
assessment draft report will be provided at the BAC October 2023
meeting; and Director Beall noted related upcoming legislation to
take effect in January 2024.

4.2.     Receive the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Fourth Quarter Financial Status Update 
  of June 30, 2023. 

Recommendation: Receive the fiscal year 2022-2023 fourth quarter financial 
     status update of June 30, 2023. 

Charlene Sun and Enrique De Anda reviewed the information on this 
item, per the attached Committee Agenda Memo, and the corresponding 
presentation materials contained in Attachment 1 were reviewed by staff 
as follows: Charlene Sun reviewed Slides 1 through 5 and Enrique De 
Anda reviewed Slides 6 through 9.  

10/12/2023

Attachment 1 
Page 2 of 412



Charlene Sun, Enrique De Anda, Darin Taylor, and George Skiles were 
available to answer questions. 

 Public Comments: 
None. 

The Committee received the information, took no formal action, and noted 
the following: 

• The Committee requested Legal to confirm the following:
a) if formal partnership language is included in state grant
applications
b) if obtaining a private partnership will trigger paying back state
grants funding
c) if noting a 35% public partnership participation assisted with
obtaining WIFIA loans

Legal will respond to the Committee’s above request via a confidential 
memo. 

4.3.     Receive and Discuss Audit Requirements Pertaining to Joint Powers 
   Authority (JPA) Agreements. 

 Recommendation: Receive and discuss audit requirements pertaining to JPA 
     Agreements. 

Brian Hopper reviewed the information on this item, per the attached 
Committee Agenda Memo. 

Brian Hopper, George Skiles, and Darin Taylor were available to answer 
questions. 

Public Comments: 
None. 

The Committee received the information, took no formal action, and noted 
the following: 

• The Committee confirmed interest in obtaining financial audit copies
from associated JPAs; and Chairperson Keegan will ask for Board
members to be polled regarding JPA issues.

• The Committee requested for this Item to return to a future BAC
meeting for further discussion and options for the possibility of
requesting Board approval to amend the BAC Charter to include
language for reviewing associated JPA financial audits.

10/12/2023

Attachment 1 
Page 3 of 413



4.4.     Review and Discuss the 2023 Board Audit Committee (BAC) Work Plan. 

Recommendation:  Receive and discuss topics of interest raised at prior 
BAC meetings and make any necessary adjustments 
to the 2023 BAC Work Plan. 

The Committee considered this Item without a staff presentation. 

Darin Taylor was available to answer questions. 

Public Comments: 
None. 

The Committee received the information, took no formal action, and noted 
no changes to the BAC Work Plan. 

4.5.    Receive Annual Audit Training from Board Independent Auditor. 

  Recommendation:   Receive Annual Audit Training from Board Independent 
  Auditor. 

George Skiles reviewed the information on this item, per the attached 
Committee Agenda Memo, and per the information contained in 
Attachment 1.  

George Skiles and Darin Taylor were available to answer questions. 

Director Santos left the meeting and did not return. 

Public Comments: 
None. 

The Committee received the information and took no formal action. 

5. CLERK REVIEW AND CLARIFICATION OF COMMITTEE REQUESTS:
This is an opportunity for the Clerk to review and obtain clarification on any formally moved, seconded, and
approved requests and recommendations made by the Committee during the meeting.

Nicole Merritt confirmed that no Items were approved for Board
consideration; but direction was given to staff to follow up on legal grant
questions under Item 4.2, and further discussion is needed for options
regarding financial audits for JPAs under Item 4.3.

6. Adjourn:

6.1. Adjourn to Regular Meeting at 2:00 p.m. on October 18, 2023.

  Chairperson Keegan adjourned the meeting at 4:21 p.m., to the 
  regular meeting at 2:00 p.m. on October 18, 2023. 

      Nicole Merritt 
 Date Approved:              Assistant Deputy Clerk II 

10/12/2023

Attachment 1 
Page 4 of 414



Santa Clara Valley Water District

File No.: 23-1019 Agenda Date: 10/18/2023
Item No.: 4.1.

COMMITTEE AGENDA MEMORANDUM
Board Audit Committee

Government Code § 84308 Applies:  Yes ☐   No ☒
(If “YES” Complete Attachment A - Gov. Code § 84308)

SUBJECT: ..title

Receive and Discuss the Draft Report on the Tri-Annual Risk Assessment (CY 2023) from the Chief
Audit Executive (CAE).

RECOMMENDATION:
Receive and Discuss the Draft Report on the Tri-Annual Risk Assessment (CY 2023) from the CAE.

SUMMARY:
At its January 20, 2023, meeting, the BAC authorized staff to inform the full Board of plans for the
Chief Audit Executive (CAE) to review the 2021 Risk Assessment Report and solicit feedback from
Board members prior to identifying potential audit topics for the 2023 calendar year. On February 15,
2023, the BAC requested the CAE to re-evaluate the 2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan, which was
based on the 2021 Risk Assessment Report, and to identify audit topics for consideration for the
2023 Annual Audit Work Plan.

Interviews with Board members occurred between March 20 and April 3, 2023. Based on this input, it
was evident that the 2022-2024 Annual Audit Work Plan did not fully reflect the priorities of the Board.
Much had changed in the two years since the risk assessment work was performed, including
organizational changes resulting from the pandemic, management initiatives, and changes in Board
composition.

Further, Section 7.4 of the BAC Charter the BAC shall endeavor to complete a Valley Water-wide risk
assessment, at a minimum, tri-annually.

Because of this, the CAE found that an update to the Risk Assessment, which provides the
foundation for the Annual Audit Work Plan, was warranted and recommended to the BAC that a Risk
Assessment be completed by Fall 2023 and that an updated Annual Audit Work Plan be submitted to
the Board prior to establishing the 2024 Annual Audit Plan.

On April 19, 2023, the BAC authorized the CAE to proceed with a new Risk Assessment, which was
subsequently reported to the full Board by the BAC Chairperson. On May 17, 2023, Valley Water

Santa Clara Valley Water District Printed on 10/12/2023Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™15

http://www.legistar.com/


File No.: 23-1019 Agenda Date: 10/18/2023
Item No.: 4.1.

management executed Task Order #2 (2023 Risk Assessment), providing the notice to proceed on
this engagement.

The purpose of this agenda item is to receive and discuss the draft 2023 risk assessment report.

ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE IMPACT:
There are no Environmental Justice impacts associated with this item.  This report is a tool used by
the BAC to determine which business areas could benefit from a focused analysis.  There are no
environmental impacts that result from this analysis.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1:  2023 Risk Assessment Draft Report
Attachment 2:  PowerPoint

UNCLASSIFIED MANAGER:
Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068

Santa Clara Valley Water District Printed on 10/12/2023Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™16

http://www.legistar.com/


455 Capitol Mall • Suite 700 • Sacramento, California • 95814 • Tel 916.443.1300 • www.secteam.com 

Santa Clara Valley Water District 

Independent Board Auditor 

Districtwide Risk Assessment – 2023 

DRAFT 

October 2023

Attachment 1 
Page 1 of 7317



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 1 

Table of Contents 

Introduction .................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Background ............................................................................................................................................... 2 

Risk Assessment Approach ...................................................................................................................... 4 

Department Risk Profiles ............................................................................................................................... 7 

Office of the Chief Executive Officer .......................................................................................................... 7 

Office of the Clerk of the Board ................................................................................................................. 9 

Office of District Counsel ......................................................................................................................... 13 

Administrative Services ........................................................................................................................... 17 

External Affairs ........................................................................................................................................ 29 

Office of Financial Planning and Management Services ......................................................................... 35 

Office of Integrated Water Management ................................................................................................. 42 

Risk Assessment Results ............................................................................................................................ 66 

Appendix A. Proposed Three-Year Audit Plan ............................................................................................. 68 

Attachment 1 
Page 2 of 7318



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 2 

Introduction 

The Santa Clara Valley Water District (Valley Water or District) asked Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting to 

conduct a districtwide risk assessment as part of a long-term internal audit planning process. A 

fundamental component of a successful internal audit function requires determining which departments, 

programs, or activities to audit—and allocating scarce audit resources in a way that adds the greatest value 

to the District. As such, the purpose of this project was to identify key organizational units, programs, or 

operations of Valley Water and to assess each in terms of the potential risk factors that could impede the 

effective delivery of services, reduce operational efficiency, or impair transparency and public 

accountability. As the relative magnitude and prevalence of potential risk factors associated with key 

programs increase, so too does the potential value a performance audit of the program will be to Valley 

Water. 

Background 

The Santa Clara Valley Water District (Valley Water) is Santa Clara County’s water resource management 

agency responsible for providing safe, clean water, flood protection, and stewardship of streams through its 

management of water treatment and distribution systems, construction and maintaining flood control 

channels, and overseeing water rate setting and conservation efforts. The mission of Valley Water is to 

provide safe, clean water for a healthy life, environment, and economy. 

Valley Water is led by a seven-member Board of Directors (Board), with each Board director representing 

one of seven equally-divided districts in the Silicon Valley. The Board is responsible for establishing policy, 

adopting resolutions, and establishing the directives, goals, and objectives that guide all the work of Valley 

Water employees—including the overall vision for the District. These are documented in three formal types 

of policies:  

• Board Governance Policies—policies which guide the practices of the Board itself.

• Executive Limitations Policies—policies which establish the responsibilities of the Chief Executive

Officer and delegations of authority.

• Ends Policies—policies that establish the goals and objectives that the Board has for the District,

and the ends toward which the Chief Executive Officer is charged to achieve.

Three District officers are appointed by and report directly to the Board: The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), 

District Counsel, and the Clerk of the Board. The Office of District Counsel serves as legal counsel to the 

Board and advises the Board and Valley Water management regarding all legal matters. The Clerk of the 

Board staffs all Board and committee meetings and serves as the District’s election official and the 

custodian of official records of the District. The CEO oversees all executive operations of Valley Water, 

including Integrated Water, which is managed by the Assistant Chief Executive Officer an includes the 

Water Utility and Watershed business areas, as well as several units that collectively support Valley 

Water’s capital infrastructure plan. In addition to Integrated Water. The CEO also oversees three critical 

departments: the Financial Planning and Management Services Department, Office of Administrative 

Services, and the Office of External Affairs. Valley Water’s organizational chart is depicted in Exhibit 1.  

Attachment 1 
Page 3 of 7319



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 3 

EXHIBIT 1. VALLEY WATER ORGANIZATION CHART 

 
Source: Official Valley Water Organization Charts 

As illustrated below, Valley Water’s Fiscal Year 2023-24 budgeted operating expenses totaled 

approximately $857 million,1 of which Integrated Water, Watershed, and Water Utility Enterprise business 

areas comprise roughly 80 percent of all District expenditures.  

EXHIBIT 2. ALLOCATED BUDGETED EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT 

 
Source: Fiscal Year 2023-24 & FY2024-25 Operating and Capital Rolling Biennial Budget 

 
1 Elsewhere in this report, we refer to approximately $981 million in budget appropriations. The difference between Valley 
Water’s total $857 million budget and individual department appropriations of $981 million, which includes intra-district 
reimbursements of $124.9 million, and these net to total operating and capital outlays of $856.6 million 

Attachment 1 
Page 4 of 7320



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 4 

Risk Assessment Approach 

The Charter of the Board Audit Committee (BAC) states that the BAC shall endeavor to complete a Valley 

Water-wide risk assessment, at a minimum, tri-annually, and that the full Board shall approve an annual 

audit plan. Audit standards issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors require that the chief audit executive 

establish a risk-based plan to determine the priorities of the management audit activity, and that the plan be 

consistent with the organization’s goals. The purpose of a risk assessment is to help ensure that limited 

audit resources are deployed in a manner that fulfills the purpose of Valley Water by identifying inherent 

risks to the successful execution of district operations, programs, and services; and differentiating between 

all the potential risks and areas of interest and prioritizing them based on the potential value that the audit 

may provide to Valley Water. This process is intended to facilitate a deliberative approach to directing 

limited audit resources and to inform management of potential areas of risk for which it may wish to take 

action; it is not intended to provide specific conclusions regarding an organization’s operations or programs, 

or to present specific recommendations for improvement.  

To fulfill the strategic purpose of a districtwide risk assessment, our team interviewed nearly 30 District 

officers and managers to gather information about Valley Water operations, programs, and functions; to 

identify potential and inherent risks to the achievement of the missions, objectives, and goals of each; and 

to discuss current initiatives and activities of the departments. We also obtained and evaluated current and 

historical background information for each office, department, and program, including information available 

through Valley Water’s website, program descriptions, budget documentation, strategic plans and annual 

reports, policies and procedures, and other relevant documentation, etc. In doing so, we identified the audit 

universe and auditable units, including District departments and the defined programs, services, and 

functions carried out by each department, and identified the sources and types of risks associated with the 

missions, objectives, and goals of each.  

Some information was obtained directly from objective reporting of past and current performance. This 

includes the relative size of one department’s budget or workforce in relation to other departments, one 

department’s financial exposure resulting from claims filed as compared to other departments, the number 

of contracts or capital projects managed by one department as compared to others, as well as key 

performance indicators and departmental performance reports. Other information was obtained through 

subjective analyses of current issues and trends affecting each department. This includes understanding 

and assessing public concern related to certain programs, services, or functions of District government; 

determining the extent to which certain problems are already known, such as through the press or 

previously completed audits or studies; or the extent to which previously manual activities have been 

automated. Both subjective and objective risk categories drive the ultimate calculated risk score for each 

department and program area, and the relative risk associated with each when compared to other Valley 

Water departments or program areas. Exhibit 3 illustrates the types of risk factors considered as part of this 

risk assessment.  

Attachment 1 
Page 5 of 7321



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 5 

EXHIBIT 3. RISK SOURCES & TYPES RELATED TO THE ADMINISTRATION OF DISTRICT DEPARTMENTS AND PROGRAMS 

 

Based on information provided and auditor judgement, we assessed each 

organizational unit and program in terms of the potential risks that could impede 

effective delivery of services, reduce operational efficiency, or impair 

transparency and public accountability. In doing so, we prepared “risk profiles” 

for each department, which include an organizational chart for each department 

that reflects the functional responsibilities of each department, division, unit, and 

program. The structure of the appropriate department will be displayed in an 

organizational chart reflecting the legend on the right. The risk profiles also 

include general indicators of the size of the division, a description of the core 

functions of the division and inherent risks and general concerns associated with 

the division’s operations. In short, inherent risks are factors that may impede the 

ability of the division to achieve, in an effective or efficient manner, its core 

functions.  

While this report presents risk ratings for key departments, divisions, and programs, it is important to note 

that a high-risk score is not indicative of poor performance, lacking internal controls, or bad business 

practices. Rather, risk scores indicate the extent to which key programmatic or operational areas within 

District departments present sufficient inherent risks to warrant audit resources, and the extent to which we 

believe a performance audit of that area will yield value to Valley Water.  

To illustrate our assessment of risk associated with the auditable units within each department as 

compared to each other and to other divisions throughout Valley Water, we include in each department 

profile a heat map similar to that shown in Exhibit 4. This is meant to illustrate the extent to which, or 

Attachment 1 
Page 6 of 7322



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 6 

likelihood that, inherent risks associated with core District functions warrant audit resources and the 

potential impact that such an audit could have in assisting Valley Water to address current and emerging 

challenges—that is, the relative value of spending audit resources in one business area of the District 

versus another area.  

EXHIBIT 4. SAMPLE HEAT MAP 

Based on our assessment of risk, we present numerous audit topics related to each division and/or 

program. A larger audit could include each of these as a specific audit objective; smaller audits could 

address just one or two of the topics listed in each profile. 

This approach is designed to provide Valley Water with information necessary to develop an audit plan that 

focuses on those areas within District government that are most likely to benefit from a performance audit. 

It is also designed to present the rationale behind our risk ratings to the BAC, and to facilitate an open and 

deliberative forum to discuss audit priorities and to determine the focus of limited audit resources. 

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

1 2 3 4 5

L
ik

el
ih

o
o

d

Impact

Attachment 1 
Page 7 of 7323



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 7 

Department Risk Profiles 

This section presents background information and risk profiles for each of Valley Water’s key departments, 

including offices reporting directly to the Board of Directors—the Chief Executive Officer, District Counsel, 

and Clerk of the Board—as well as the departments reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer: 

Administrative Services, External Affairs, Financial Planning and Management Services, and Integrated 

Water. Each profile includes a discussion of a Valley Water department; background information, core 

functions, key statistics and characteristics, inherent risks, and challenges associated with each; and 

potential audit topics designed to address those areas where internal audit resources could prove most 

valuable. 

Office of the Chief Executive Officer 

With a Fiscal Year 2023-24 budget of 

approximately $1.5 million and a staff of 3 FTE 

positions, the Office of the CEO represents 

less than one (1) percent of the District's 

overall budget. The Office of the CEO is 

responsible for all operations of the District, 

carrying out policies and direction of the Board, 

making recommendations to the Board on a 

variety of issues, appointing and supervising 

subordinate officers of the District, ensuring 

compliance with Board policies, being 

responsive and available to the community, 

and achieving Valley Water’s objectives, goals, 

and mission. The Assistant Chief Executive 

Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 

Operating Officer of External affairs, and Chief 

Operating Officer of Administration all report directly to the CEO.  

The Office of the CEO provides strategic direction and supervision to guide the organization in fulfilling 

Valley Water's mission, achieve the Board’s Ends Policies, support the Board of Directors, and comply with 

the Board’s Executive Limitations Policies. During Fiscal Year 2023, the Office of the CEO reported 

achieving several notable accomplishments, including continuing to lead the Valley Water throughout the 

ongoing drought and the COVID-19 pandemic; prioritizing investments in critical infrastructure and the 

safety of Valley Water staff; and delivering safe, clean, and reliable water to Santa Clara County. Exhibit 5 

illustrates the distribution of the CEO’s direct reports. 

  

Attachment 1 
Page 8 of 7324



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 8 

EXHIBIT 5. OFFICE OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE  

 

Source: Fiscal Year 2023-24 & FY2024-25 Operating and Capital Rolling Biennial Budget 

Risk Analysis 

The Office of the CEO, on its own, has a relatively low budget and FTE allocation when compared to other 

organizational units. However, its role in implementing Board policy and strategic initiatives, developing 

budgets, monitoring resource allocation, and framing and messaging District priorities and communications 

place the Office in a position of strategic importance and high public visibility. The CEO's role is 

multifaceted, as they must balance the District's Ends Policies to serve the needs of Santa Clara County 

while adhering to executive limitations that set specific boundaries on the Office’s authority. Following is an 

evaluation of key functions or programs within the Office, along with a description of responsibilities, 

budget, FTEs, and inherent risks. 

Risk Summary 

The operational responsibilities of the Office of the CEO are typically addressed by performance auditors 

by focusing on specific programs under the purview of the CEO, such as programs administered by 

Office of the Chief Executive Officer 
The CEO is responsible for the success of Valley Water. This includes 
successfully providing safe, clean water for a healthy life, environment, 
and economy. It also includes doing so in a manner that is responsible, 
sustainable, and alignment with Board policies. The CEO employs 
experts to directly manage distinct business areas within the District, 
including Finance, Administration, External Affairs, and the core 
operations of the District: Integrated Water Management, including 
Water Utility Enterprises and Watersheds. This encompasses supply 
management, flood protection, environmental stewardship, and more, 
all aimed at serving Santa Clara County's 1.9 million residents as well 
as a significant and diverse business community. The CEO 
coordinates the flow of information between management, the Board, 
and various committees, and provides administrative and logistical 
support to the Board.  

Budget: $1,579,221 FTE: 3 

Inherent Risks: As the leader of Valley Water, the 
greatest risk facing the CEO relates to the 
successful delivery of safe, clean water, consistent 
with the mission of Valley Water. From the 
perspective of the Board, however, the question is 
not limited to whether the CEO achieves this 
mission, but it is also essential that the CEO so in a 
manner compliant with established policies—both 
Ends Policies and Executive Limitations. This 
requires transparency in management reporting, 
goal-driven performance measurement and 
evaluation, and assurances of compliance with 
Executive Limitations Policies.  

Attachment 1 
Page 9 of 7325



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 9 

Finance, Administration, External Affairs, Integrated Water Management, Water Utility, or Watersheds. The 

Officers overseeing each major program area would address potential audit findings, recommendations, 

and corrective action.  

There are certain performance audits, however, that go beyond the purview of any particular departmental 

officer or manager, and those pertain primarily to matters of governance: reporting to the Board of 

Directors; establishing policies and procedures; establishing a sound tone-at-the-top that focuses on the 

importance of achieving goals and the organizational mission while also emphasizing the importance of 

internal control, transparency, and accountability; establishing and monitoring systems of performance 

measurement and evaluation; and ensuring compliance with Board policies and other legal or regulatory 

requirements.  

Based on this assessment, there are two audit topics that ranked the highest and warrant consideration for 

future audit planning. These include: 

1) The District’s overall approach to performance measurement, the purpose of which would be to

identify ways to build upon exiting performance metrics in a manner that provides the Board

reasonable assurances that metrics exist to evaluate progress to achieving Ends Policies, as well

as to evaluate the overall efficiency and effectiveness of Valley Water operations.

2) The Districts overall compliance with Board policies, including Board Governance Policies, Ends

Policies, and Executive Limitations Policies.

Office of the Clerk of the Board 

With an approximate Fiscal Year 2023-24 

budget of $5.6 million—representing 0.6 

percent of the District’s overall budget—and 15 

FTE positions, the Office of the Clerk of the 

Board supports the Board of Directors and 

serves the public by providing records 

maintenance and management services, 

staffing Board and committee meetings, 

serving as Valley Water’s election official, and 

overseeing the Records & Library Services 

Unit. These services include directly supporting 

the work of the Valley Water Board of 

Directors; preparation, posting and 

maintenance of agendas, minutes, ordinances, 

resolutions and contracts of the Board of Directors; coordinating advertisement of legal notices; maintaining 

and updating Board resolutions and policies (including Board Governance Policies, Ends Policies, and 

Executive Limitations Policies); managing and publishing Board and committee agendas and minutes in 

accordance with the Brown Act; receiving official records; responding to public records requests in a timely 

manner, and ensuring compliance with the Public Records Act; coordinating with the County of Santa Clara 

Attachment 1 
Page 10 of 7326



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 10 

on all matters related to elections; and monitoring the Board budget and Board members’ expenses in 

accordance with District Ordinance 02-01, Resolution 11-73, Board Governance Policy GP-10.  

In Fiscal Year 2023, the Office of the Clerk of the Board cites various accomplishments, including having 

successfully managed over 33 Regular Board Meetings and over 100 Board Committee Meetings in 

accordance with the District Act, Board Policies, and the Brown Act; successfully scheduled over 1,000 

meetings for individual Directors; and tracked, monitored, and reported on the registration of external 

lobbyists in accordance with Ordinance 10-01. 

The Office of the Clerk of the Board is organized into two units: the Clerk of the Board and the Records & 

Library Services. Exhibit 6 below is a breakdown of each division’s budgeted expenses for Fiscal Year 

2023-24.  

EXHIBIT 6. BUDGET BREAKDOWN BY DEPARTMENT  

 

Source: FY 2022-23 & Fiscal Year 2023-24 Operating and Capital Rolling Biennial Budget 

The Office of the Clerk of the Board allocates functional responsibilities to each of the two units as depicted 

in Exhibit 7 below. 

EXHIBIT 7. OFFICE OF THE CLERK OF THE BOARD DIVISION ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE  

 

Source: Fiscal Year 2023-24 & FY2024-25 Operating and Capital Rolling Biennial Budget 

Attachment 1 
Page 11 of 7327



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 11 

Risk Analysis 

The Office of the Clerk of the Board plays a pivotal role in Valley Water's governance, but it faces inherent 

risks that require careful management. Chief among these risks is the potential for improper documentation 

and minute-taking during Board meetings, which could compromise transparency and governance 

procedures. The evolving landscape of governance procedures necessitates continuous compliance 

efforts. Efficient management of a large volume of documents, including publicly recorded ones, is essential 

to prevent delays and resource misallocation. 

Moreover, tracking lobbying activities demands vigilance to ensure compliance and accurate reporting. 

Lastly, the office must balance its involvement in policy reviews and maintain a high-level perspective to 

mitigate risks related to inefficiency or insufficient support of core operations. To successfully navigate 

these challenges, the Clerk of the Board should maintain meticulous record-keeping, stay current with 

governance procedures, and continually evaluate and optimize their operations while upholding the 

transparency and integrity of Valley Water's governance processes. Following is an evaluation of key 

functions or programs within the Office, along with a description of responsibilities, budget, FTEs, and 

inherent risks. 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK OF THE BOARD 

The Office of the Clerk of the Board oversees the Records & Library 

Services Unit as well as completing work regarding coordinating 

information between the Board Committees and the Board, and 

Committee Oversight Manager; providing administrative and logistical 

support to the Board committees; managing Board committee 

membership; ensuring agenda and meetings are in compliance with the 

Brown Act; coordinating, posting and distributing Board committee and 

Board agenda items; supporting and assisting Board committee chairs 

during meetings; managing Board committee work plans; tracking and 

managing Board committee attendance; managing historical records of 

Board committees; keeping accurate records of the proceedings of the 

Board and all committees; keeping a record of all Board resolutions and 

actions of the Board of Directors in such manner that the information 

contained therein will be readily accessible to the public; and managing 

Board committee web pages. 

Budget: $ 3,517,767 FTE: 10 

Inherent Risks:   Inefficiencies that could impact 

the receipt and recording of publicly recorded 

documents, as well as the availability of records; 

cost-effective administration of document 

requests; potentially inefficient or insufficient 

support of the Office’s core operations. Further, 

Board Governance Policies have not been fully 

reviewed or updated in six or more years.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1 
Page 12 of 7328



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 12 

RECORDS & LIBRARY SERVICES

The Records & Library Services is responsible for the administration of 

the Records Management Center and the Valley Water Library, 

administration of the Valley Water Records Management Program; and 

the provision of Valley Water’s responses to legal demands for records. 

Budget: $ 1,316,042 FTE: 5 

Inherent Risks: Inefficiencies that could impact 

the receipt and recording of publicly recorded 

documents, as well as the availability of records; 

cost-effective administration of document 

requests; potentially inefficient or insufficient 

support of the Office’s core operations. 

Risk Summary 

The Office of Clerk of the Board has a relatively low budget and FTE allocation when compared to other 

Valley Water departments, and generally represents relatively low risk when compared to other 

departments based on our assessment of a variety of risk factors. Despite this, the Clerk of the Board 

serves an essential function facilitating the work of the Board and ensuring transparency into Board and 

District activities. Because of this, the potential benefits of a performance audit of the Clerk of the Board are 

likely to be in assessing the overall efficiency and effectiveness of the Office’s day-to-day operations. With 

this in mind, we illustrate below the risk rankings of each unit or program area in relation to one another. 

EXHIBIT 8. PROGRAM RISK RATINGS 

Clerk

Records & Library 
Services

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0

L
ik

el
ih

o
o

d

Impact

Attachment 1 
Page 13 of 7329



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 13 

This risk assessment revealed the following potential audit objective: 

1) Evaluate the Office’s business processes, information systems, and workload management 

practices to identify potential inefficiencies or opportunities for improvement in the Office’s 

operational activities and administrative functions. 

Office of District Counsel  

With an approximate Fiscal Year 2023-24 

budget of $15 million—representing less than 

one (1) percent of the District’s overall 

budget—and fourteen (14) FTE positions, the 

Office of District Counsel is managed by the 

Discrict Counsel, a Board-appointed officer of 

Valley Water. The Office is responsible for 

general legal advice and services, personnel, 

litigation, and specialty advice including but not 

limited to land use, the environment, eminent 

domain, and real estate, among others. The 

Office advises the Board of Directors on all 

legal matters, and manages Valley Water’s 

Risk Management Unit.  

The Office of District Counsel at Valley Water 

is a critical component with eight attorneys 

specializing in labor and employment, 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and water law. They handle in-house legal matters such as 

public works contracting, municipal law, water law, and real estate while engaging external counsel for 

large projects. Notably, they address the complex issue related to Santa Clara Valley’s unhoused 

population, a challenge with potential legal and environmental risks. The absence of an electronic 

calendaring system is a notable efficiency concern, with plans to introduce document management and 

automated calendaring tools. However, inherent risks include legal challenges, non-compliance with 

governance procedures, and document management challenges. The influx of new managers and a risk-

averse culture also challenge organizational cohesion. The Office handles all items going to the Board, 

albeit with constraints due to a risk-averse culture that leads to extensive reviews.  

In Fiscal Year 2023, the Office cites various accomplishments, including having provided timely legal 

advice to Valley Water, the Board, and Valley Water’s officers and employees when acting in their official 

capacities; provided representation to Valley Water relating to annual groundwater production charges and 

to the update of Valley Water’s groundwater charge zones; and served as counsel or co-counsel in all 

Valley Water litigation matters. 

Attachment 1 
Page 14 of 7330



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 14 

The Office of District Counsel is organized into two units: The Office of District Counsel and the Risk 

Management Unit. Exhibit 9 provides a breakdown of each division’s budgeted expenses for Fiscal Year 

2023-24.  

EXHIBIT 9. BUDGET BREAKDOWN BY DEPARTMENT  

 

Source: Fiscal Year 2023-24 & FY2024-25 Operating and Capital Rolling Biennial Budget 

The Office of District Counsel allocates functional responsibilities to each of the two units as depicted in 

Exhibit 10 below. 

EXHIBIT 10.  DISTRICT COUNSEL ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 

 

Source: Fiscal Year 2023-24 & 2024-25 Operating and Capital Rolling Biennial Budget 

Risk Analysis 

The Office of District Counsel is integral to the organization's legal affairs yet confronts various inherent 

risks. The foremost concern lies in the efficiency of legal services provided, given the substantial and 

diverse operational and administrative responsibilities of Valley Water. The Office has a relatively low level 

of funding and FTE allocation when compared to other departments, as well as relatively low level of cash 

or other high-risk assets. Inherent risks associated with the District Counsel remain relatively low, but 

include continued adherence to professional standards, the efficient use of professional service contracts 

for outsourced legal services, balancing differing perspectives on risk mitigation, and the implementation of 

business processes and controls to mitigate risk and prevent the loss of District assets. Following is an 

Attachment 1 
Page 15 of 7331



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 15 

evaluation of key functions or programs within the Office, along with a description of responsibilities, 

budget, FTEs, and inherent risks. 

OFFICE OF DISTRICT COUNSEL

The Office of District Counsel provides professional, timely, and strategic 

legal advice to and representation of Valley Water and its Board of 

Directors, officers, and employees. It includes both internal legal services 

and management of the external legal services provided to Valley Water. 

Budget: $ 8,885,440 FTE: 11 

Inherent Risks:  Efficiency in delivering 

professional services considering the significant 

budget allocation, the effective and efficient 

management of third-party contracts, records 

management, and the ability to provide timely 

review and advice regarding a wide range of 

topics to District employees and the Board, 

along with reviewing items presented to the 

Board, are critical areas of focus.  

RISK MANAGEMENT UNIT

The Risk Management Unit at Valley Water is primarily tasked with 

identifying and evaluating loss exposures to protect the organization's 

assets. This involves overseeing the Workers' Compensation program 

and implementing risk retention (self-insurance) and risk transfer 

(insurance) programs to maximize cost-effective coverage and ensure 

compliance with Board Governance policies. Additionally, the division is 

vital in maintaining a proactive stance toward risk management within the 

organizational structure to mitigate inherent risks effectively. 

Budget: $ 7,783,334 FTE: 3 

Inherent Risks: Health and safety risks for 

employees and the public due to inadequate 

safety protocols; security risks, such as 

unauthorized access to facilities or sensitive 

information; adequacy of risk identification and 

assessment processes; the necessity for 

heightened compliance awareness, and the 

effectiveness of risk mitigation strategies; and 

the effectiveness of risk mitigation strategies.  

Risk Summary 

Overall, the Office of the District Counsel represents relatively low risk in terms of audit priority when 

compared to other Valley Water departments and programs, as illustrated in the risk ranking in Exhibit 11. 

Attachment 1 
Page 16 of 7332



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 16 

EXHIBIT 11. PROGRAM RISK RATING 

Performance audit topics of the Office generally would not focus on the exercise of professional judgment 

or legal counsel, but would rather focus on the efficiency with which the Office manages resources. This 

could include internal business processes related to broader District responsibilities (such as risk 

management, contract review and processing, record retention and public records requests, etc.) and the 

Office’s administration of legal services contracts.  

The Office of District Counsel has recently undergone a performance audit, which examined the Office’s 

operations, including Risk Management, suggesting it may be prudent to hold off on another audit of the 

Office for the immediate future. Nevertheless, this risk assessment revealed the following potential audit 

objectives: 

1) Evaluate the Office’s business processes and information systems to identify potential 

inefficiencies or opportunities for improvement in the Office’s administrative functions. 

2) Evaluate risk management practices, including the District’s reliance on third-party administrators 

and service providers, risk retention and transfer evaluations, claims processing, and workplace 

District Counsel

Risk Management

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0

L
ik

el
ih

o
o

d

Impact

Attachment 1 
Page 17 of 7333



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 17 

health and safety programs, as well as existing workload demands and future opportunities to 

enhance risk management operations in a growing District government. 

Administrative Services  

With an approximate Fiscal Year 2023-24 

budget of $107 million—representing 

approximately 10.96 percent of the District’s 

overall budget—and 165 FTE positions, the 

Office of Administrative Services oversees the 

Emergency, Safety, & Security Division; the 

General Services Division; the Information 

Technology Division; and the Human 

Resources Division. The primary roles of the 

Office of Administrative Services include 

supporting the mission of Valley Water—to 

provide Silicon Valley safe, clean water for a 

healthy life, environment, and economy—by 

providing essential business services for Valley 

Water.  

In FY 2023, the Office of Administrative 

Services cites various accomplishments, including Labor Relations having completed Performance 

Improvement training for all Managers; the Office of Emergency Services having conducted the Annual 

Winter Preparedness Workshop with external stakeholders; the Environmental, Health & Safety Services 

continued and completed multiple facility fall protection engineering projects from the previous fiscal year; 

the Security Office developed a Security Drone Program; the Construction Contracts and Support Unit from 

the General Services Division completed the advertisement, bidding, and award of nine capital projects; the 

IT Division completed the 2019 IT Strategic Plan; and the HR Division updated recruitment and selection 

processes to incorporate new trends and tools to ensure that it has the ability to recruit a highly qualified 

and diverse workforce which provided management support for the operational work of the departments. 

Directed by a Chief Operating Officer, the Office of Administrative Services is organized into four divisions: 

Emergency, Safety, & Security Division; the General Services Division; the Information Technology 

Division; and the Human Resources Division—each of which includes distinct functional units that carry out 

the work of the division. Exhibit 12 provides a breakdown of each division’s budgeted expenses for Fiscal 

Year 2023-24.  

Attachment 1 
Page 18 of 7334



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 18 

EXHIBIT 12. BUDGET BREAKDOWN BY DIVISION 

Source: Fiscal Year 2023-24 & FY 2024-25 Operating and Capital Rolling Biennial Budget 

The Office of Administrative Services allocates functional responsibilities to each of the five areas as 

depicted in Exhibit 13. 

EXHIBIT 13. ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DIVISION ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 

Source: Fiscal Year 2023-24 & FY2024-25 Operating and Capital Rolling Biennial Budget 

Risk Analysis 

The Office of Administrative Services plays a crucial role in supporting the mission of Valley Water, which is 

to provide safe, clean water for a healthy life, environment, and economy throughout Silicon Valley. This 

office is responsible for delivering essential business services to ensure the efficient functioning of the 

organization. The office oversees multiple units and divisions, including the Emergency, Safety, & Security 

Division, the General Services Division, the Information Technology Division, and the Human Resources 

Division. These highly specialized and distinct functions under the umbrella of Administrative Services 

demonstrates the office's importance and impact on Valley Water's operations and capital programs.  

Attachment 1 
Page 19 of 7335



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 19 

Inherent risks associated with the Office of Administrative Services include the complexity of the 

responsibilities and functions within the Office; operational risks associated with the efficient execution of 

critical support functions which could impact the core operations of the District; impacts on employee 

satisfaction, morale, and productivity; health and safety risks related to safety programs; information 

technology and cybersecurity risks; and procurement and vendor management risks. Following is an 

evaluation of key functions or programs within the Office, along with a description of responsibilities, 

budget, FTEs, and inherent risks. 

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER OF 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

The Office of the Chief Operating Officer (COO) of Administrative 

Services oversees the General Services division, Human Resources 

division, Information Technology division, Emergency, Safety & Security 

division, and Labor Relations department. The COO leads and manages 

the AS to achieve the Board’s Ends Goals and Objectives. This includes 

providing Administrative Services to leadership, staff, and funding to fulfill 

the essential functions and responsibilities of the Office. In general, the 

Office provides for management activities that promote communication, 

human resources development, budgeting, project efficiencies and 

process improvement, mentoring and recruitment, and supporting District-

wide and special events/efforts that benefit the whole organization.  

Budget: $1,860,646 FTE: 3 

Inherent Risks: Complexity of the Office’s 

diverse administrative responsibilities, the 

general operational efficiency of managing a 

broad and diverse span of control, and strategic 

risks related to the implementation of 

organizational goals and objectives. 

 

EMERGENCY, SAFETY, & SECURITY DIVISION 

The Emergency, Safety and Security Division includes the Office of 

Emergency Services (OES), Environmental Health and Safety Unit 

(EH&S), and the Security Office (SO). The Division provides a safe and 

secure environment for Valley Water infrastructure, staff, and facilities, 

while maintaining a level of preparedness to respond to unplanned 

incidents and events.  

Budget: $ 14,840,573 FTE: 19 

Inherent Risks: Health and safety risks for 

employees and the public; security risks, such as 

unauthorized access to facilities or other 

physical assets. 

Security Office  

The Security Office was allocated a Fiscal Year 2023-24 budget of $ 7,238,321 for a total of five (5) FTE. 

This office provides risk-based security capabilities through a preparedness cycle encompassing analysis, 

development, planning, and verification. Its role involves safeguarding critical infrastructure and personnel 

against various threats, including terrorism and vandalism, using a guard force, patrols, remote monitoring, 

and a Security Operations Center. However, it's important to note that the Security Staff and Guard Force 

do not possess law enforcement powers and are not equipped with firearms, which limits their ability to 

respond to potential high-order threats effectively. Despite facing challenges relating to the sufficiency of 

the security office's infrastructure, such as an outdated CCTV and access control system and dealing with 

Attachment 1 
Page 20 of 7336



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 20 

issues related to the unhoused population, the SO serves as a crucial liaison between Valley Water and 

law enforcement agencies.   

Environmental Health & Safety  

The Environmental Health & Safety Unit performs a wide range of activities including: 

• Workplace Health and Safety, including environmental, health and safety written program 

development and maintenance, technical and behavioral safety training, incident investigation 

services, ergonomic evaluations and corrective measures, contractor safety program evaluation, 

safety inspection and audit services and support, hazard analysis and risk prevention services, fall 

protection surveys and fall hazard mitigation, OSHA compliance oversight and monitoring, 

Department of Transportation driver safety program, alcohol and drug abuse prevention and testing 

services, and industrial hygiene services.  

• Hazardous materials management, including storage and disposal management; electronic waste 

and recycling compliance and annual report submittal; underground and above ground storage 

tank inspections and permitting; Hazardous Materials Business Plans development and submittal; 

environmental regulatory facilities permit management; 24/7 hazardous materials emergency 

response capabilities; Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasure Program, which is designed 

to help prevent the discharge of oil into the water supply; and the California Accidental Release 

Program, which aims to prevent the accidental release of hazardous substances that could harm 

the public; among other programs.  

• Additionally, the Environmental, Health and Safety Unit responds to requests from customers for 

specific health and safety services consultation and program assistance to ensure that Valley 

Water’s health and safety programs are functional and sustainable. It also acts as Valley Water’s 

liaison with applicable regulatory agencies when required.   

Key inherent risks associated with these roles and responsibilities relate to the health and safety of the 

public and Valley Water employees, ensuring regulatory compliance regarding the management and 

control of hazardous substances as well as potential discharge affecting ground and surface water, and 

managing costs associated with regulatory permit fees, hazardous waste disposal fees, regulatory training 

costs, and supplies and equipment. 

Office of Emergency Services 

The Office of Emergency Services Unit is responsible for ensuring comprehensive, integrated, risk-based, 

emergency management for the personnel and critical infrastructure of Valley Water. Emergency Services 

manages the Valley Water Emergency Operations Plan, the Business Continuity Program, the FEMA-

approved Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, and the development of Stream/Flood Emergency Action Plans. 

The program is also responsible for maintaining inter-agency relationships, Multi-Agency Coordination 

systems, Mutual Aid and Emergency Assistance Agreements, managing a Training and Exercise Plan that 

meets Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) and National Incident Management System 

Attachment 1 
Page 21 of 7337



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 21 

(NIMS) requirements, managing a dedicated Emergency Operations Center, and promoting California 

Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) professional credentialing.  

Ultimately, risks associated with the effectiveness of emergency response units are dependent on the 

extent to which they adhere to best and leading practices in preparing for, responding to, and mitigating the 

effects of emergencies. This includes mitigating delays in emergency response coordination and 

communication, adequacy of emergency response plans for water supply interruptions, and ensuring 

compliance with state and federal emergency management regulations. It also includes seeking 

accreditation through the Emergency Management Accreditation Program and ensuring adequate 

emergency and temporary staffing levels to avoid delays and cost overruns. 

Information Technology Projects & Business Operations 

The Information Technology Projects and Business Operations Unit is responsible for project management, 

strategic planning and alignment, complex analysis, program development, compliance, policy 

development, budget, and reporting and financial planning. It ensures innovative technologies are 

effectively utilized across the organization; prioritizes and sequences technology projects; and leads, plans, 

oversees and participates in the more complex and difficult work of staff responsible for providing 

administrative, human resources, financial, and compliance support to the Information Technology division. 

With these roles and responsibilities, the inherent risks include risks associated with Information 

Technology project management, including scope creep and budget overruns; data breaches or 

cyberattacks that could compromise sensitive customer and operational data; business continuity planning 

and disaster recovery for IT systems. 

Information Technology Division
Provides management oversight, leadership and strategic support for 
Information Technology Infrastructure, Information Security Services, and 
Software Services, to ensure operational effectiveness and fiscal 
accountability. The Information Technology Division serves the technology 
needs of Valley Water. The division delivers and maintains key information 
technology services that meet current and future needs of Valley Water. 
The division also provides oversight of effectiveness, efficiency, and 
implementation of major Information Technology initiatives. 

Budget: $ 34,798,353 FTE: 39 

Inherent Risks: Maintaining cost-efficiency and 
compliance; improper use of data; the internet of 
things (IoT) vulnerability; system failures; 
cybersecurity; reliability and functionality of 
systems and applications; ensuring proper 
controls over sensitive assets and data; effective 
disaster recovery; risks, including data breaches 
and cyber-attacks; ensuring infrastructure is 
designed to meet current and future needs of 
employees, customers, and the public.  Staffing 
challenges arise from both limited human 
resources and a significant burden of technical 
debt, primarily driven by the necessity to support 
legacy, outdated, and redundant applications. 
These challenges are further compounded by the 
extensive overlap among various projects, 
highlighting the critical requirement for 
centralized IT governance and project approval 
processes. 

Attachment 1 
Page 22 of 7338



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 22 

Software Services 

The Software Services Unit develops (where appropriate), supports, and maintains Valley Water’s business 

applications. These include Valley Water’s Enterprise Resources Planning (ERP) system (Infor), work and 

asset management system (Maximo), project management system (ProjectMates), resource management 

system (Vemo), geographic information system (GIS), in-house applications, and the Valley Water’s 

internet and intranet, among many other enterprise-wide or limited use systems. 

With these roles and responsibilities, the inherent risks include risks related to software development and 

customization for critical water management systems; software vulnerabilities and patch management; and 

ensuring software compliance with regulatory standards. 

Infrastructure Services 

The Infrastructure Services Unit is responsible for implementing and maintaining the network and data-

center infrastructure, cybersecurity posture, telephone systems, communications systems, tablets, 

workstations, and connectivity (e.g., servers, networks, WIFI, etc.). This unit maintains a help desk and 

serves as the first point of contact for staff to report issues; troubleshoots, resolves issues, and escalates 

more significant concerns; and supports Audio/Visual needs enterprise-wide, including the Board Room. 

With these roles and responsibilities, the inherent risks include cybersecurity, both with respect to Valley 

Water’s own infrastructure and the many independent cloud-based solutions currently employed by the 

District. It also includes risks related to the maintenance and security of critical IT infrastructure; system 

downtime and its impact on water supply and customer service; and infrastructure scalability to 

accommodate growth and changing technology needs. 

Purchasing & Consulting Contracts Services Unit 

The Purchasing & Consulting Contracts Services Unit provides strategic and technical sourcing for the 

purchase and acquisition of all goods, services, consulting services and contracts; manages the 

competitive solicitations for all procurements, including goods and general services, as well as professional 

General Services Division 

The General Services Division is responsible for purchasing of goods and 
consultant services, construction contract award and compliance, facility 
and fleet management, business support, and warehouse services in 
support of Valley Water’s mission and operational needs.  

Budget: $ 40,994,675 FTE: 71 

Inherent Risks: Procurement and vendor 
management risks, including procurement fraud 
and conflicts of interest.; inventory and asset 
management risks, including misplacement or 
loss of assets; ensuring competitive and 
transparent bidding processes; vendor 
performance and contract compliance; delays 
and cost overruns in construction projects; quality 
control and safety risks in construction; 
compliance with safety standards for equipment 
operation; maintenance and safety risks related 
to district facilities; and energy management and 
sustainability initiatives. 

Attachment 1 
Page 23 of 7339



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 23 

services; and provides guidance related to contract administration and support. As part of this 

responsibility, General Services also manages Valley Water’s Small and Local Business Enterprise 

Program, which conducts outreach for consultant contracts to tap into the community for small and local 

business opportunities.  

With these roles and responsibilities, the inherent risks include ensuring the availability of efficient and 

effective procurement and contracting vehicles to meet the needs of Valley Water programs; ensuring the 

most competitive price for high-quality goods or services, transparency in purchasing decisions, and 

compliance with relevant laws and regulations; ensuring proper segregation of duties between purchasing 

and accounts payable functions; ensuring compliance with requirements related to supplier diversity while 

promoting opportunities for small and local businesses; and avoiding potential conflicts of interest and other 

forms of fraud, waste, or abuse. 

Construction Contracts Support Unit 

The Construction Contracts Support Unit is responsible for the development and solicitation of Valley 

Water’s construction contracts, which are typically structured as design-bid-build contracts; providing 

analytical support for both Water Utility Enterprise and Watershed capital projects; assisting with status 

reporting related to the contracts; and ensuring labor compliance of construction contractors during 

construction. With these roles and responsibilities, the inherent risks include potential inefficiencies or 

delays in contracting that could lead to project delays, the potential that contract language could fail to 

provide a sound basis for controlling costs or otherwise protecting the interests of the District, and the 

potential the contract vehicles available to the District are not sufficient to meet Valley Water’s needs.  

Equipment Management Unit 

The Equipment Management Unit is responsible for procuring, maintaining, and managing a fleet of 

passenger and utility vehicles for use by Valley Water employees; maintaining an inventory of Class IV 

equipment (construction materials such as fortification and barrier materials), handheld equipment, and 

other non-information technology tools and assets used by the Water Utility and Watershed operations. 

Inherent risks include maintaining adequate internal controls over vehicle and maintenance assets; 

ensuring competitive procurement for all assets; and ensuring an effective preventive maintenance 

program; and controlling all assets in a manner that prevents theft or misuse. 

Facilities Management Unit 

The Facilities Management Unit seeks to provide a safe and well-maintained work environment in all 

facilities owned by Valley Water, apart from water utility facilities. This includes providing customer service 

and core maintenance functions such as building repairs, heating, ventilation, air conditioning, plumbing, 

electrical, life safety, elevator services, and janitorial services. Inherent risks associated with this 

responsibility include maintaining facilities in a responsive, timely, and cost-effective manner; controlling 

high-risk assets (tools, equipment, etc.); energy management and sustainability initiatives; workforce 

safety; managing cost increases stemming from emergency repairs, as well as controlling costs to ensure 

allowability and avoid cost over-runs; and maintaining an asset inventory system that is up-to-date and 

reflects reasonably accurate condition assessments of facilities sufficient to enable an effective preventive 

Attachment 1 
Page 24 of 7340



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 24 

maintenance program. Like many facilities maintenance programs, deferred maintenance remains a 

concern. 

Business Customer Support & Warehouse Unit 

The Business Customer Support & Warehouse Unit provides operational support including staffing the 

public counter and managing cashiering operations, the switchboard, mail delivery, reprographic, word 

processing and forms, and inventory control services. It also serves as the central receiving and distribution 

point for the organization and manages the central stores / warehouse operation as well as distributed 

storage locations. With these roles and responsibilities, the inherent risks include risks related to customer 

service; inventory management and control, including the prevention of theft or misuse of Valley Water 

assets; and timely and accurate fulfillment of customer requests. 

HR Business Services Unit 

The HR Business Services Unit is responsible for updating Human Resource policies, procedures and 

quality assurance/quality control documents that are currently outdated and will provide dedicated 

recruitment sourcing services through targeted outreach, developing outreach lists for each classification, 

and utilizing software solutions to expand recruitment efforts. With these roles and responsibilities, the 

inherent risks include risks related to HR administration and record-keeping; compliance with labor laws 

and regulations; and data security and privacy of HR information. 

Labor Relations / Ethics & Equal Opportunity Program 

The Labor Relations / Ethics & Equal Opportunity Program (EEO) Unit promotes a proactive and positive 

labor relations program, in compliance with legal mandates, negotiated agreements, and constructive 

management principles. Labor Relations represents Valley Water management in all matters involving 

matters covered under collective bargaining agreements and employee relations involving represented 

employees. Labor Relations negotiates, interprets, applies, and enforces contracts and regulations, and 

acts as a resource in the areas of administrative policies and procedures. With these roles and 

responsibilities, the inherent risks include labor relations risks, including labor dissatisfaction, disputes or 

strikes; ethical concerns and conflicts of interest; ensuring equal opportunity and diversity in hiring and 

promotion; and compliance risks concerning adherence to labor laws and regulations. 

Human Resources Division 
The Human Resources Division is responsible for planning, managing, 
directing, and coordinating the staff and operations to provide Valley 
Water assistance in the areas of human resources. The Division includes 
four (4) functional units and eight (8) distinct programs. Human Resources 
is responsible for strategic planning; identifying workforce requirements 
needed to achieve goals; analyzing trends with data analytics; ensuring 
compliance with local, state, and federal regulation; administrative 
responsibilities (e.g., employee benefits, employee records); employee 
development; creating an inclusive work culture that thrives on a diverse 
workforce; succession planning; and maintaining and updating Human 
Resource policies that comply with the law and meet organizational goals. 

Budget: $ 15,038,569 FTE: 31 

Inherent Risks: Effectively recruiting, 

developing, and retaining a talented workforce 

that meets Valley Water’s needs today and in the 

future; promoting a culture that fosters a work 

environment conducive to Valley Water’s mission 

and a safe and healthy work environment; and 

ensuring compliance with employment laws and 

regulations. 

Attachment 1 
Page 25 of 7341



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 25 

Total Rewards & Data Analytics Unit 

The Total Rewards & Data Analytics Unit provides recommendations utilizing multiple data types, business 

knowledge, and strategic assumptions in addition to data-generated resources to produce decision-making. 

With these roles and responsibilities, the inherent risks include risks related to employee compensation and 

benefits; data security and privacy in compensation data; and compliance with reporting requirements. 

Benefits & Wellness Program 

The Benefits & Wellness Program is responsible for the administration of employee and retiree benefit 

plans, conducting new hire orientations and separations, processing payroll and HR transactions, and 

administration of the award-winning Wellness Program (includes fitness reimbursement, ongoing employee 

education on overall various health initiatives, annual wellbeing fair, lunch and learns, employee rewards, 

etc.). With these roles and responsibilities, the inherent risks include risks related to employee health and 

wellness initiatives; benefits administration and compliance with healthcare regulations; and program 

effectiveness in promoting employee well-being. 

HRIS Administration & Data Analytics Program 

The HRIS Administration & Data Analytics Program utilizes a Human Resources Information System to 

record, store, and manage employee data such as payroll, benefits, performance reviews, and training 

records. With these roles and responsibilities, the inherent risks include risks related to HR information 

systems, including data security; data analytics accuracy and compliance with privacy regulations; 

availability and reliability of HR data for decision-making.  

Classification & Compensation Program 

The Classification & Compensation Program conducts classification reviews, pay practices, salary surveys, 

annual equity reviews, and the development of incentive programs. Interprets memoranda of understanding 

(MOU's) and bargain with labor representatives; conducts EEO investigations; and ensures alignment with 

ethics. With these roles and responsibilities, the inherent risks include risks related to job classification and 

compensation structures; compliance with wage and hour laws; and ensuring equitable compensation 

practices. 

Talent Acquisition 

Within the Talent Acquisition & Career Pathways Unit, Human Resources is responsible for recruiting and 

developing Valley Water’s workforce. This includes administering all recruitment and examination activities 

for Valley Water positions; facilitating the selection and hiring processes designed to fill vacant positions; 

leading and directing internship programs designed to introduce individuals to the work of Valley Water, 

which may lead to future employees; administering the temporary staffing program; and partnering with 

community organizations and colleges for workforce planning. 

Inherent risks associated with this responsibility is the potential for unsuccessful talent acquisition and 

management resulting in a District workforce that does not meet the needs of Valley Water, its customers, 

or the public; unfair interviewing, selection, or hiring practices or favoritism, diminishing District goals 

related to diversity, equity, and inclusion; compensation levels that are insufficient to attract, retain, and 

Attachment 1 
Page 26 of 7342



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 26 

motivate a talented and qualified workforce; a classification system that fails to facilitate the hiring of entry-

level positions and the development of the District’s future leaders; and the potential that background check 

practices fail to indicate problematic histories of candidates.  

Workforce Development Program 

Also, within the Talent Acquisition & Career Pathways Unit, Human Resources is responsible for facilitating 

the development of Valley Water’s future workforce. Its Workforce Development Program helps to guide 

employees’ into the future by administering workforce development and succession planning, developing 

long-term recruitment strategies within the community, providing technical and non-technical training 

programs, assessing the needs of Valley Water employees and career goals, identifying current and future 

business needs, promoting professional development, administering the District’s performance evaluation 

program, and administering wellness activities and events. This Unit is also responsible for developing and 

administering the NextGen Program, which seeks to develop the next generation of water professionals, 

the Career and Technical Education (CTE) program, and a roadmap to connect high school and college 

students to future career goals. 

With these responsibilities, inherent risks include consistency in training among divisions; coordination of 

work-specific or technical training provided by divisions and general workplace training (e.g., supervision, 

leadership development, skills enhancement, and mandatory training programs) provided by Human 

Resources to ensure an effective holistic workforce development program; resistance to change; and the 

potential for misalignment between workforce development and succession plans and Valley Water’s 

strategic goals and objectives.  

Risk Summary 

Based on this assessment, we find that all key programs and divisions within Administrative Services 

represent moderate- to high-risk. Districtwide, management expressed general satisfaction with the 

District’s information systems and other business areas within Administrative Services, but also noted 

opportunities for improvement. Program areas throughout Valley Water depend on Administrative Services 

in nearly everything they do—recruiting staff to perform critical work, procuring goods and services needed 

to perform critical tasks, managing the physical assets needed to maintain Valley Water’s infrastructure, 

providing the information systems needed to facilitate and support staff’s work, etc. The transactional 

nature of much of Administrative Services’ work, its control of significant physical assets, and its role in 

procuring goods and services (and expending District monies), all contribute to risk rating that warrant 

performance audit resources. In Exhibit 14, we illustrate the relative risk ratings of Administrative Service’s 

operating divisions. 

  

Attachment 1 
Page 27 of 7343



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 27 

EXHIBIT 14. PROGRAM RISK RATINGS 

This risk assessment revealed the following potential audits and objectives: 

1) Information technology is generally considered to be a moderate- to high-risk function in any

government organization, and recommended performance audits typically focus on:

a. Cybersecurity and network hygiene;

b. Data management protocols;

c. Customer service efficiency;

d. Disaster recovery planning;

e. Cost-effectiveness of operations, including contracting and purchasing; and

f. Information technology project management policies, processes, and practices, and the

consistency of the IT Department’s efforts with best practices.

2) Determine whether the District’s human resources management activities are consistent with

industry standards; sufficient to ensure compliance with federal, state, and local laws and

regulations; effective in attracting, retaining, and motivating a highly talented, qualified, and

effective workforce; and appropriately resourced and right-sized for Valley Water. This should

Safety & Security

Information Technology

Purchasing & Contracting

Business Customer 
Support

Equipment Management 

Facilities Management

Human Resources

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0

L
ik

el
ih

o
o

d

Impact

Attachment 1 
Page 28 of 7344



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 28 

include key elements of human resources management, such as policies and procedures related to 

and its administration of the following: 

a. Hiring and recruiting; 

b. Classification and compensation; 

c. Employee recordkeeping; 

d. Human Resources Information System functionality and system controls; 

e. Employee relations and performance management; 

f. Benefits administration; 

g. Workplace investigations; 

h. Professional and workforce development, training, and succession planning; 

i. State and federal compliance. 

3) The administration of compensation practices to ensure employer costs are appropriately 

controlled by determining whether benefit enrollment processes appropriately control employee 

enrollment and cost-sharing, including the verification of dependent eligibility, and the recording of 

employee compensation within Infor to ensure compensation (including bonuses and other 

differential pay) are appropriately approved and authorized. 

4) Cashiering processes, including those performed through differing information and cashiering 

systems, the impact that staff turnover has had on cashiering operations, and the role of Finance 

and Administration in ensuring adequate internal and system controls associated with each. 

5) Valley Water’s facilities maintenance program, including evaluating the Department’s ongoing 

control, monitoring, assessment, and maintenance of Valley Water facilities and properties to 

identify opportunities to enhance efficiencies and protect District assets. 

6) Valley Water’s equipment management program, including determining the extent to which the 

acquisition, maintenance, and control of equipment and fleet vehicles are performed in a manner 

consistent with best practices, controls over sensitive assets are effective to prevent misuse, 

routine and preventive maintenance is performed in accordance to acceptable guidelines, the 

potential for abuse of District vehicles/fuel/equipment is appropriately mitigated, and practices are 

both efficient and effective. 

7) The overall efficiency of the Emergency, Safety, & Security Division, and the extent to which the 

Division carries out its responsibilities in a manner consistent with best practices and regulatory 

requirements. 

8) Warehouse operations, including the processes and protocols for inventory acquisition and 

management, conducting inventory audits, and otherwise controlling assets held in inventory, and 

the efficiency and effectiveness of such processes.  

9) The practices of the Business Customer Support program, including its business and workload 

management practices, to identify potential inefficiencies or opportunities for improvement in the 

program’s operational activities and administrative functions. 

Attachment 1 
Page 29 of 7345



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 29 

10) Procurement activities, including General Services’ practices relating to the following:  

a. Ensuring consistency with Valley Water policies, procedures, and other relevant guidance; 

b. Proper segregation of duties with accounts payable functions and operational activities; 

c. Consistency with best practices;  

d. Efficiency in executing procurements in a manner that meets districtwide needs;  

e. Timeliness of contracting and procurement practices, including the identification of 

potential bottlenecks;  

f. Evaluating the appropriateness of the procurement vehicles used for different types of 

procurements, including the purchases of goods and supplies, professional services, 

construction contractors, operations and maintenance contractors, and other types of 

procurements; and 

g. Benchmarking research, including the extent to which Valley Water’s procurement 

practices compare with other public sector agencies. 

External Affairs  

With an approximate budget for the Fiscal Year 

2023-24 year of $ 24.1 million—representing 

2.46 percent of the District’s overall budget—

and 45 FTE positions, External Affairs is 

managed by a Chief Operating Officer who 

reports directly to the Chief Executive Officer. 

External Affairs is responsible for overseeing 

and coordinating strategic external affairs 

initiatives, encompassing the Office of 

Communication, Office of Civic Engagement, 

Office of Government Relations, and Office of 

Racial Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion. 

The primary roles of External Affairs include 

actively planning, integrating, and executing 

external policies, legislation, and 

communication efforts to address Valley 

Water's business interests, encompassing media relations, community engagement, government relations, 

and the promotion of racial equity and inclusion. 

In Fiscal Year 2023, External Affairs cites various accomplishments, including welcoming employees' return 

to in-person work through over 25 employee resource group-led events, including lectures, cultural 

celebrations, volunteering, and networking events. Employees enjoyed these opportunities to reconnect 

with peers after COVID-19. Over 1,100 participants attended these events through Q3; launched two new 

pilot DEI capacity-building trainings: Conscious Conversations and Uncovering Racism; and adopted first-

Attachment 1 
Page 30 of 7346



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 30 

time resolutions acknowledging: Filipino American History Month (October), German American Heritage 

Month (October), Italian American Heritage Month (October), Polish American Heritage Month (October), 

International Holocaust Remembrance Day (January), Lunar New Year (February) and Genocide 

Remembrance Day (April). 

External Affairs is organized into five units: The Office of the Chief Operating Officer of External Affairs,

Office of Communication, Office of Civic Engagement, Office of Government Relations, and Office of Racial 

Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion. Exhibit 15 provides a breakdown of each unit’s budgeted expenses for 

Fiscal Year 2023-24. 

EXHIBIT 15. BUDGET BREAKDOWN BY UNIT 

Source: Fiscal Year 2023-24 & FY2024-25 Operating and Capital Rolling Biennial Budget 

External Affairs allocates functional responsibilities to each of the five areas as depicted in Exhibit 16 

below. 

EXHIBIT 16. OFFICE OF EXTERNAL AFFAIRS ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 

Source: Fiscal Year 2023-24 & FY2024-25 Operating and Capital Rolling Biennial Budget 

Attachment 1 
Page 31 of 7347



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 31 

Risk Analysis 

The Office of External Affairs is vital to Valley Water's strategic operations, overseeing and coordinating 

various external affairs initiatives. External Affairs comprises units such as Communication, Civic 

Engagement, and Racial Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion, as well as the division of Government Relations. 

Its primary role involves strategic planning and integration of external policies, legislation, and 

communication efforts to address Valley Water's business interests, including media relations, community 

engagement, government relations, and promoting equity and inclusion. 

Integrating diverse units, such as Communication, Civic Engagement, Government Relations, and Racial 

Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion, reflects the District's commitment to fostering inclusivity, promoting equity, 

and addressing community needs. However, the wide range of functions within External Affairs may also 

pose challenges regarding coordination and resource allocation. Ensuring effective communication and 

collaboration among units can be complex, potentially leading to inefficiencies or overlapping efforts. 

Additionally, the Office of Racial Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion's success in promoting a diverse workforce 

and addressing environmental justice relies on the commitment and involvement of all stakeholders across 

the organization. Failure to prioritize equity initiatives could hinder progress and impact the District's 

reputation and social standing. 

Inherent risks associated with the External Affairs include strategic risks related to the development and 

implementation of external affairs plans and initiatives; regulatory and compliance risks due to the changes 

in legislation and government policies, risks associated with insufficient progress in promoting diversity and 

inclusion within the District’s operations; the effectiveness of civic engagement strategies in connecting with 

the community; and communication risks related to the accuracy, timeliness, and transparency of 

information shared with stakeholders. Following is an evaluation of key functions or programs within the 

Office, along with a description of responsibilities, budget, FTEs, and inherent risks. 

  

 

 

Office of the Chief Operating Officer of External 
Affairs 

External Affairs is responsible for programs that increase 
employee and community awareness and engagement on Valley 
Water programs, projects, and challenges. External Affairs 
provides the strategic planning and integration of external policies 
and legislation as it relates to the business interests of Valley 
Water and is responsible for managing Valley Water’s 
relationships with the community, government officials, the media, 
and other key stakeholders. External Affairs is also responsible 
for managing racial equity, diversity, and inclusion efforts. 

Budget: $ 1,993,349 FTE: 5 

Inherent Risks:  Strategic risks related to the 
development and implementation of external affairs plans 
and initiatives. 

Reputational risks arising from external affairs decisions 
that may be controversial or negatively perceived by 
stakeholders. 

Attachment 1 
Page 32 of 7348



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 32 

Water Supply Outreach Program 

The Water Supply Outreach Program focuses on raising public awareness about water supply issues, 

engaging with the community through events and programs, and building relationships with local 

governments. Challenges include effectively communicating complex water supply topics to diverse 

audiences and addressing potential resistance or misunderstandings. 

Water Education & Volunteerism Program 

The Water Education & Volunteerism Program is responsible for educational outreach programs and 

fostering community engagement through volunteer opportunities. Challenges involve maintaining 

sustained interest and participation in educational initiatives and coordinating volunteers effectively for 

various water-related projects. 

Community Benefits Program 

The Community Benefits Program works on initiatives to benefit local communities through projects, 

partnerships, and outreach efforts. Challenges may include balancing the diverse needs and expectations 

of different communities and ensuring equitable distribution of benefits. 

Community Rating System Program 

The Community Rating System Program manages efforts to raise community awareness about flood risks 

and encourages participation in the Community Rating System for potential flood insurance discounts. 

Challenges include maintaining effective communication channels among key stakeholders and the public, 

as well as promoting active participation. 

 

Office of Civic Engagement Unit 
Through collaborations, educational initiatives, community service 
options, and grant programs, the Office of Civic Engagement 
(OCE) actively fosters connections with the community. Its 
primary aim is to establish a solid foundation of trust and support 
for Valley Water's objectives and mission. OCE is responsible for 
managing several key programs, including the Safe, Clean Water 
Grants & Partnerships Program, Public Art initiatives, Education 
Outreach efforts, the Water 101 Academy/Ambassadors 
Program, Creek Stewardship projects, Water Supply Outreach 
activities, and the Community Rating System. Additionally, OCE 
provides programmatic oversight and coordination for the Board 
Advisory Youth Commission and the Low-income Residential 
Water Rate Assistance Program. 

Budget: $ 7,959,139 FTE: 13 

Inherent Risks:   Strategic risks related to the 
effectiveness of civic engagement strategies, ensuring 
these strategies genuinely resonate with diverse 
community members, are crucial to maintaining public 
trust and credibility. Additionally, community engagement 
can be challenging, given the need to navigate potential 
conflicts and competing interests within local communities. 
OCE also faces risks associated with flood insurance 
ratings; failure to meet rating criteria could result in 
reduced discounts for flood insurance, affecting the 
community. Lastly, budget constraints may limit OCE's 
outreach and engagement efforts, necessitating effective 
resource management to fulfill its mission despite 
potential financial limitations. 

Attachment 1 
Page 33 of 7349



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 33 

Local Government Relations Program 

The Local Government Relations Program focuses on fostering positive relationships with local government 

bodies to advocate for water-related projects and initiatives. Challenges may involve navigating competing 

interests and aligning district goals with local priorities. 

Federal Government Relations Program 

The Federal Government Relations Program advocates for federal funding and support for district projects, 

managing relationships with federal agencies and legislators. Challenges include coordinating efforts at the 

federal level and addressing regulatory hurdles. 

State Governmental Relations Unit 

The State Governmental Relations Unit is responsible for advocating for district interests at the state level, 

securing funding and permissions for projects. Challenges include managing relationships with state 

officials and navigating the complexities of legislative processes. 

The Racial Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion Unit was established in Fiscal Year 2020-21 to provide expertise 

and leadership in the areas of employee relations, employee engagement, diversity and inclusion, and 

Office of Government Relations Unit 
The Office of Government Relations advocates at the local, 
regional, state, and federal levels to promote and advance the 
water supply, flood protection, revenue enhancement, and 
environmental stewardship interests of Valley Water and the 
residents of Santa Clara County, in alignment with the Board’s 
legislative priorities. Government Relations serves as the internal 
and external connection for legislation, development of strategic 
support and opposition, and supplemental funding opportunities 
for Valley Water. 

Budget: $ 5,118,321 FTE: 10 

Inherent Risks: Regulatory and compliance risks due to 
changes in legislation and government policies. 

Advocacy risks associated with the representation of the 
District's interests to government entities. 

Racial Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion Unit 
The Office of REDI serves to strengthen and expand Valley 
Water’s ability to deliver innovative services through the 
development, implementation, and oversight of policies to 
advance equity, diversity, and inclusion (DEI) efforts. Through 
collaborations with internal stakeholders, REDI works to help 
attract, retain, and promote a diverse and talented workforce. 
REDI also helps to promote environmental justice externally to 
all the communities Valley Water serves, and fosters 
engagement with local tribal communities. REDI initiates DEI 
training efforts and hosts cultural speaker engagements to 
increase staff awareness of underserved communities. REDI 
also serves to guide and support the work of Valley Water’s 
Employee Resource Groups, of which memberships to a 
chartered Valley Water ERG is free and open to all employees 

Budget: $ 1,757,075 FTE: 4 

Inherent Risks: Risks associated with insufficient progress 
in promoting diversity and inclusion within the District’s 
operations. Reputational risks if the unit’s efforts are 
perceived as insincere or inadequate by stakeholders. 

Attachment 1 
Page 34 of 7350



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 34 

workplace culture—and to do so from a perspective dominated by the principles of diversity, equity, and 

inclusion. Since it was established, the role of the Unit has evolved from an internal focus on DEI initiatives 

to a more externally focused equity assurance effort, guided by the Strategic Master Plan and Equity Action 

Plans. Key challenges include continuing to refine the unit’s role respective to the District as a whole.  

Graphic Services 

The Graphic Services Program handles visual design and collateral creation for various departments, 

ensuring consistent branding and effective communication. Challenges may involve managing design 

requests from different teams and delivering high-quality materials within tight deadlines. 

Media & Public Relations 

The Media & Public Relations Program is responsible for managing the District's media presence, 

responding to press inquiries, and promoting district initiatives. Challenges include maintaining a positive 

public image and effectively addressing media inquiries during crisis situations. 

Community Outreach 

The Community Outreach Program engages with the community through various programs and initiatives 

to raise awareness about water-related issues and encourage participation. Challenges include sustaining 

community interest and involvement over time. 

Internal Communications 

The Internal Communications Program is responsible for communication within the organization, including 

employee engagement, events, and surveys. Challenges involve ensuring transparent and effective 

communication across different departments and addressing employee concerns and feedback. 

Risk Summary 

The Office of External Affairs has a relatively low budget and FTE allocation when compared to other Valley 

Water departments, and generally represents relatively low risk when compared to other departments 

based on our assessment of a variety of risk factors. Despite this, External Affairs is in many ways the 

public face of Valley Water. Because of this, the potential benefits of a performance audit of External Affairs 

are likely to be in assessing the overall efficiency and effectiveness of the Office’s day-to-day operations. In 

Exhibit 17, we illustrate below the risk rankings of each unit or program area in relation to one another. 

Office of Communications Unit 
The Office of Communications informs, engages, and educates 
the community, including Valley Water employees, on water 
conservation, water supply and quality, flood protection and 
environmental stream stewardship efforts. Communications 
provides timely responses to media inquiries on relevant topics. 
Through social media platforms, marketing campaigns and 
public relations efforts, Communications highlights the work of 
Valley Water and its Board of Directors. 

Budget: $ 7,274,122 FTE: 15 

Inherent Risks: Communication risks related to the 
accuracy, timeliness, and transparency of information 
shared with stakeholders. Crisis communication risks if the 
District faces reputational challenges or public incidents. 

Attachment 1 
Page 35 of 7351



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 35 

EXHIBIT 17. PROGRAM RISK RATINGS 

 

This risk assessment revealed the following potential audit objective: 

1) Evaluate the Office’s business processes, information systems, and workload management 

practices to identify potential inefficiencies or opportunities for improvement in the Office’s 

operational activities and administrative functions. 

Office of Financial Planning and Management Services  

With an approximate Fiscal Year 2023-24 budget of $98.5 million—representing 9.6 percent of the District’s 

overall budget—and 47 FTE positions, the Office of Financial Planning and Management Services 

(Finance) is managed by Valley Water’s Chief Financial Officer. Finance executes, records, and/or 

reconciles all financial transactions of the District (including the collection, receipt, disbursement and 

accounting of all monies received in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles), provides 

analyses and recommendations on decisions brought forth by operations, prepares and develops financial 

statements and other financial programs, manages and invests cash assets of the District, issues and 

manages debt instruments, prepares and manages the District’s budget, conducts financial analysis and 

forecasting, coordinates all external and internal audits, establishes controls that minimize financial risks, 

and drives organizational change through a robust continuous improvement program. Finance staff also 

External Affairs

Office of Civic 
Engagement

Office of Communications

Office of Racial Equity, 
Diversity, and Inclusion

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0

L
ik

el
ih

o
o

d

Impact

Attachment 1 
Page 36 of 7352



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 36 

serve as the primary advisors to the Chief 

Executive Officer and the Board of Directors in 

financial planning and advice. 

In Fiscal Year 2023, Finance cites various 

accomplishments, including having delivered 

the PERS/OPEB update to the Board on March 

14, 2023; presented 30-year forecast to the 

Board on March 28, 2023, per Board request; 

and established a repository for Board and 

management directed audits conducted in the 

past 10 years. Prior audit work has also noted 

generally sound revenue forecasting models, 

which serve as a basis for determining 

resources available for planned operating and 

capital expenditures. 

Finance is organized into five units: the Office 

of the Chief Financial Officer; Treasury, Debt, & 

Grants Management Unit; General Accounting Unit; Budget & Financial Analyses Unit; and the Financial 

Planning and Revenue Collection Unit. Exhibit 18 below is a breakdown of each divisions budgeted 

expenses for Fiscal Year 2023-24. 

EXHIBIT 18. BUDGET BREAKDOWN BY DEPARTMENT 

Source: Fiscal Year 2023-24 & FY2024-25 Operating and Capital Rolling Biennial Budget 

Finance allocates functional responsibilities to each of the five units as depicted in Exhibit 19 below. 

Attachment 1 
Page 37 of 7353



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 37 

EXHIBIT 19. FINANCIAL PLANNING & MANAGEMENT SERVICES DIVISION ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE  

 

Source: Fiscal Year 2023-24 & FY2024-25 Operating and Capital Rolling Biennial Budget 

Risk Analysis 

Finance has a relatively low level of funding and FTEs as compared to other departments, but is 

responsible for a significantly high level of cash or other high-risk assets such as revenue collection from 

various sources, significant cash and debt management responsibilities, and federal and state grant 

management. Most of the divisions within Finance perform functions that are common subjects of internal 

and external audit activities: grant management, accounting, cash receipts and disbursements and 

reconciliations, etc. Generally, each employs systems of internal controls to ensure compliance, fiscal 

integrity, and the prevention of fraud, waste, and abuse. As is typical in many local governments, Finance is 

subject to annual external audits, which focus on accounting functions and general financial-related internal 

controls and has been historically subject to a variety of internal audits over the years. 

Inherent risks associated with Finance include ensuring investment policies are fiscally sound and in line 

with best practices for ensuring compliance with debt and investment policies and asset allocation; 

engaging in effective cash management practices; complying with grants and increasing grant footprint; 

preventing and detecting theft; and considering the impact of cashiering operations on general accounting 

functions. Below, we present the key divisions/programs administered by Finance, the core responsibilities 

of each, and key factors contributing to the programs’ risk rating. 

 

Office of the Chief Financial Officer 

Serves as a partner to assist other departments in achieving their 
objectives. Facilitates necessary financial transactions, provides 
analyses and recommendations on decisions brought forth by 
operations, establishes controls that minimize financial risks, and 
drives change or improvements in business processes or practices in 
order to improve productivity.  

Budget: $ 2,097,214 FTE: 4 

Inherent Risks: Financial sustainability of Valley 
Water; regulatory compliance; the ability to prevent 
and detect potential fraud, waste, and abuse, or 
other misuses of Valley Water assets; and effectively 
providing reliable and transparent financial analyses 
to management, the Board, and the public.  

Attachment 1 
Page 38 of 7354



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 38 

Debt/Treasury  

The Treasury Unit Handles short-term and long-term debt management, including commercial paper 

programs and revenue-supported long-term projects. It also oversees treasury tasks such as bank account 

management, investments, cash management, and supporting small banks through Certificate of Deposit 

purchases. Inherent risks of the Debt/Treasury Services include interest rate, liquidity, credit, and other 

risks similar to other public sector treasury functions—and compliance with Board-adopted investment 

policies. 

Claims & Grants Reimbursement  

The Claims & Grants Unit is responsible for ensuring compliance and efficient processing of claims and 

grant reimbursements. This includes managing the coordination of claims, overseeing follow-ups, and 

streamlining the grant application and reimbursement processes. Inherent risks include ensuring 

compliance with grant requirements relating to timely grant disbursements, allowable uses grant funds, and 

potential delays in reimbursement from external grantors. To mitigate these risks, Finance is establishing a 

new division specializing in grant management to better coordinate and streamline the grant application, 

reporting, and receipting process. 

Treasury, Debt, Claims, & Grants Unit 

Oversees Districtwide treasury operations, debt financing, and grants 
programs. This involves managing an $82 million annual debt service 
budget, and producing required reports for bond covenants and 
regulatory compliance. Comprising three sections—Treasury, Debt, 
and Grants—the unit supervises bank accounts, investments, supports 
small banks, manages short-term and long-term debt, and streamlines 
compliance and claims processes for improved efficiency. 

Budget: $ 101,057,917 FTE: 9 

Inherent Risks: Liquidity risk in managing debt 
obligations; credit risk associated with debt issuers; 
compliance risks in managing claims and grants 
disbursements; potential that investment practices 
could exceed the bounds of Board-established 
investment policies; potential for fraud or misuse of 
grant funds; delays in reimbursement from external 
grantors. 

 

General Accounting Unit 
General Accounting includes the responsibility to manage the general 
ledger, accounts payable, payroll, and Valley Water’s enterprise 
financial system, Infor. General ledger responsibilities generally include 
all accounting and financial reporting requirements, in accordance with 
professional standards, and the reconciliation of all accounts. Accounts 
payable is charged with processing payments to Valley Water’s 
contractors, consultants, vendors, and staff expense claims, as well as 
administering petty cash and filing payment documents. Payroll 
processes the bi-weekly payroll for all Valley Water employees, 
employee benefits accounting, payroll tax withholdings, and 
submission of Federal and State reporting requirements. Financial 
Systems provide for the maintenance and security of payroll, benefits, 
human resources, and financial applications. 

Budget: $5,487,444 FTE: 19 

Inherent Risks:  High magnitude of financial 
exposure, including compliance with financial 
reporting requirements; the ability to provide efficient 
or effective support of financial support functions; 
compliance with grants and increasing grant 
footprint; integrity and effectiveness of internal 
controls related to fiscal transactions of all types;  
inefficient or inaccurate payroll processes resulting 
from reported system limitations of Infor; the 
potential for fraud, waste, and abuse; and integration 
issues with other financial systems. 

Attachment 1 
Page 39 of 7355



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 39 

General Ledger 

The General Ledger Unit administers all accounting responsibilities for Valley Water, the recording and 

reconciling of financial transactions; processing payroll, accounts payable, and journal entries; preparing 

financial statements; coordinating Valley Water’s annual financial audit; and managing the Infor system. 

Inherent risks primarily relate to the potential for inaccuracies in financial records and the potential for fraud, 

waste, and abuse.  

Accounts Payable 

The Accounts Payable Unit handles check runs, reviews all expenditures for proper authorization and prior 

approval, processes incoming requests for payments, manages payment schedules, and maintains 

accurate financial records while ensuring compliance with approval processes. Inherent risks in accounts 

payable activities include ensuring the integrity of internal controls over the use and expenditure of District 

financial resources to prevent and/or detect any potential inappropriate or unauthorized expenditure. This 

could include the potential for inadvertent or intentional duplicate or erroneous payments, vendor fraud and 

invoice manipulation, inadequate documentation for expenditures, or the potential for fraud, waste, or 

abuse. 

Payroll Compensation 

The Payroll Compensation Unit is responsible for payroll processing, including W-2s and other tax filings. 

The unit works closely with Human Resources to ensure accurate and timely compensation for employees. 

Inherent risks include payroll processing errors resulting from erroneous employee timekeeping, erroneous 

recordkeeping by Human Resources, inappropriate application of compensation rules as set forth in 

collective bargaining agreements or Valley Water policies (e.g., policies related to overtime or differential 

pay), or Infor system limitations. Most recently, concerns have been raised regarding the functionality of 

Infor in processing payroll, which has led to substantial manual processes by this Unit to ensure accurate 

and timely payroll. As a general rule, the infusion of substantial manual processes into what is normally a 

highly reliable and automated function introduces the potential for human error and increases the risk of 

payroll inaccuracies as well as fraud, waste, and abuse. 

Financial Systems Analysis 

The Financial Systems Analysis Unit works behind the scenes to manage and optimize the financial 

system, Infor, to ensure data accuracy, perform analyses, generate standard and ad hoc financial reports, 

and to address system-related challenges. Inherent risks associated with this function relate to maintaining 

effective segregation of duties (including system access and restrictive user profiles), ensuring the optimal 

efficiency of the system to enable financial staff to carry out their duties in an effective and efficient manner, 

and the potential for system failures or data integration problems. 

Attachment 1 
Page 40 of 7356



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 40 

 

 

Continual Improvement Unit 
Through Valley Water's Quality and Environmental 
Management System, the Continual Improvement team 
plays a crucial role in strengthening the CEO's leadership 
and offering vital support to the Board. This involves 
conducting audits as directed by the CEO and providing the 
Board with regular updates on the status of its continual 
improvement efforts.  

Budget: $782,804      FTE: 3 

Inherent Risks:  In general, there are not substantial risks 
associated with continuous improvement programs, at least as 
they relate to an organization’s core operations, because such 
programs tend to be independent of such programs. However, 
several factors can impede continuous improvement efforts 
within organizations, including a lack of independence or 
objectivity in facilitating improvement efforts, the need to 
balance potential improvement initiatives with the costs of such 
initiatives, the potential for continuous improvement processes 
to become rigid and burdensome, and the potential for change 
fatigue.  

Budget and Finance Analysis Unit 

This Unit manages the preparation of the annual operating budget, 
including Districtwide collaboration on funding strategies, developing, 
and executing the Annual Budget publication, assisting with the 
development of the five-year Capital Improvement Plan, maintaining 
multi-year financial models, forecasting and monitoring revenues and 
expenditures throughout the fiscal year, and coordinating with program 
and project managers throughout the year to provide budget and 
finance analyses on an ongoing basis. 

Budget: $ 2,700,568  FTE: 8 

Inherent Risks:  Projected growth in operating and 
capital expenditures, related debt, and overall 
sustainability; reliability of financial models and 
forecasts; reasonably accurate budget-to-actual 
monitoring and reporting; effectiveness of the Valley 
Water budget as a planning tool and as a basis for 
performance measurement; and efficiency of the 
biannual budgetary process. 

Financial Planning & Revenue Collection Unit 
Financial Planning prepares and manages long term financial plans 
and forecasts and drives the groundwater production charge setting 
process. This Unit is responsible for preparing detailed financial plans 
and forecasting models that both management and the Board rely 
upon to make long-term planning decisions regarding Valley Water’s 
infrastructure. 

Revenue Collection collects water revenue, property tax revenue, and 
benefit assessments for Valley Water. Water revenue is comprised of 
charges for groundwater, recycled, surface, and treated water usage. 
This includes billing and collection processes for various entities, 
including treated and groundwater retailers, water utility customers, 
loan owners, and surface water users. Property taxes and benefit 
assessments collected are the voter-approved Safe Clean Water 
Special Tax, Flood Control Benefit Assessment, State Water Project 
levy, and the allocated share of countywide 1% ad valorem property 
tax receipts. 

Budget: $ 3,177,720 FTE: 7 

Inherent Risks: The potential, in an environment 
affected by the Covid pandemic and climate change, 
that revenue forecasting will become increasing 
complex and challenging; changes in water demand 
affecting revenue projections; sustainability given the 
potential for substantial increases in capital project 
costs, and limitations on certain revenue streams; 
and balancing the need for rate adjustments with 
community and board expectations. 

Risks also include the potential that primarily manual 
and self-reported customer billing processes could 
lead to errors or otherwise under-collected fees; 
revenue leakage due to inaccurate metering or 
billing; collection difficulties for overdue accounts; 
risk of non-payment or late payment by customers; 
and the potential for fraud, waste, and abuse. 

Attachment 1 
Page 41 of 7357



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 41 

Risk Summary 

Most of the divisions in Finance perform functions that are common subjects of internal and external audit 

activities: financial analysis, revenue forecasting, accounts payable, accounts receivable, cash 

management, account reconciliations and accounting practices, grant management, cash investments, 

cash handling, etc. Generally, each employs systems of internal controls to ensure compliance, fiscal 

integrity, and the prevention of fraud, waste, and abuse. Nevertheless, given the transactional nature of 

Finance and the significant responsibility of Finance in managing Valley Water’s fiscal assets, much of the 

operational activities of Finance remains at the moderate-risk level. With these key factors in mind, we 

illustrate below the risk rankings of each division or program area in relation to one another. 

Exhibit 20. Program Risk Ratings 

 

Based on this assessment, there are several potential audit topics that warrant consideration for future 

audit planning.  

1) Grant management activities, including determining whether existing policies and procedures; 

systems of internal control related to the recording, tracking, and monitoring of grant funds to 

ensure full compliance and recovery; and staffing and system resources are sufficient to 

administer, optimize, and account for grant monies in an efficient and effective manner.  

Treasury

Grant Management

Budget

Financial Planning and 
Revenue Collection

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0

L
ik

el
ih

o
o

d

Impact

Attachment 1 
Page 42 of 7358



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 42 

2) Treasury operations, including evaluating cash management, investment, treasury functions, and

determining the extent to which investment and cash management activities adhere to best

practices and established investment policies.

3) Budget processes, including evaluating budget and financial planning protocols and practices, the

sufficiency of budgetary tools available to Valley Water management to monitor budget-to-actual

performance, and the overall efficiency and effectiveness of the District’s biennial budget cycle.

4) The efficiency and effectiveness of system integration between the Finance enterprise system,

Infor, and other information systems utilized to manage Valley Water fiscal activity.

5) The Completeness of policies and procedures, including how they are maintained, updated, made

available and communicated to all relevant parties.

6) Accounts receivable, including assessing the manual billing processes employed by Finance to bill

and collect from utility customers.

7) Financial analysis and forecasting practices, including the extent to which revenue forecasting is

consistent with best practices in an environment significantly impacted by the pandemic and

climate change, and the extent to which forecasting models and fiscal policies provide an effective

framework for ensuring long-term sustainability.

8) Payroll and compensation practices, including whether practices ensure total compensation and

payments to employees, including executive management and Board members, comply with

collective bargaining agreements and Board policies.

Office of Integrated Water Management 

With an approximate Fiscal Year 2023-24 

budget of $783 million—representing 75.8 

percent of the District’s overall budget—and 

619 FTE positions with Operations, the Office 

of Integrated Water Management (Integrated 

Water) is managed by the Office of the 

Assistant Chief Executive Officer (ACEO). The 

ACEO directly oversees Valley Water’s 

Watersheds and Water Utility Enterprise 

business areas, which are primarily 

responsible for achieving Valley Water’s 

primary goals—that is, to: 

1) To achieve a reliable water supply;

2) Improve flood protection; and

3) Ensure healthy and resilient

ecosystems.

Attachment 1 
Page 43 of 7359



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 43 

The Office of Integrated Water Management provides focused leadership to ensure a cohesive working 

relationship between its two major business areas—Watersheds and Water Utility Enterprises—and several 

cross-functional units, all with the aim of achieving the Board’s Ends Policies and goals. 

In Fiscal Year 2023-24, Integrated Water reported numerous accomplishments across various business 

areas. This includes developing the Funding Filters for Prioritization, a tool that aided the Board in making 

decisions regarding capital project funding; analyzing and prioritizing over 15 creeks for the Safe, Clean 

Water Project; completing 295 Computer-Aided Design (CADD) requests, nearly 50 percent more than was 

completed in Fiscal Year 2022-23; maintaining 64.85 acres of mitigation sites; implementing a new project 

management software solution for use by the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and capital project 

delivery teams; initiating numerous process improvements in conjunction with the recent completion of a 

performance audit of the CIP process; and, most importantly, meeting or exceeding drinking water 

standards, ensuring that all treated water delivered to customers surpassed all applicable primary drinking 

water requirements.  

Integrated Water is organized into two primary business areas and several smaller units that support these 

two business areas. Specifically, Integrated Water includes Valley Water’s Watersheds and Water Utility 

Enterprise business areas, as well as several units that support Valley Water’s capital infrastructure 

development: the Business Planning & Analysis Unit, CADD Unit, Business Support & Asset Management 

Unit, and the Dam Safety & Capital Delivery Division. Exhibit 21 below is a breakdown of the budget 

appropriations to each program area for Fiscal Year 2023-24.  

EXHIBIT 21. BUDGET BREAKDOWN BY BUSINESS AREA / UNIT 

 
Source: FY 2022-23 & Fiscal Year 2023-24 Operating and Capital Rolling Biennial Budget 

The organizational structure of Integrated Water is depicted in Exhibit 22. 

Attachment 1 
Page 44 of 7360



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 44 

EXHIBIT 22. OFFICE OF INTEGRATED WATER MANAGEMENT DIVISION ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

Source: Fiscal Year 2023-24 & FY2024-25 Operating and Capital Rolling Biennial Budget 

Risk Analysis 

Integrated Water plays a pivotal role in managing, safeguarding, and enhancing the region's water 

resources and infrastructure. It encompasses a wide range of divisions, units, and programs, each with its 

unique roles and responsibilities. However, this diversity also brings about a complex web of inherent risks 

that demand careful assessment and mitigation strategies to ensure Valley Water’s continued success in its 

mission. Below, we present the key business areas, divisions, and units administered by Integrated Water, 

the core responsibilities of each, and key factors contributing to its programs’ risk rating.  

OFFICE OF ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

The Office of the Assistant Chief Executive Officer leads and 

manages the Office of Integrated Water Management and 

facilitates coordination between the Watersheds and Water Utility 

business areas to achieve the Board’s Ends Policies and goals. 

This Office provides managerial support to ensure Valley Water’s 

projects and programs are achieved in an efficient and effective 

manner. 

Budget: $ 2,704,478 FTE: 4 

Inherent Risks:  Challenges related to financial 

planning and program implementation, the planning and 

execution of capital projects, the maintenance of 

existing infrastructure assets, compliance with 

regulatory requirements, and the efficient operation of 

both Watersheds and Water Utility programs.  

Attachment 1 
Page 45 of 7361



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 45 

BUSINESS SUPPORT & ASSET MANAGEMENT UNIT 
The Business Support and Asset Management Unit implements and 

continually improves asset management standards and information 

systems based on industry best practices. The unit manages Valley 

Water’s water utility, watershed, and administration asset management 

programs, and supports the users of Valley Water’s Computerized 

Maintenance Management System (CMMS), Maximo. In addition, the unit 

manages three Water Utility infrastructure master planning projects: The 

Water Treatment Plant, SCADA System, and Distribution System Master 

Plan Implementation Projects. The unit also manages a Safe, Clean 

Water project, F-8: Sustainable Creek Infrastructure for Continued Public 

Safety. 

Budget: $ 8,924,059 FTE: 11 

Inherent Risks: Facilitating efficient and 

effective asset management by ensuring 

accurate and reliable records of all District 

infrastructure assets, the condition of all assets, 

and a reliable plan to maintain all assets to 

optimize useful life. 

CADD UNIT 
The CADD Services unit is responsible for producing engineering drafting 

and design work, plan production standards, and managing computer-

aided design (CAD) software in support of Valley Water’s water resources 

facilities, flood management, pipeline infrastructure, and watershed 

management facilities. The unit develops in-house project design 

drawings for construction.  Services include creating 2D and 3D designs 

that combine information from different departments such as Survey, GIS, 

Right-of-Way, and Engineering. Additionally, the unit maintains current 

CADD Standards for Contractors and Engineers, assists in the quality 

control of all project drawings for construction, and verifies that CADD 

Record As-built drawings are completed per Valley Water standards for 

future project work. 

Budget: $ 2,891,420 FTE: 9 

Inherent Risks: If the CADD Services unit fails 

to produce plans or review the CADD work 

produced by consultants and contractors in a 

manner consistent with Valley Water’s plan 

production standards, it could affect the delivery 

and accuracy of construction and future 

maintenance efforts, and unnecessarily increase 

the cost of future capital projects, specifically 

during the planning phases. 

BUSINESS PLANNING & ANALYSIS UNIT 
The Business Planning and Analysis unit manages, plans, and oversees 

four major Valley Water-wide programs. This unit is responsible for Valley 

Water’s implementation of the Five-Year planning process for the Capital 

Improvement Program (CIP); Capital Project Management and Project 

Controls (CPMPC) Program; the Safe, Clean Water and Natural Flood 

Protection Program (Safe, Clean Water Program); and the District Lands 

Management Program, which was designed to establish and maintain a 

centralized framework to integrate the management of maintenance 

obligations on Valley Water-owned lands and easements, as well as 

those made through contractual commitments. 

Budget: $ 5,459,489 FTE: 12 

Inherent Risks: The cost-effective planning, 

analysis, and reporting related to a wide range of 

District capital projects; the ability to coordinate 

with a large number of divisions and units within 

Integrated Water, Finance, and Administrative 

Services to ensure accurate reporting and 

analysis; and the ability to ensure adequate 

administration of special funded programs to 

demonstrate that funds were expended in a 

manner compliant with program requirements. 

Attachment 1 
Page 46 of 7362



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 46 

Capital Improvement Program 

The Capital Improvement Program (CIP) serves as the steward of Valley Water's capital funding 

requirements for projects spanning Fiscal Year 2023/24 through Fiscal Year 2027/28. It plays a crucial role 

in documenting planned initiatives and aligning Valley Water's planning with the community. This program 

oversees various infrastructure projects totaling $9.52 billion, with an estimated $1.3 billion in external 

funding through partnerships and reimbursements. Additionally, the CIP requires the accurate management 

of financial records. Inherent risks associated with CIP programs include financial uncertainty due to 

reliance on external funding, potential project delays, the reliability of resources to meet project demands, 

the availability of project financing, and ensuring CIP plans are achievable—all of which could result in 

capital project costs that exceed District plans, raising sustainability questions. 

Safe Clean Water and Natural Flood Protection Program 

The Safe, Clean Water and Natural Flood Protection Program, approved through Measure S in 2020, 

allocates $47 million annually for six core priorities: ensuring a safe water supply, reducing waterway 

toxins, protecting against natural disasters, restoring habitats, providing flood protection, and supporting 

public health. It operates with oversight from an Independent Monitoring Committee and mandatory audits 

to assess cost-efficient outcomes. Inherent risks include substantially increasing capital project costs, 

effective project management and delivery protocols, and compliance with Program requirements. 

District Lands Management 

The District Lands Management Program handles Santa Clara Valley Water District property matters. This 

includes acquiring properties needed for current and future district projects and programs, establishing 

clear lands rights and obligations associated with all District real estate, establishing wildfire resiliency 

plans and policies, and establishing policies and plans for the long-term use of Valley Water properties. 

Before projects commence, the program ensures that some properties are leased at fair market rates to 

external parties. When District purposes require the use of a leased property, the program provides 

appropriate termination notices as mandated by law to make the property available for District use. 

Additionally, the program may oversee public auctions to sell District properties. To prevent conflicts of 

interest, it strictly prohibits leasing District real property to District employees, Board members, or 

immediate family members. Individuals can contact designated personnel for inquiries about the property 

leasing program or surplus properties. 

Inherent risks associated with the District Lands Management Program encompass strategic planning as it 

relates to the Program’s activities, and compliance with conflict of interest policies, and potential legal and 

regulatory obstacles in managing property acquisitions, leases, and sales, which may lead to delays or 

complications. The program also faces public scrutiny regarding property disposition decisions and must 

consider the financial implications of property transactions, including revenues from leases or sales. 

Managing land rights, obligations, and properties, particularly concerning wildfire resilience planning and 

policy development, is an ongoing risk, and the associated risk assessments can have implications for 

communities and real estate transactions. Effectively mitigating these risks requires strict adherence to 

legal requirements, transparent decision-making processes, and proactive measures to address disputes 

and ensure compliance in the responsible management of District lands. 

Attachment 1 
Page 47 of 7363



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 47 

Capital Project Management & Project Controls Program 

Capital Project Management & Project Controls Program is responsible for facilitating integration and 

configurations of ProjectMates with other systems—Okta, Vena, and Infor—or with a customized training of 

ProjectMates for project teams and management. The Program is also responsible for delivering the 

biennial training of workflows related to the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and Quality and 

Environmental Management System (QEMS) policies and procedures, as well as maintaining transparent 

communication through circulating a Quarterly Office of Integrated Water Management Newsletter. Inherent 

risks include risks associated with the planning and execution of capital projects, including budget control 

and adherence to project timelines, and the need to strike a balance between internal controls (as defined 

in QEMS) and efficient project management. 

DAM SAFETY & CAPITAL DELIVERY DIVISION 
The Dam Safety and Capital Delivery Division is responsible for 

planning, implementation, and management of the portion of 

Valley Water’s 5-year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

associated with dam construction and maintenance. This 

Division consists of two units—the Pacheco Project Delivery Unit 

and the Dam Safety Program Project Delivery Unit—which are 

responsible for capital project delivery and maintenance of Valley 

Water’s dams. The Division was moved under the Office of 

Integrated Water Management in Fiscal Year 2020-21 from the 

Water Utility Enterprise business area, but Water Utility 

continues to operate and control the assets. 

Budget: $ 127,068,630 FTE: 21 

Inherent Risks: Cost-effective contract, construction, 

and project management; maintaining the system in a 

cost-effective manner; aging infrastructure; significant 

deferred maintenance and workorder backlogs; 

managing consultants and contractors and controlling 

project costs; health and safety risks and high level of 

public interest and visibility; maintaining sufficient staffing 

resources; compliance and regulatory risks associated 

with environmental standards, and operational risks 

related to project execution; and completing projects on-

time and within budget.  

Pacheco Project Delivery 

The Pacheco Project Delivery Unit is responsible for managing the Pacheco Reservoir Expansion Project. 

This includes overseeing the expansion of Pacheco Reservoir to increase emergency water supplies, 

improve water quality, and provide ecosystem benefits to the region and the Sacramento-San Joaquin 

Delta. The unit collaborates with project partners, including San Benito County Water District and Pacheco 

Pass Water District, to secure funding and ensure successful project delivery. Their role involves project 

planning, environmental assessments, permitting, and coordination with state and federal regulators. The 

Pacheco Project is part of Valley Water’s efforts to increase overall water supply but faces numerous 

challenges, including environmental, legal, and financial challenges, as well as project delays. One such 

challenge relates to compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), which has led to 

project delays. To be viable, Valley Water must secure sufficient funding, address legal concerns, and 

navigate regulatory requirements before construction and overall project delivery can be considered. 

Dam Safety Program & Project Delivery 

The Dam Safety Program & Project Delivery Unit focuses on ensuring the safety and reliability of the water 

District's 10 major dams. The Unit conducts periodic special engineering studies, surveillance and 

Attachment 1 
Page 48 of 7364



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 48 

monitoring, dam inspections and maintenance, and emergency response and preparedness to safeguard 

the public from potential dam failures. This unit works closely with regulatory authorities and emergency 

response partners to meet dam safety goals. Inherent risks include the potential for dam safety issues, 

such as unexpected dam failures or structural problems, which can have catastrophic consequences. 

Environmental factors, including climate change and seismic activity, can also pose risks to dam safety. 

Ensuring a cost-effective maintenance program is essential, including assessing the condition of each 

asset, ensuring all preventative maintenance, and avoiding the deferral of required maintenance.  

WATER UTILITY ENTERPRISES BUSINESS AREA 
The Water Utility Enterprise (Water Utility) is primarily 

responsible for carrying out the core services related to the 

Board’s Ends Policy 2; that is, to provide a reliable, safe, and 

affordable water supply for current and future generations in all 

communities served. Directed by a Chief Operating Officer 

(COO), Water Utility is comprised of four divisions, each of 

which includes functional units that carry out the work of the 

division and the enterprise. 

The Office of the Chief Operating Officer, Water Utility, 

oversees the Water Utility Capital, Water Supply, Raw Water, 

and Treated Water divisions. The Office of the COO was 

allocated a budget of $2,208,942 for a total of three (3) FTE. 

The COO provides for management activities that promote 

communication, human resources development, budgeting, 

project efficiencies and process improvement, mentoring and 

recruitment, and supporting district-wide and special 

events/efforts that benefit the whole organization.  
 

Budget: $ 332,304,101 FTE: 308 

Inherent Risks: Inherent risks include the potential that 

Valley Water’s infrastructure could fail, impacting the 

quantity or quality of water available for Valley Water 

customers.  

While providing high-quality drinking water to Valley Water 

customers is regulated by county and state agencies, the 

delivery and maintenance of the capital infrastructure 

required to do so is not. Because of this, risks include cost-

effective contract, construction, and project management; 

maintaining the system in a cost-effective manner; aging 

infrastructure; the potential for  deferred maintenance and 

workorder backlogs; managing consultants and 

contractors control costs; health and safety risks and high 

level of public interest and visibility; maintaining sufficient 

staffing resources; compliance and regulatory risks 

associated with environmental standards; and completing 

projects on-time and within budget.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1 
Page 49 of 7365



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 49 

WATER UTILITY CAPITAL DIVISION 
The Water Utility Capital Division oversees the planning, 

management, and execution of crucial capital projects related 

to water infrastructure. This Division's responsibilities include 

project management and design, construction oversight, asset 

management, financial planning, environmental compliance, 

and community engagement. It is responsible for ensuring the 

efficient operation of water treatment plants, pipelines, and 

pumping stations, playing a vital role in delivering safe and 

clean water to the community. This includes managing and 

designing capital projects, providing districtwide construction 

management and inspection services, and implementing asset 

management programs to optimize asset performance and 

minimize maintenance costs. Additionally, the Division is tasked 

with navigating complex environmental regulations, obtaining 

permits, and engaging with the community to address concerns 

and obtain necessary approvals. 

Budget: $ 86,604,273 FTE: 68 

Inherent Risks: Capital project delivery responsibilities 

are carried out by several divisions within Valley Water—

Dam Safety, Watersheds, and Water Utility. The inherent 

risks remain the same for each: cost-effective contract, 

construction, and project management; managing 

consultants and contractors and controlling project costs; 

health and safety risks and high level of public interest and 

visibility; maintaining sufficient staffing resources; 

compliance and regulatory risks; and operational risks 

related to project execution and the ability to complete 

projects on-time and within budget. 

Further, the Division provides construction management 

and inspection services to all capital project delivery units, 

creating the potential that interdepartmental silos could 

create an impediment to efficient project delivery.  

Construction Services Unit 

Construction Services Unit is responsible for managing and overseeing the physical execution of capital 

projects related to water infrastructure, coordinating and supervising the construction activities, and 

ensuring all construction activities properly align with approved designs and project plans. The role of this 

Unit involves managing contracts with construction companies; overseeing contractors' work; and ensuring 

that projects are executed on time, within budget, and according to the required quality standards. This 

includes scheduling, cost control, safety compliance, and ensuring construction projects meet all regulatory 

and environmental requirements. Construction Services are essential in translating the designs and plans 

into tangible, functional water infrastructure, ensuring Valley Water’s water supply remains reliable and 

resilient. 

Inherent risks include construction delays due to unforeseen issues, such as weather events or unexpected 

site conditions, which can impact project timelines and budgets; concerns related to contractor 

performance, quality control, and safety compliance; ensuring construction activities align with complex 

environmental regulations and permitting requirements; and establishing robust protocols to monitor 

contractor activity, review costs for compliance with contract provisions, and ensure contractor 

accountability.  

Construction Inspection Services 

The Construction Inspection Services Unit ensures the quality, safety, and compliance of construction 

activities related to water infrastructure projects. This Unit is critical in conducting inspections, verifying that 

contractors adhere to project specifications, and addressing any deviations or issues that may arise during 

construction. Inspectors are tasked with monitoring work progress, conducting tests and quality checks, 

Attachment 1 
Page 50 of 7366



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 50 

and verifying that the construction process aligns with environmental regulations and permits. They serve 

as a bridge between the district, contractors, and regulatory bodies, providing real-time oversight to 

safeguard project integrity and ensure that construction work meets the required standards. 

Inherent risks include those associated with the dynamic nature of construction projects and the need for 

ongoing and thorough. The potential for disputes with contractors, schedule delays, and cost overruns due 

to unforeseen issues or changes in project scope is a significant concern. Environmental and safety 

compliance issues could lead to regulatory penalties or legal challenges, emphasizing the importance of 

thorough inspections and documentation. Staff turnover, staffing shortages, or fluctuations in workload can 

impact the division's ability to maintain consistent oversight across projects; this is true as it relates to 

Valley Water’s in-house personnel as well as contracted professional services firm. 

Treatment Plants Project Delivery 

This program is responsible for planning, designing, and implementing projects to improve, expand, or 

maintain Valley Water’s water treatment facilities. This includes potable water treatment plants, purification 

centers, and recycling facilities. The program manages the entire project life cycle, from initial feasibility 

studies and design phases to the construction and commissioning of treatment plants. Their role involves 

coordinating with various internal and external stakeholders, including engineers, contractors, 

environmental planners, and regulatory agencies to ensure treatment facilities meet water quality 

standards, environmental regulations, and safety requirements. Additionally, the program is responsible for 

optimizing treatment processes, responding to changing water quality conditions, and addressing 

challenges related to droughts, climate change, and evolving water quality regulations. 

In addition to the inherent risks associated with capital project delivery, risks also include challenges 

associated with the water treatment infrastructure's complexity and critical nature. Delays in project 

timelines due to permitting issues, design changes, or unexpected challenges can impact the District's 

capacity to provide clean and safe drinking water. Compliance with evolving water quality regulations and 

adapting treatment processes to changing environmental conditions pose ongoing challenges. 

Pipelines Project Delivery 

This program focuses on the planning, design, and execution of projects related to water conveyance 

through pipelines, and oversees the development of new pipelines, rehabilitating existing pipelines, and 

constructing pumping stations to ensure efficient water distribution throughout the District's service area. 

Responsibilities include conducting feasibility studies, hydraulic modeling, design and engineering, and 

project management. The program collaborates with multiple internal and external partners, including 

engineers, construction contractors, and environmental planners, to meet water supply demands, improve 

infrastructure resilience, and address the impacts of droughts and climate change. 

In addition to the inherent risks associated with capital project delivery associated with Valley Water’s 

critical water conveyance infrastructure, there is the potential for pipeline failures, which can lead to water 

supply disruptions, property damage, and costly repairs; aging pipelines, which can impact effectiveness, 

safety, and water quality; permitting delays and environmental concerns; and challenges related to 

multijurisdictional coordination. 

Attachment 1 
Page 51 of 7367



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 51 

WATER SUPPLY DIVISION 
The Water Supply Division is responsible for overseeing various 

aspects of water supply, including sourcing, treating, and 

distributing water to meet the demands of the region, as well as 

identifying future water supply needs, managing imported water 

supplies, and implementing water conservation and recycled 

water programs. It manages a diverse portfolio of water 

resources, including surface water from reservoirs, groundwater, 

and imported water supplies. The division collaborates with other 

internal departments and external agencies to ensure a 

sustainable water supply for the future, especially in the face of 

challenges like droughts and climate change. Responsibilities 

also encompass water quality monitoring, water rights 

compliance, and the development of policies and programs 

aimed at promoting water conservation and efficient use. 

Budget: $ 123,879,047 FTE: 36 

Inherent Risks: Ensuring water availability and quality, 

and mitigating the potential for contamination; prolonged 

droughts that lead to reduced water availability from local 

sources like reservoirs and groundwater basins; and 

potential supply interruptions and increased costs relating 

to the District’s reliance on imported water.   

Imported Water 

The Imported Water Unit protects, manages, and develops Valley Water’s imported water assets. Imported 

Water meets the operational needs for imported supplies by securing reliable contracts with water 

agencies, overseeing the conveyance and treatment of imported water, and coordinating the allocation and 

distribution of imported water to the region's water treatment facilities. The Santa Clara Valley Water District 

relies on imported water sources, such as the State Water Project and the Central Valley Project, to meet a 

portion of the region's water demands. Imported Water also involves compliance with regulatory 

requirements, monitoring water quality, and addressing potential risks associated with delivery 

interruptions, water quality issues, and changes in state and federal water policies.  

Inherent risks include supply reliability, regulatory compliance, potential disruptions caused by drought 

conditions, competing demands from other regions, and environmental restrictions that can limit water 

deliveries. Moreover, imported water contracts and agreements are subject to changes in state and federal 

policies, which can impact the availability and cost of imported water supplies.  

Recycled & Purified Water Program 

The Recycled & Purified Water Program develops and expands recycled and purified water program as 

well as leads planning and research studies. This program is responsible for managing and promoting the 

use of recycled and purified water resources within the District's service area. This program plays a role in 

diversifying the water supply portfolio and reducing reliance on traditional water sources. The Program is 

responsible for overseeing the treatment and distribution of recycled and purified water, managing 

infrastructure needs, ensuring compliance with water quality standards, and engaging in ongoing planning 

and research studies. The program works to expand the use of recycled water for various non-potable 

purposes, such as landscape irrigation, industrial processes, and groundwater recharge. Additionally, the 

Program actively engages with the community and stakeholders to promote water conservation practices 

Attachment 1 
Page 52 of 7368



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 52 

and raise awareness about the benefits of recycled water. Inherent risks include public perception, 

infrastructure management, and ensuring the safety and quality of recycled and purified water. 

Water Supply Planning & Conservation 

The Water Supply Planning & Conservation Unit is responsible for long-term water supply planning, 

demand forecasting, and implementing conservation initiatives. Their responsibilities include assessing 

current and future water demands, evaluating available water resources, and developing comprehensive 

water supply plans to meet the region's needs. Additionally, the Unit actively promotes water conservation 

efforts to reduce water consumption, protect water quality, and minimize the environmental impact of water 

use. Inherent risks include uncertainty in water availability due to factors like droughts and climate change, 

inaccurate demand forecasts, or the failure to consider potential supply constraints, leading to water 

shortages. The success of conservation initiatives depends on public participation and behavioral changes, 

which can be challenging to achieve. Additionally, external factors, such as regulatory changes and funding 

limitations, can impact the implementation of conservation programs. 

RAW WATER DIVISION 
The Raw Water Division maintains the Water Utility infrastructure, 

operates the Raw Water System, and ensures continued 

groundwater sustainability. The Division maintains Valley Water’s 

three potable water treatment plants, Advanced Water Purification 

Center, Campbell Well Field, recycled water pipelines in South 

County, and over 40 miles of large diameter treated water 

transmission pipelines. The Division provides civil engineering and 

corrosion control services in support of maintenance of these 

facilities, prepares the Annual Water Supply Operations Plan for 

the water supply of the County, performs planning and analysis for 

the operations of the Raw Water System, manages Valley Water’s 

groundwater basins and local water rights, and submits the 

regulatory reports needed for operation of the Raw Water System 

and Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) 

compliance. 

Budget: $62,789,879 FTE: 105 

Inherent Risks: Maintaining the system in a cost-

effective manner; managing consultants and contractors 

and controlling operating costs; aging infrastructure; the 

potential for deferred maintenance and workorder 

backlogs; and ensuring sufficient staffing resources.  

The Division's responsibilities, such as permitting private 

and municipal wells, can be affected by uncertainties in 

water usage, and the need for expanded metering 

creates logistical challenges.  

Raw Water & Pipeline Maintenance Engineering 

The Raw Water & Pipeline Maintenance Engineering team is responsible for ensuring the reliability and 

integrity of the water distribution system by providing engineering and support services for raw water and 

pipeline maintenance projects and programs. This team supports the overall maintenance efforts by 

monitoring ongoing corrosion control services, employing acoustic fiber optics for pipe integrity 

assessments, and leveraging technical expertise. It is also responsible for assessing the condition of critical 

assets, implementing predictive and preventative maintenance strategies, and responding promptly to any 

issues that could compromise the pipeline infrastructure's functionality. Inherent risks include challenges 

related to the aging infrastructure, the ability to accurately assess the condition of the District’s pipeline 

Attachment 1 
Page 53 of 7369



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 53 

infrastructure, and plan maintenance activities to ensure cost-effective and timely maintenance of District 

assets and the continued functionality and structural integrity of its pipelines.  

Raw Water Operations 

The Raw Water Operations Unit ensures the effective conveyance and management of water from various 

sources. This team operates 24/7, monitoring water levels, making real-time decisions on water allocation, 

and responding to changing conditions by operating the reservoirs, pump stations, and transmission 

pipelines to effectively manage water supplies. Their work is guided by forecasting and modeling, allowing 

for efficient water supply management and allocation. Additionally, the Unit is responsible for reporting on 

water rights to county and state authorities to maintain regulatory compliance and safeguard water 

resources for the region. 

Inherent risks include those primarily related to the region's climate variability and the potential for extreme 

weather events such as prolonged droughts or severe storms. These weather patterns can significantly 

impact water availability and necessitate rapid decision-making to meet supply demands while adhering to 

regulatory obligations. The reliance on imported water sources and surface water introduces challenges 

associated with supply interruptions and balancing water supply purchases with demand, especially during 

periods of high-water usage. 

Ground Water Management 

The Ground Water Management team is responsible for the oversight, protection, and sustainable 

management of groundwater resources within the region to provide accurate and timely information on 

current and forecasted groundwater conditions. Through monitoring and regulating groundwater usage, the 

Unit is responsible for ensuring compliance with state and local regulations, and managing the critical 

groundwater basins. This Unit is tasked with implementing the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 

(SGMA) and developing Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) to maintain the long-term health and 

sustainability of groundwater resources. In doing so, the Unit collaborates with other Valley Water divisions 

and external agencies to address groundwater quality issues and mitigate the risks associated with over-

extraction, land subsidence, and declining water tables. 

Inherent risks include those associated with water resource sustainability. Over-extraction of groundwater 

can lead to adverse consequences such as land subsidence, saltwater intrusion, and reduced water 

quality. Managing groundwater basins to achieve sustainability under SGMA regulations can be 

challenging, especially during extended drought periods when demand for groundwater increases.  

Wells & Water Measurement 

The Wells and Water Measurement Unit oversees the regulatory aspects of wells within the region, and is 

responsible for permitting and inspecting domestic, municipal, and large organization wells to ensure 

compliance with regulations. This Unit also manages the metering of wells, which is essential for monitoring 

water usage and maintaining accurate records; oversee the installation and maintenance of meters, 

ensuring that water users report their usage accurately, particularly for larger users; and manages the 

notification process for new well drilling and conducts inspections to verify that wells are used as permitted. 

Attachment 1 
Page 54 of 7370



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 54 

This unit also incorporates the responsibility of ensuring that wells/deep excavations do not harm the 

ground water resources and provides accurate measurements of water production. 

Inherent risks include the accurate measurement and reporting of water usage by various stakeholders. 

Ensuring that wells are metered correctly and that water users comply with reporting requirements can be 

challenging, particularly for domestic and small-scale users where the District is reliant on self-reported 

water usage data.  

Field Operations & Pipeline Maintenance 

The Field Operations & Pipeline Maintenance Unit is responsible for the reliable conveyance of raw water 

from various sources to treatment plants and other destinations. This division operates 24/7, overseeing the 

daily pumping and discharge of water, monitoring reservoir levels, reporting on water rights to regulatory 

authorities and ensuring compliance, and ensuring that water is efficiently moved to recharge basins, 

treatment plants, and reservoirs. Its work is guided by real-time data, forecasts, and modeling of storm 

events. Additionally, this division is involved in maintenance activities related to the water supply 

infrastructure that includes completing all mechanical, electrical, and control system maintenance of the 

distribution system infrastructure. Inherent risks are generally associated with the availability of reliable and 

accurate data to inform timely decision making, particularly when faced with extreme weather events that 

can impact the availability and quality of raw water.  

Treatment Plan Maintenance 

The Treatment Plan Maintenance Unit is responsible for the upkeep and efficient operation of treatment 

plants and treated water turnout facilities. This involves ensuring that treatment plants, which aid in the 

purification of raw water, are well-maintained to deliver high-quality treated water to customers. 

Maintenance activities include inspecting, repairing, and servicing various components of treatment plants, 

such as pumps, filters, chemical dosing systems, and control systems. Additionally, the unit monitors plant 

performance, conducts preventive maintenance to prevent breakdowns, and responds swiftly to address 

any operational issues. Inherent risks include the potential for equipment failures or malfunctions, which 

could disrupt the treatment process and impact the quality of treated water, as well as cause cost overruns. 

Such failures may result in service interruptions or compromised water quality, leading to public health 

concerns and regulatory violations.  

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1 
Page 55 of 7371



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 55 

TREATED WATER DIVISION 
The Treated Water Division is responsible for ensuring the 

high-quality treatment and distribution of potable water to the 

community. This division oversees the operation and 

maintenance of three potable water treatment plants and one 

purification center, as well as the Campbell Well Field to 

provide emergency backup supply to the treated water system. 

These facilities treat and purify surface water from reservoirs, 

ensuring it meets strict water quality standards. The Division 

works continuously to optimize water treatment processes, 

maintain equipment, and monitor water quality parameters to 

provide safe and reliable drinking water to the region. The 

Division provides technical expertise and leadership for all 

commissioning-related work to improve overall safety, quality, 

and reliability upon capital construction handover to Operations 

and Maintenance (O&M). In addition, the Division 

communicates regularly with water retailers, and maintains 

communication and conducts annual check-ins for ongoing and 

annual updates of drinking and recycled water regulations with 

the State Water Resources Control Board. 

Budget: $56,821,960 FTE: 93 

Inherent Risks: Ensuring the quality and reliability of the 

drinking water supply, compliance with stringent and 

evolving water quality standards; and ensuring the 

resilience of the water treatment facilities. 

Plant Maintenance Engineering & Commissioning 

Plant Maintenance Engineering and Commissioning is responsible for overseeing the commissioning of 

new facilities and equipment, ensuring they meet design specifications and function correctly. The Unit also 

provides ongoing engineering support for maintenance activities, helping to plan and execute maintenance 

projects to keep treatment plants in optimal condition. Inherent risks include ensuring compliance with 

stringent regulations and ensuring data used to evaluate and report on compliance is accurate and reliable.  

Water Quality 

The Water Quality Unit is responsible for ensuring that treated water meets or exceeds stringent water 

quality standards and regulations set by state and federal agencies. This Unit conducts in-depth water 

quality analyses, monitors critical parameters, oversees the disinfection and chemical treatment processes 

at treatment plants, and provides recommendations and tracks drinking water-related regulatory 

development. Similar to the Plant Maintenance Engineering and Commissioning Unit, inherent risks include 

ensuring compliance with stringent regulations and ensuring data used to evaluate and report on 

compliance is accurate and reliable. Any deviation from these standards, whether due to source water 

changes, equipment malfunctions, or human error, can have serious public health consequences and 

regulatory implications.  

Laboratory Services 

The Laboratory Services Unit conducts extensive water quality testing and analysis to monitor various 

parameters, assess the effectiveness of treatment processes, and detect any contaminants or anomalies. It 

Attachment 1 
Page 56 of 7372



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 56 

provides valuable data and insights through analytical and sampling services that inform treatment plant 

operations and support compliance with regulatory requirements, and manages the laboratory that tests 

water from the treatment plants, Silicon Valley Advance Water Purification Center, surface water reservoirs, 

and groundwater basins.  

Inherent risks relate to factors that could diminish the accuracy or reliability of reported results, such as 

failure to follow established protocols or laboratory contamination. Any errors or inconsistencies in the 

testing process can lead to incorrect assessments of water quality, potentially compromising public health. 

The unit must also keep pace with evolving water quality standards, emerging contaminants, and advances 

in analytical methods. Additionally, resource constraints can impact the capacity to conduct extensive 

testing and analysis, particularly during periods of increased demand or emergencies.  

Utility Electrical & Control Systems Engineering 

The Utility Electrical & Control Systems Engineering Unit is responsible for managing the electrical and 

control systems that govern the operation of treatment plants and water distribution facilities within the 

Santa Clara Valley Water District. This unit ensures the reliable and efficient functioning of critical 

infrastructure by overseeing electrical systems, instrumentation, and control systems, and plays a key role 

in optimizing energy usage, enhancing system automation, and ensuring that water treatment and 

distribution processes run smoothly. Inherent risks include risks associated with the reliable operation of 

electrical and control systems. Failures or disruptions in these systems can lead to operational 

inefficiencies, downtime, and potential impacts on water quality and supply.  

North and South Water Treatment Operations 

The North Water Treatment Operations and South Water Treatment Operations Units are responsible for 

the day-to-day operation and maintenance of water treatment facilities located in the northern region of the 

Santa Clara Valley Water District, including Penitencia Water Treatment Plant, Silicon Valley Advanced 

Water Purification Center, San Fransisco Public Utilities Commission-Valley Water Intertie facility, Santa 

Teresa Water Treatment Plant, Rinconada Water Treatment Plant, Campbell Well Field, the West and 

Snell/East Pipeline turnouts, and the East/Milpitas Pipeline turnouts. These facilities are essential for 

treating raw water from various sources and ensuring its quality before distribution to consumers. Both units 

operate around the clock to provide a consistent and reliable supply of treated water to the community. 

Inherent risks include risks associated with the consistent delivery of treated water to a dynamic and 

growing region. Variations in raw water quality, natural disasters, or equipment failures can disrupt the 

treatment process and impact water quality and supply. Ensuring that the treatment process consistently 

meets stringent water quality standards is essential, as any lapses can pose public health risks. The units 

must also manage the challenges of maintaining aging treatment infrastructure and adapting to changing 

regulatory requirements. Balancing the need for operational efficiency with emergency preparedness is 

crucial.  

 

Attachment 1 
Page 57 of 7373



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 57 

WATERSHEDS BUSINESS AREA 
The Watersheds Business Area is responsible for the 

stewardship and management of the region's watersheds and 

associated natural resources. The responsibilities include 

watershed protection, environmental conservation, flood risk 

reduction, and ecosystem restoration. Watersheds actively 

manages and maintains the region's creeks, rivers, and 

reservoirs to mitigate flood risks, promote water conservation, 

and preserve the ecological health of the area. This division 

also plays a role in ensuring water quality and availability for the 

community by managing source watersheds and undertaking 

projects that enhance the sustainability and resilience of the 

local ecosystem.  

The Office of the Chief Operating Officer leads and manages 

Watersheds to achieve the Board’s Ends, Goals, and 

Objectives. This includes providing Watersheds the leadership, 

staff, and funding to conduct the administrative aspects of 

Watersheds functions. In general, this provides for 

management activities that promote communication, human 

resources development, budgeting, project efficiencies and 

process improvement, mentoring and recruitment, and 

supporting Valley Water-wide special events/efforts that benefit 

the whole organization. 

Budget: $ 1,365,782 FTE: 2 

Inherent Risks: The management and conservation of 

natural resources and the mitigation of flood risks. Climate 

change, including the increasing frequency and intensity of 

extreme weather events, presents a significant challenge 

in terms of flood control and watershed management. 

Balancing the ecological health of watersheds with flood 

risk reduction efforts can be complex, as it requires careful 

planning to minimize adverse environmental impacts. 

Additionally, competing demands for water resources, land 

use changes, and habitat degradation pose ongoing 

challenges. Ensuring the long-term sustainability of water 

sources, maintaining infrastructure, and addressing water 

quality concerns within watersheds are essential tasks.  
 

 

  

Attachment 1 
Page 58 of 7374



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 58 

OFFICE OF WATERSHEDS STEWARDSHIP  

& PLANNING DIVISION 
The Office of Watersheds Stewardship & Planning Division is 

responsible for maintaining and preserving the ecological health 

of watersheds, ensuring flood risk reduction, and facilitating 

sustainable water resource management. It collaborates with 

various teams to conduct comprehensive environmental 

analyses, assess hydrological and hydraulic factors, and 

implement mitigation measures. Additionally, the division is 

responsible for reviewing community projects to ensure 

compliance with environmental regulations and the 

conservation of natural resources. 

The Division provides project and long-range planning for flood 

protection and stewardship; develops and oversees the 

integration of biological, hydrological, water quality, and 

geomorphological data into the planning, design, and 

construction of capital projects and operational programs; 

provides environmental planning, permitting, and monitoring 

services; ensures Valley Water’s compliance with the regional 

stormwater quality permit; protects Valley Water’s streams and 

other assets through implementation of the Water Resources 

Protection Ordinance, and collaborates with municipalities in 

the County to ensure development projects minimize impacts to 

Valley Water’s mission. In addition, the Division co-leads the 

Fisheries and Aquatic Habitat Collaborative Effort (FAHCE) and 

the Climate Change Action Plan, and ensures timely completion 

of Key Performance Indicators for the Safe, Clean Water and 

Natural Flood Protection Program’s surface water quality, 

environmental monitoring, and habitat enhancement and 

restoration priorities. 

Budget: $ 47,484,824 FTE: 82 

Inherent Risks: The management of environmentally 

sensitive areas, flood risk reduction, and the conservation 

of natural resources. Environmental planning and 

mitigation require navigating complex regulatory 

frameworks, including the California Environmental Quality 

Act (CEQA), ensuring compliance with various state and 

federal environmental regulations, and managing and 

mitigating the impact of climate change, extreme weather 

events, and natural disasters on watersheds.  

In addition to the environmentally-focused work of the 

Division, the Division is also responsible for the 

Community Projects program, which requires the 

evaluation of land use permit applications. The Program 

must review permits in a manner that safeguards 

environmental integrity, which can lead to potential 

conflicts with stakeholders and regulatory authorities.   

The changing dynamics of climate patterns and increasing 

environmental pressures further amplify the risks 

associated with watershed management. Additionally, 

resource allocation and budget constraints may impact the 

ability to implement comprehensive watershed 

management plans and projects. 

Environmental Planning  

The Environmental Planning Unit is responsible for conducting environmental impact assessments, 

environmental reviews (including Environmental Impact Reports or EIRs), and managing the permitting 

process for various projects. Environmental planners are tasked with ensuring that all activities within the 

jurisdiction of the Santa Clara Valley Water District comply with environmental regulations, particularly 

CEQA. They work closely with regulatory agencies, stakeholders, and project proponents to evaluate the 

potential impacts of projects, develop mitigation measures, and provide recommendations to minimize 

adverse environmental effects.  

Inherent risks relate to the complexity of environmental regulations and the potential for disputes and legal 

challenges. Projects in environmentally sensitive areas or those with the potential to impact natural 

resources can face scrutiny and opposition from concerned communities or environmental organizations. 

Ensuring the accuracy and thoroughness of EIRs is essential to avoid legal complications and regulatory 

Attachment 1 
Page 59 of 7375



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 59 

setbacks which can result in increased costs, and further construction delays. In light of recent events of 

the failure to adequately perform and assess the need for an environmental review, there is a risk of 

delayed construction, increased project costs, and the possibility of undue damage to the environment, 

contrasting the District’s mission “to provide Silicon Valley safe, clean water for a healthy life, environment, 

and economy.” 

Hydrology, Hydraulics, & Geomorphology 

The Hydrology, Hydraulics, & Geomorphology Unit specializes in the scientific assessment of water inflow 

and outflow patterns within watersheds. It is responsible for conducting hydrological and hydraulic analyses 

to predict and manage flooding events, support the water utility's functions, and calculate water capacity in 

reservoirs. Furthermore, this unit plays a significant role in studying geomorphological features, such as 

river channels and landforms, to understand their evolution and impact on water flow. By employing data-

driven methods and models, it contributes to informed decision-making and long-term planning to ensure 

the efficient management of water resources and the protection of communities from flooding. 

Inherent risks include risks related to the accuracy of predictions, the unpredictability of weather events, 

and evolving regulatory requirements. Incorrect predictions or incomplete assessments can lead to 

inadequate flood protection measures, potentially putting communities at risk during extreme weather 

events, which can increase costs associated with unplanned mitigation efforts. Additionally, climate change 

introduces uncertainties in precipitation patterns and water flow, which can challenge existing models and 

flood management strategies. 

Environmental Mitigation & Monitoring 

The Environmental Mitigation & Monitoring Unit consists of biologists and specialists responsible for 

overseeing and implementing mitigation efforts to offset the environmental impacts of various projects 

undertaken by the Santa Clara Valley Water District. It conducts comprehensive surveys, monitor mitigation 

efforts, and report their findings to regulatory agencies and other stakeholders. Inherent risks relate to 

ensuring the effectiveness of mitigation measures, meeting regulatory obligations, and addressing 

unexpected ecological changes. If mitigation measures are not adequately planned or executed, there is a 

risk of not achieving the desired ecological outcomes. The unit must also navigate a complex web of 

environmental regulations, and non-compliance can lead to regulatory sanctions, increased costs, and 

project delays. 

Community Projects Review 

The Community Projects Review Unit is responsible for evaluating and processing requests from various 

entities to work on properties within the jurisdiction of the Santa Clara Valley Water District. These requests 

often involve land use changes, permits for working on district-owned properties, or projects that may 

impact watersheds and water resources. The unit assesses the proposed projects to ensure they align with 

environmental regulations, land management policies, and the District's conservation objectives. They also 

engage in discussions with project proponents, regulatory agencies, and stakeholders to address potential 

issues and ensure that projects adhere to established guidelines. 

Attachment 1 
Page 60 of 7376



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 60 

Inherent risks include risks related to balancing land use needs, environmental protection, and regulatory 

compliance. Conflicting interests among project proponents, environmental advocates, and regulatory 

authorities can create challenges in reaching consensus and obtaining necessary approvals. Moreover, 

processing a large volume of project requests may strain available resources and potentially lead to delays 

in project reviews and increased project costs. The team must also remain vigilant in evaluating the 

potential ecological impacts of proposed projects and ensuring that mitigation measures are implemented 

effectively. 

WATERSHEDS OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE DIVISION 
The Watersheds Operations &Maintenance Division provides 

field maintenance, engineering support, vegetation 

management, and environmental services management for 

Water Utility Facilities and the Stream Maintenance Program 

(SMP) in the Lower Peninsula, West Valley, Guadalupe, 

Coyote, and Uvas/Llagas watersheds. The Office of 

Watersheds Operations and Maintenance provides 

administrative leadership and support for the four units that 

comprise the Division. The Division objective is to ensure that 

maintenance work is performed in accordance with 

regulatory permits and maintenance guidelines and is 

coordinated and consistent throughout the Division. 

Budget: $ 64,544,832 FTE: 120 

Inherent Risks: Infrastructure risks associated with the 

maintenance and upkeep of watershed facilities, such as 

dams, reservoirs, and flood control structures; safety risks 

due to potential hazards during operations and maintenance 

activities. 

Watersheds Field Operations 

The Watersheds Field Operations Unit is responsible for a wide range of outdoor tasks, including clearing 

small debris, adding vegetation, and performing other essential activities to preserve the health and 

integrity of the watershed environment. By ensuring that the watersheds are well-maintained, this unit 

contributes to the protection of water quality, flood control, and overall ecosystem health. They often work 

on-site, directly interacting with the natural landscape to keep it in optimal condition. 

With these roles and responsibilities, inherent risks involve exposure to environmental elements, physical 

hazards, and potential weather-related challenges. Employees working outdoors may encounter wildlife, 

unpredictable weather conditions, and rugged terrain, posing risks to their safety. Ensuring that workers 

have the necessary training and safety equipment is crucial to mitigate these risks. Moreover, the team 

must be attentive to potential environmental impacts of their activities, such as unintentional disturbances to 

sensitive habitats. Careful planning, adherence to best practices, and ongoing environmental monitoring 

are essential for minimizing these impacts. 

Operations & Maintenance Environmental Support 

The Operations & Maintenance Environmental Support Unit provides assistance to the field operations staff 

in ensuring that maintenance activities within Watersheds align with environmental regulations and 

standards. This unit conducts surveys, gathers data, and offers support in assessing the environmental 

impact of maintenance projects. They also collaborate with regulatory agencies, monitor mitigation efforts, 

Attachment 1 
Page 61 of 7377



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 61 

and help maintain the ecological balance of watershed areas, making sure that maintenance activities are 

carried out responsibly and sustainably. 

With these roles and responsibilities, inherent risks involve navigating complex regulatory frameworks, 

assessing potential environmental impacts, and ensuring compliance with ecological guidelines. Failing to 

adhere to environmental regulations or properly assessing the environmental consequences of 

maintenance activities can lead to regulatory violations and potential harm to the environment, as well as 

increased costs due to unplanned delays. Therefore, the team faces the inherent risk of regulatory non-

compliance and environmental damage. 

Operations & Maintenance Engineering Support 

The Operations & Maintenance Engineering Support Unit plays a critical role in providing engineering 

assistance and guidance to the operations and maintenance staff within the watershed areas. They help 

plan and execute maintenance projects, ensuring that they are carried out efficiently and effectively. By 

leveraging engineering expertise, this unit contributes to the long-term sustainability of watershed assets 

and infrastructure. 

With these roles and responsibilities, inherent risks include are primarily related to the successful execution 

of maintenance projects. These risks include project delays, cost overruns, and potential disruptions to 

watershed operations. Inaccurate project planning or engineering assessments can lead to unforeseen 

issues during project implementation, which may affect both the environment and operational efficiency. 

Vegetation Field Operations 

The Vegetation Field Operations Unit specializes in managing vegetation within watershed areas to reduce 

the risk of wildfires and ensure the overall health of the ecosystem. Their responsibilities include clearing 

and managing vegetation, particularly in high-risk areas where wildfires could pose a threat to water 

resources and infrastructure. By implementing effective vegetation management strategies, this team helps 

safeguard the watershed environment and minimize the risk of wildfire events that could impact water 

quality and availability. 

With these roles and responsibilities, inherent risks include risks related to the use of equipment like 

chainsaws, herbicides, and prescribed burns. There is a risk of physical injury to personnel during field 

operations, as well as potential environmental risks if herbicides are not used properly or if prescribed 

burns are not carefully controlled. Additionally, the team must consider the ecological impacts of vegetation 

management and ensure that it aligns with conservation objectives. To mitigate these risks, the team must 

follow strict safety protocols, conduct regular training, and employ environmentally responsible practices to 

manage vegetation effectively while safeguarding both personnel and the environment. 

  

Attachment 1 
Page 62 of 7378



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 62 

WATERSHEDS DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION DIVISION 

The Design & Construction Division within the Office of 

Watersheds is responsible for planning, designing, and 

overseeing construction projects aimed at enhancing and 

maintaining the Santa Clara Valley Water District's watershed 

infrastructure. This includes delivery of projects in Valley 

Water’s rolling 5-year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and 

Safe, Clean Water and Natural Flood Protection Program. This 

division manages various units that focus on different 

geographic regions and aspects of design and construction. 

Their responsibilities encompass project planning, design 

development, cost estimation, contractor management, and 

project execution. They work closely with multiple 

stakeholders to ensure that watershed projects meet 

environmental, regulatory, and operational requirements. The 

objectives of the Watersheds Design and Construction 

Division are to provide natural flood protection for residents, 

businesses, and visitors; and to protect and restore creek, 

bay, and other aquatic ecosystems. This Division also 

provides organization-wide support services for Surveying and 

Real Estate needs. 

Budget: $ 119,509,222 FTE: 65 

Inherent Risks: Include those related to project delays, 

cost overruns, environmental compliance, and regulatory 

approvals. The division must effectively manage complex 

construction projects that may involve various contractors, 

designs, and environmental considerations. Delays in 

project completion or unexpected issues during construction 

can result in increased costs and potential regulatory non-

compliance. There is the possibility of environmental risks 

related to mitigating potential impacts on natural 

ecosystems during construction. Additionally, the division 

must navigate regulatory agencies and meet stringent 

environmental standards to ensure that projects do not 

harm sensitive ecosystems within the watershed areas. 

Design & Construction Unit 

The Design & Construction Unit is divided into six distinct units, each responsible for specific geographic 

regions and aspects of watershed design and construction. These units handle a wide range of projects, 

from infrastructure improvements to environmental enhancements, within their designated areas. They 

manage the entire project lifecycle, from initial planning and design to construction oversight and project 

completion. Each unit collaborates with local communities, regulatory agencies, and other stakeholders to 

ensure that projects are executed effectively and in compliance with relevant standards. 

With these roles and responsibilities, inherent risks for all Design & Construction Units include risks related 

to project complexity, resource allocation, and compliance with environmental regulations. Managing a 

diverse portfolio of projects across different geographic regions requires effective resource allocation and 

coordination. Delays, budget overruns, or issues with project execution can pose risks to project success. 

Moreover, ensuring that projects align with environmental standards and community expectations is a 

constant challenge. Failure to meet these requirements can result in regulatory penalties, environmental 

harm, and reputational damage. 

Land Surveying & Mapping 

The Land Surveying & Mapping Unit provides essential support for accurate surveying, mapping, and 

geospatial data management. This unit is responsible for ensuring that project designs are based on 

precise spatial information and that construction activities are executed with accuracy. They are also 

responsible for maintaining up-to-date land records, property boundaries, and geospatial data, which are 

essential for project planning and execution. 

Attachment 1 
Page 63 of 7379



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 63 

With these roles and responsibilities, inherent risks primarily include the accuracy and integrity of spatial 

data. Errors or inconsistencies in surveying and mapping can lead to costly design modifications, 

construction issues, and disputes over property boundaries. Moreover, keeping geospatial data up to date 

is a continuous challenge, as environmental changes and new developments can impact the accuracy of 

existing records.   

Real Estate Services 

Real Estate Services Unit is responsible for managing land acquisition, easements, property rights, and 

other real estate-related matters for watershed projects. This unit is responsible for acquiring the necessary 

land and property rights to carry out construction and environmental initiatives within the watershed areas. 

They work closely with property owners, negotiate agreements, conduct appraisals, and oversee land 

transactions to ensure that projects have the required access and rights to carry out work. 

With these roles and responsibilities, inherent risks include those that primarily relate to property 

negotiations, legal complexities, and budget considerations. Acquiring land and property rights can be a 

time-consuming process, and negotiations may encounter resistance from property owners or regulatory 

hurdles. Budget overruns can occur if property values are higher than anticipated or if negotiations stall. 

Additionally, legal challenges related to eminent domain or property disputes can pose significant risks. 

Risk Summary 

Most of the divisions and programs within Integrated Water perform functions that are central to the mission 

and purpose of Valley Water, and would be characterized as moderate- to high-risk. Ultimately, this risk 

assessment identified a small number of audit topics that would cover the bulk of Integrated Water’s 

operations. Integrated Water consumes 80 percent of Valley Water’s budget, with substantial resources 

dedicated to the District’s capital infrastructure, including capital project delivery and maintenance. 

Specifically, capital project delivery encompasses six distinct organizational units within Integrated Water 

and maintenance operations encompass three organizational units. Decentralization can prove problematic 

in a variety of ways: project management practices could be inconsistent; parties fulfilling different roles, 

such as construction managers and project managers, may not be on the same page in working with 

contractors; communication could falter; and it could constrain flexibility in assigning personnel across 

functional lines.  

Further, with substantial resources dedicated to capital project delivery, a 2023 performance audit of the 

Capital Improvement Program raised concerns regarding the availability of staffing resources to carry out 

the capital projects planned for the District. Hiring substantial project delivery personnel will require 

additional support and administrative personnel (Human Resources, Facilities, Information Technology), 

and even if Valley Water outsources project delivery activities, additional in-house staffing resources may 

be required to manage and oversee the consultants to ensure cost and quality control.  

Finally, Integrated Water is responsible for achieving Valley Water’s core mission and goals. The Office of 

Integrated Water Management faces a range of interconnected risks that stem from the complexity of its 

responsibilities, regulatory compliance demands, and financial considerations. Addressing these risks 

requires a holistic approach that emphasizes effective communication, robust project management, 

Attachment 1 
Page 64 of 7380



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 64 

environmental stewardship, and sound financial planning. Because of this, we find it prudent to prioritize 

performance audits related to the operations of Integrated Water. With this in mind, we illustrate below the 

risk rankings of each division or program area in relation to one another. 

EXHIBIT 24. PROGRAM RISK RATINGS 

 

Based on this assessment, there are several potential audit topics that warrant consideration for future 

audit planning.  

1) Valley Water’s captial project delivery activities, including the District’s overall approach to project 

and construction management, the contract vehicles employed on capital projects, methods for 

monitoring contractors and evaluating contract compliance, and execution. The factors may include 

project timelines, budget management, staffing resources, inter-departmental coordination, 

contractor performance, and compliance with environmental and regulatory requirements for 

capital projects within the watersheds. 

2) Valley Water’s infrastructure maintenance programs, including assessing Valley Water’s methods 

for developing and maintaining asset inventories; determining the condition of existing assets; 

scheduling predictive and preventative maintenance; monitoring maintenance backlogs; work order 

Dam Safety and Capital 
Delivery

Business Support and 
Asset Management

CADD Unit

Business Planning and 
Analysis

Treated Water

Raw Water

Water Utility Maintenance

Water Utility Capital 
Project Delivery

Water Supply

Stewardship and Planning 
Division

Watershed Design & 
Construction

Land Surveying and 
Mapping

Real Estate Services

Watershed O&M

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0

L
ik

el
ih

o
o

d

Impact

Attachment 1 
Page 65 of 7381



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 65 

scheduling; the extent to which Valley Water relies on outsourced service providers to augment in-

house resources; how well inventories are planned, maintained, and optimized to enhance overall 

operational efficiencies; the use of asset management software or systems to extend the lifespan 

of critical infrastructure while minimizing operational costs; and the allocation of resources for 

ongoing maintenance to ensure the continued functionality and safety of infrastructure assets. 

3) The Community Projects Unit’s processes for receiving applications for permits, processing and 

issuing permits, and measuring performance in meeting established goals. 

4) Valley Water’s real estate management activities, including the responsibilities of both the Real 

Estate Unit within Watersheds and the District Lands Management Program within Integrated 

Water Management, with the intent to evaluate Valley Water’s overarching approach to managing 

real estate assets. 

5) Valley Water’s Watershed management practices, including the effectiveness of Watersheds in 

managing and preserving natural resources within the region's watersheds. This may cover 

evaluating the impact of environmental conservation efforts, flood risk reduction measures, and 

ecological restoration initiatives. 

6) Valley Water’s flood control infrastructure, focusing on the maintenance and performance of flood 

control infrastructure such as dams, reservoirs, and levees. This could involve assessing the 

condition of these structures, compliance with safety standards, and preparedness for extreme 

weather events. 

7) Valley Water’s environmental compliance may include examining the District's adherence to 

environmental regulations and permits concerning watershed management. This might involve 

evaluating how well Valley Water manages ecological preservation, land use, and habitat 

protection within the watersheds. 

8) Valley Water’s emergency response and preparedness, concentrating on the readiness and 

effectiveness of Water Utility Enterprises' emergency response and preparedness plans. It would 

assess the procedures in place to respond to natural disasters, water supply disruptions, and other 

emergencies, such as COVID-19, including communication protocols, resource allocation, and 

coordination with local authorities to ensure uninterrupted service during crises. 

 

Attachment 1 
Page 66 of 7382



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 66 

Risk Assessment Results 

A Risk Assessment for audit planning purposes is intended to identify ways to optimize the value of limited 

audit resources. This includes identifying “high-risk” programs or operations—e.g., those involving the most 

resources, impacting the most residents, experiencing the greatest challenges, etc.—but it is not limited to 

identifying “high-risk” programs or operations. In addition to identifying Valley Water programs that are 

considered to be high- or moderate-risk for inclusion in the audit plan, consideration must also be given to 

ensuring broad coverage over a defined period of time. Below, we provide recommendations for the 

consideration of the Valley Water Board of Directors in the development of the Fiscal Year 2023-24 through 

Fiscal Year 2025-26 Three Year Audit Plan. 

In considering the departmental profiles described in the prior section, we shift to a broader view of our 

assessment of risk throughout the District. In Exhibit 25 we provide a districtwide heat map, differentiating 

our assessment of risk among each of Valley Water’s key programs and operations. In the lower left corner, 

we have several units or programs that present relatively low risk, including certain departmental 

administrative operations, the Office of the Clerk of the Board, the Office of the District Counsel, and other 

lower-risk operations. In the upper right corner, where the yellow meets the red, we find several divisions or 

programs for which we find reason to prioritize a performance audit. These include those programs or 

operations involving the most resources and having a substantial impact on Valley Water. The District’s 

internal service programs tend to fall within the moderate-risk category.  

EXHIBIT 25. DISTRICTWIDE PROGRAM RISK RATINGS 

 

District
Counsel

Risk Management

External
Affairs

Safety & Security

Information Technology

Purchasing & 
Contracting

Business Customer 
Support 

Equipment Management 

Facilities 
Management

Human 
Resources

Treasury

Grant Management

Budget

General 
Accounting 

Dam Safety and 
Capital Delivery

Business Support and 
Asset Management

CADD

Business Planning & Analysis

Treatment Plants

Raw Water

Operations & 
Maintenance

Capital Project Delivery

Water Supply

Stewardship 
& Planning

Land Surveying 
& Mapping

Real 
Estate …

1

2

3

4

5

1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0

L
ik

el
ih

o
o

d

Impact

Attachment 1 
Page 67 of 7383



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 67 

It is important to recognize, however, that effective audit plans do not solely focus on program areas that 

fall into the high-risk category. If this were the case, the same programs would be audited year after year. 

Rather, an effective audit plan ensures adequate coverage throughout the Valley Water’s departments and 

programs. To achieve this, we recommend establishing an auditing cycle that ensures that the 

performance, programs, and/or activities of every department or office are audited, at least in part, on a 

periodic basis—such as on a three-year cycle.  

We present in Appendix A, a list of all potential performance audits identified in this report, which we 

propose shall represent the complete Fiscal Year 2023-24 through Fiscal Year 2025-26 Three Year Audit 

Plan. This list of audit engagements addresses every department within Valley Water, and provides a 

balance between internal service programs and those departments that fulfill Valley Water’s core 

responsibilities—the Integrated Water, Watershed, and Water Utility business areas. 

These audit topics are proposed as audit priorities for the Board Audit Committee’s consideration. It is 

recognized, however, that prior to establishing each annual audit plan, the Independent Board Auditor will 

seek input from the Board Audit Committee and members of the Board to identify potential changes to the 

three-year plan and before determining the specific audits to be included in each annual audit plan. This 

allows for continued input and routine updating to the audit plan to ensure it addresses current and 

emerging challenges faced by Valley Water.  

Attachment 1 
Page 68 of 7384



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 68 

Appendix A. Proposed Three-Year Audit Plan 

This risk assessment resulted in the identification of 32 potential audits for consideration of the Valley 

Water Board of Directors. The Independent Board Auditor recommends the inclusion of these audit topics 

in the 2024-2026 Three-Year Audit Plan. 

Office of the Chief Executive Officer 

1) The District’s overall approach to performance measurement, the purpose of which would be to 

identify ways to build upon exiting performance metrics in a manner that provides the Board 

reasonable assurances that metrics exist to evaluate progress to achieving Ends Policies, as well 

as to evaluate the overall efficiency and effectiveness of Valley Water operations.  

2) The District’s overall compliance with Board policies, including Board Governance Policies, 

Ends Policies, and Executive Limitations Policies.  

Office of the Clerk of the Board 

3) Evaluate the Office’s business processes, information systems, and workload management 

practices to identify potential inefficiencies or opportunities for improvement in the Office’s 

operational activities and administrative functions. 

Office of District Counsel 

4) Evaluate the Office’s business processes and information systems to identify potential 

inefficiencies or opportunities for improvement in the Office’s administrative functions.  

5) Evaluate risk management practices, including the District’s reliance on third-party administrators 

and service providers, risk retention and transfer evaluations, claims processing, and workplace 

health and safety programs, as well as existing workload demands and future opportunities to 

enhance risk management operations in a growing District government. 

Administrative Services 

6) Information technology is generally considered to be a moderate- to high-risk function in any 

government organization, and recommended performance audits typically focus on: 

a. Cybersecurity and network hygiene; 

b. Data management protocols; 

c. Customer service efficiency; 

d. Disaster recovery planning; 

e. Cost-effectiveness of operations, including contracting and purchasing; and 

f. Information technology project management policies, processes, and practices, and the 

consistency of the IT Department’s efforts with best practices. 

Attachment 1 
Page 69 of 7385



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 69 

7) Determine whether the District’s human resources management activities are consistent with 

industry standards; sufficient to ensure compliance with federal, state, and local laws and 

regulations; effective in attracting, retaining, and motivating a highly talented, qualified, and 

effective workforce; and appropriately resourced and right-sized for Valley Water. This should 

include key elements of human resources management, such as policies and procedures related to 

and its administration of the following: 

a. Hiring and recruiting; 

b. Classification and compensation; 

c. Employee recordkeeping; 

d. Human Resources Information System functionality and system controls; 

e. Employee relations and performance management; 

f. Benefits administration; 

g. Workplace investigations; 

h. Professional and workforce development, training, and succession planning; 

i. State and federal compliance. 

8) The administration of compensation practices to ensure employer costs are appropriately 

controlled by determining whether benefit enrollment processes appropriately control employee 

enrollment and cost-sharing, including the verification of dependent eligibility, and the recording of 

employee compensation within Infor to ensure compensation (including bonuses and other 

differential pay) are appropriately approved and authorized. 

9) Cashiering processes, including those performed through differing information and cashiering 

systems, the impact that staff turnover has had on cashiering operations, and the role of Finance 

and Administration in ensuring adequate internal and system controls associated with each. 

10) Valley Water’s facilities maintenance program, including evaluating the Department’s ongoing 

control, monitoring, assessment, and maintenance of Valley Water facilities and properties to 

identify opportunities to enhance efficiencies and protect District assets. 

11) Valley Water’s equipment management program, including determining the extent to which the 

acquisition, maintenance, and control of equipment and fleet vehicles are performed in a manner 

consistent with best practices, controls over sensitive assets are effective to prevent misuse, 

routine and preventive maintenance is performed in accordance to acceptable guidelines, the 

potential for abuse of District vehicles/fuel/equipment is appropriately mitigated, and practices are 

both efficient and effective. 

12) The overall efficiency of the Emergency, Safety, & Security Division, and the extent to which the 

Division carries out its responsibilities in a manner consistent with best practices and regulatory 

requirements. As well as assessing the adequacy of emergency preparedness in the face of 

situations such as unusual weather events, COVID-19, strikes, recessions, and climate change. 

Attachment 1 
Page 70 of 7386



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 70 

13) Warehouse operations, including the processes and protocols for inventory acquisition and 

management, conducting inventory audits, and otherwise controlling assets held in inventory, and 

the efficiency and effectiveness of such processes.  

14) The practices of the Business Customer Support program, including its business and workload 

management practices, to identify potential inefficiencies or opportunities for improvement in the 

program’s operational activities and administrative functions. 

15) Procurement activities, including General Services’ practices relating to the following:  

a. Ensuring consistency with Valley Water policies, procedures, and other relevant guidance; 

b. Proper segregation of duties with accounts payable functions and operational activities; 

c. Consistency with best practices;  

d. Efficiency in executing procurements in a manner that meets districtwide needs;  

e. Timeliness of contracting and procurement practices, including the identification of 

potential bottlenecks;  

f. Evaluating the appropriateness of the procurement vehicles used for different types of 

procurements, including the purchases of goods and supplies, professional services, 

construction contractors, operations and maintenance contractors, and other types of 

procurements; and 

g. Benchmarking research, including the extent to which Valley Water’s procurement 

practices compare with other public sector agencies. 

External Affairs 

16) Evaluate the Office’s business processes, information systems, and workload management 

practices to identify potential inefficiencies or opportunities for improvement in the Office’s 

operational activities and administrative functions. 

Finance 

17) Grant management activities, including determining whether existing policies and procedures; 

systems of internal control related to the recording, tracking, and monitoring of grant funds to 

ensure full compliance and recovery; and staffing and system resources are sufficient to 

administer, optimize, and account for grant monies in an efficient and effective manner.  

18) Treasury operations, including evaluating cash management, investment, treasury functions, and 

determining the extent to which investment and cash management activities adhere to best 

practices and established investment policies.  

19) Budget processes, including evaluating budget and financial planning protocols and practices, the 

sufficiency of budgetary tools available to Valley Water management to monitor budget-to-actual 

performance, and the overall efficiency and effectiveness of the District’s biennial budget cycle.  

20) The efficiency and effectiveness of system integration between the Finance enterprise system, 

Infor, and other information systems utilized to manage Valley Water fiscal activity. 

Attachment 1 
Page 71 of 7387



 

SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 71 

21) The Completeness of policies and procedures, including how they are maintained, updated, 

made available and communicated to all relevant parties. 

22) Accounts receivable, including assessing the manual billing processes employed by Finance to 

bill and collect from utility customers. 

23) Financial analysis and forecasting practices, including the extent to which revenue forecasting is 

consistent with best practices in an environment significantly impacted by the pandemic and 

climate change, and the extent to which forecasting models and fiscal policies provide an effective 

framework for ensuring long-term sustainability. 

24) Payroll and compensation practices, including whether practices ensure total compensation and 

payments to employees, including executive management and Board members, comply with 

collective bargaining agreements and Board policies. 

Integrated Water Management 

25) Valley Water’s captial project delivery activities, including the District’s overall approach to 

project and construction management, the contract vehicles employed on capital projects, methods 

for monitoring contractors and evaluating contract compliance, and execution. The factors may 

include project timelines, budget management, staffing resources, inter-departmental coordination, 

contractor performance, and compliance with environmental and regulatory requirements for 

capital projects within the watersheds. 

26) Valley Water’s infrastructure maintenance programs, including assessing Valley Water’s 

methods for developing and maintaining asset inventories, determining the condition of existing 

assets, scheduling predictive and preventative maintenance, monitoring maintenance backlogs, 

work order scheduling, the extent to which Valley Water relies on outsourced service providers to 

augment in-house resources, and how well inventories are planned, maintained, and optimized to 

enhance overall operational efficiencies. As well as including evaluation of the use of asset 

management software or systems to extend the lifespan of critical infrastructure while minimizing 

operational costs. Maintenance assessments may include focusing on maintenance schedules, 

preventive maintenance programs, inspection procedures, and the allocation of resources for 

ongoing maintenance to ensure the continued functionality and safety of infrastructure assets. 

27) The Community Projects Unit’s processes for receiving applications for permits, processing and 

issuing permits, and measuring performance in meeting established goals. 

28) Valley Water’s real estate management activities, including the responsibilities of both the Real 

Estate Unit within Watersheds and the District Lands Management Program within Integrated 

Water Management, with the intent to evaluate Valley Water’s overarching approach to managing 

real estate assets. 

29) Valley Water’s Watershed management practices, including the effectiveness of Watersheds in 

managing and preserving natural resources within the region's watersheds. This may cover 

evaluating the impact of environmental conservation efforts, flood risk reduction measures, and 

ecological restoration initiatives. 

Attachment 1 
Page 72 of 7388



SJOBERGEVASHENK P a g e  | 72 

30) Valley Water’s flood control infrastructure, focusing on the maintenance and performance of

flood control infrastructure such as dams, reservoirs, and levees. This could involve assessing the

condition of these structures, compliance with safety standards, and preparedness for extreme

weather events.

31) Valley Water’s environmental compliance may include examining the District's adherence to

environmental regulations and permits concerning watershed management. This might involve

evaluating how well Valley Water manages ecological preservation, land use, and habitat

protection within the watersheds.

32) Valley Water’s emergency response and preparedness, concentrating on the readiness and

effectiveness of Water Utility Enterprises' emergency response and preparedness plans. It would

assess the procedures in place to respond to natural disasters, water supply disruptions, and other

emergencies, such as COVID-19, including communication protocols, resource allocation, and

coordination with local authorities to ensure uninterrupted service during crises.

Attachment 1 
Page 73 of 7389



90



Prepared by:
Sjoberg 
Evashenk 
Consulting

SANTA CLARA 
VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

DISTRICTWIDE RISK ASSESSMENT

DRAFT REPORT

OCTOBER 18, 2023
BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

DRA=

Attachment 2 Page 1 of 791



 Risk Assessment Repor t. Board Audit Committee (BAC) Charter requires that 
the Chief Audit Executive conduct an organization-wide risk assessment at least 
every three years.

 Three-Year Audit Plan. The risk assessment results in a list of potential audit 
topics that will become the three-year audit plan. This plan will go before the 
Board for approval.

 Annual Audit Plan. Annually, the Chief Audit Executive will recommend to the 
BAC and to the Board specific audit topics from the audit plan to be conducted 
during the fiscal year. 

PROJECT OBJECTIVES

SJOBERGEVASHENK

Attachment 2 
Page 2 of 7

92



 Obtained and evaluated current and historical background information, 
including information available through the Valley Water website, program 
descriptions, budget documentation, strategic plans and annual reports, and 
other relevant documentation.

 Interviewed nearly 30 members of the Valley Water management team to 
gather information about District operations, programs, responsibilities, and 
challenges.

 Identified key auditable units, focusing on each of Valley Water’s 
departments:

PROJECT APPROACH

SJOBERGEVASHENK

 Office of the Chief Executive
Officer

 Office of the District Counsel

 Office of the Clerk of the Board

 Administrative Services

 External Affairs

 Finance

 Office of Integrated Water

 Watersheds

 Water Utility Management

Attachment 2 
Page 3 of 7

93



PROJECT APPROACH (CONT’D)

SJOBERGEVASHENK

Attachment 2 
Page 4 of 7

94



 Prepared “risk profiles” for each Department, including:

 Organizational structure and general indicators of the size of the Department—
e.g., budget and FTE allocation.

 Primary purpose, core functions, responsibilities, and strategic goals of the
Department.

 Inherent risks and general concerns associated with the Department’s
operations.

 Overall assessment of risk associated with the Department’s operations.

 Potential audit topics addressing the responsibilities and inherent risks
associated with each Department.

PROJECT APPROACH (CONT’D)

SJOBERGEVASHENK

Attachment 2 
Page 5 of 7

95



AGENCY-WIDE RISK RATINGS

SJOBERGEVASHENK

 This Risk Assessment resulted in XX potential audit topics across Valley Water’s 
departments and business areas.

District
Counsel

Risk Management

External
Affairs

Safety & Security

Information Technology

Purchasing & 
Contracting

Business Customer 
Support

Equipme…

Facilities 
Management

Human 
Resources

Treasury

Grant Management

Budget

General 
Accounting 

Dam Safety 
and Capital …Business Support and 

Asset Management

CADD

Business …

Treatment Plants

Raw Water

Operations & Maintenance

Capital Project Delivery

Water Supply

Stewardship 
& Planning

Land Surveying & 
Mapping

Real Estate 
Services

1

2

3

4

5

1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact

Attachment 2 
Page 6 of 7

96



George Skiles, Partner
Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting

455 Capitol Mall, Suite 700
Sacramento, CA 95814

(916) 443-1300
george@secteam.com

SJOBERGEVASHENK

Attachment 2 
Page 7 of 7

97

mailto:george@secteam.com


98



Santa Clara Valley Water District

File No.: 23-1104 Agenda Date: 10/18/2023
Item No.: 4.2.

COMMITTEE AGENDA MEMORANDUM
Board Audit Committee

Government Code § 84308 Applies:  Yes ☒   No ☐
(If “YES” Complete Attachment A - Gov. Code § 84308)

SUBJECT: ..title

Receive Information on Amendment No. 1 A4650A with Vasquez & Company LLP for performing the
audit of the FY2022, FY2023, & FY2024 financial statements (with option to extend two additional
years), to increase the fee from $368,205 by $398,586 for a total revised Not-to-Exceed Fee of

$766,791.

RECOMMENDATION:
Receive information on Amendment No. 1 to Agreement No. A4650A with Vasquez & Company LLP for
performing the audit of the FY2022, FY2023, & FY2024 financial statements (with option to extend
two additional years), to increase the three-year agreement fee from $214,436 by $221,000 for a total
revised Not-to-exceed Fee of $435,436. To increase the two-year option fee from $153,769 by
$177,586 for a revised total fee of $331,355, increasing the total amount from $368,205 by $398,586
for a total revised Not-to-Exceed Fee of $766,791 for five years.

SUMMARY:
Execution of Amendment No. 1 will result in an increase of the Agreement not-to-exceed amount
from $368,205 by $398,586 for a total revised Not-to-Exceed Fee of $766,791.

Approval of the recommended action will allow the Consultant to continue to audit Santa Clara Valley
Water District’s (Valley Water) financial statements for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2022, 2023
and 2024 (with the option to extend two additional years) in conformance with: (1) State law
(Governmental Code Section 26909) that requires an annual examination and audit of the Santa
Clara Valley Water District's financial records to be performed by an independent qualified certified
public accountant; (2) the Single Audit Act of 1984, as amended on 2003 (the Act) that requires state
and local governments to have a single audit according to the Act if they receive Federal financial
assistance of $750,000 or more; (3) the Board policy BL-5.5 Monitoring BAO Performance under the
category of Board-CEO Linkage sets forth under Financial Condition and Activities; and (4) Executive
limitation 4.3 which ensures that actual revenues and expenditures are within projected revenues and
expenses and the separation of capital and operational items.

Santa Clara Valley Water District Printed on 10/12/2023Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™99

http://www.legistar.com/


File No.: 23-1104 Agenda Date: 10/18/2023
Item No.: 4.2.

The rationale for the increase in the Not-to-Exceed fee is due to the following factors:
1. The audit work to be performed for Valley Water is more complex than originally estimated,

requiring more auditor time to complete the required work (Note that the auditors spent 1,000
hours above the estimated budget for the FY 22 audit to complete all the required tasks and
address additional risks identified during the audit.  Some of the additional risks included
concerns raised by the board, such as area expense allocations);

2. Unforeseen procedures related to leases, debt compliance, IT related matters, and other
areas require additional auditor time versus the original estimate;

3. The impact of recent high inflation has caused the need for large salary increases at Vasquez
& Company LLP to retain employees, which in turn has caused the cost to complete the audit
work to be higher than the original estimate. The CPA industry recently experienced an over
30% across the board compensation increase due to shortages of labor across the U.S.A.

For these reasons, Vasquez & Company LLP has indicated that it cannot continue to perform the
required audit work without the fee increase, because doing so would cause an untenable financial
loss. If Vasquez & Company LLP cannot continue to perform the required work for the recently
completed fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, Valley Water would be in the untenable position of not
being able to produce the FY 23 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) on time in violation
of state law and various debt related covenants. Note that the audit work for the FY 23 ACFR began
in July 2023, and there is not enough time to replace the financial auditor and complete the audit
work to deliver the final FY 23 ACFR by January 2024.

Staff is planning to recommend that the full Board approve Amendment No. 1 to Agreement No.
A4650A to enable Vasquez & Company LLP to continue to provide financial audit services for the
fiscal years ending June 30, 2022, 2023 and 2024 (with the option to extend for two additional years).
Note that approval of this amendment would authorize additional billing from Vasquez & Company
LLP for work performed on the FY 22 audit that had not been billed previously due to the prior Not-To
-Exceed fee limitation.

ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE IMPACT:
There are no Environmental Justice impacts associated with this item.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment A:  Gov. Code § 84308, Vasquez & Company LLP
Attachment 1: Amendment No. 1 to Agreement A4650A

UNCLASSIFIED MANAGER:
Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068

Santa Clara Valley Water District Printed on 10/12/2023Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™100

http://www.legistar.com/


Attachment A – Government Code § 84308 
Vasquez & Company LLP. (A4650A-VW0125), Amendment No. 1 
Ver: 9/19/23 

Attachment A 
Government Code §84308 

Approve Amendment No. 1 to Agreement No. A4650A, with VASQUEZ & COMPANY 
LLP, to provide FY2022, FY2023, and FY2024 Financial Statements, Project No. 
60111002, PB File No. VW0125, Increasing the from $368,205 by $398,586 for a total 
revised Fee Not-to-Exceed $766,791. 

List of Parties and Their Agents/Representatives Known to Staff 

Organization 
Name 

Name Role Location 

Vasquez & 
Company LLP 

Roger A. 
Martinez 

Partner, Audit 
Practice Leader 

655 North Central Ave., 
Suite 1550 
Glendale, CA 91203 

List of Participants and Their Agents/Representatives Known to Staff 

Organization 
Name 

Name Role Location 

N/A - - - 

Attachment A 
Page 1 of 1101



102



AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT A4650A 
BETWEEN THE SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

AND VASQUEZ & COMPANY LLP 

Amendment No. 1 to Agreement No. A4650Aa Agreement No. A4650A / PB File No. VW0125 
Financial Audit Services for FY2022, FY2023, & FY2024 
Standard Consultant Agreement-Admin-GEN 
Ver. 10/11/23  

This Amendment No. 1 (Amendment), effective as of the date it is fully executed by the Parties, 
amends the terms and conditions of the Standard On-Call Consultant Agreement A4650A 
(Agreement) dated July 12, 2022, between SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
(District or Valley Water) and VASQUEZ & COMPANY LLP, (Consultant), collectively, the 
Parties. 

  RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Consultant is currently providing professional auditing services for the Valley 
Water's FY2022, FY2023, and FY2024 Financial Statements Project;  

WHEREAS, the Agreement currently expires on July 12, 2025; 

WHEREAS,  in the course of the FY 2022 Audit, Valley Water asked consultant to perform tasks 
outside of the specific Scope of Services, which increased the number of hours Consultant 
required to complete that audit; 

WHEREAS, during the course of the FY 2022 Audit, Valley Water underwent a change in its 
software from PeopleSoft to Infor which unexpectedly increased the amount of time required by 
Consultant to complete the FY 2022 Audit, and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Agreement to increase the hourly rates for all but 
the FY 2022 audit and increase the not-to-exceed fees to allow Consultant to continue providing 
professional auditing services for the Valley Water FY2022, FY2023, and FY2024 Financial 
Statements Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements stated herein 
and notwithstanding anything to the contrary stated in the Agreement District's and Consultant 
hereby agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 

1. Standard On-Call Consultant Agreement, Section Twelve, Miscellaneous Provisions,
subsection 23. Schedule(s) and Attachments, is amended to state as follows:

“23. Schedules and Attachments. Schedule OC, Scope of Services, and the following listed
Attachments are incorporated herein by this reference as though set forth in full:

Revised Attachment One – Fees and Payments (REVISED)
Attachment Two – Schedule of Completion (UNCHANGED)
Attachment Three – Consultant’s Key Staff and Subconsultants (UNCHANGED)
Attachment Four – Reference Materials (UNCHANGED).”

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

Attachment 1 
Page 1 of 5103



AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT A4650A 
BETWEEN THE SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

AND VASQUEZ & COMPANY LLP 

Amendment No. 1 to Agreement No. A4650Aa Agreement No. A4650A / PB File No. VW0125 
Financial Audit Services for FY2022, FY2023, & FY2024 
Standard Consultant Agreement-Admin-GEN 
Ver. 10/11/23  

2. Revised Attachment One to Schedule OC, Fees and Payments, Section 1., 2. and 3. are
amended to state as follows:

“1. Total Authorized Funding (REVISED)

Total payment for Services performed, to the satisfaction of Valley Water, as described in
the Schedule(s) will not exceed a total amount of $766,791 (Not-to-Exceed or NTE). The
NTE includes $435,436 for the FY 2022-FY 2024 audits and two (2) optional one (1) year
extensions of $163,379 and $167,976 respectively to perform the FY 2025 and FY 2026
audits. Under no conditions will the total compensation to Consultant exceed NTE Fee
payment amount without prior written approval in the form of an amendment to this
Agreement executed by Valley Water’s Board of Directors (Board), or Chief Executive
Officer, or designee, as authorized by the Board.

2. Cost Breakdown (REVISED)
The NTE compensation of this Agreement consists of the following task fee breakdown.
No Services will be performed or fees paid by Valley Water to Consultant for
Supplemental Services without prior written authorization by Valley Water as stated in
this Agreement.

1 Year 
Extension 

1 Year 
Extension 

Task Description 
Amendment 
No. 1 FY2022 

Audit 
FY2023 
Audit 

FY2024 
Audit 

FY2025 
Audit 

FY2026 
Audit 

1 Financial Statement 
Audit2 $81,700 $116,968 $120,477 $124,091 $127,814 

2 Water Utility Enterprise 
Fund Audit (NEW)2 $13,400 $15,400 $15,862 $16,338 $16,828 

3 Treasurer’s Report3 $800 $1,776 $1,829 $1,884 $1,940 

4 Appropriation Limit 
Report3 

$800 $1,776 $1,829 $1,884 $1,940 

5 Advanced Water Utility3 $2,000 $4,440 $4,573 $4,710 $4,851 

6 
Compensation and 
Benefit Compliance 
Report3 

- $1,724 - $1,829 - 

7 

Travel Expenses 
Reimbursement 
Process and 
Procedures3 

$800 - $1,490 - $1,581 

8 Supplemental/Other Services: 

8.1 Single Audit 
(Moved from Task 2)3 

$5000 $7,700 $7,931 $8,169 $8,414 

8.2 Implementation of 
GASB 87 (NEW) 

$3,200 $2,000 $2,060 $2,122 $2,185 

8.3 Debt Compliance letter 
(NEW) 

$4,000 $2,217 $2,284 $2,352 $2,423 

Attachment 1 
Page 2 of 5104



AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT A4650A 
BETWEEN THE SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

AND VASQUEZ & COMPANY LLP 

Amendment No. 1 to Agreement No. A4650Aa Agreement No. A4650A / PB File No. VW0125 
Financial Audit Services for FY2022, FY2023, & FY2024 
Standard Consultant Agreement-Admin-GEN 
Ver. 10/11/23  

1 Year 
Extension 

1 Year 
Extension 

Task Description 
Amendment 
No. 1 FY2022 

Audit 
FY2023 
Audit 

FY2024 
Audit 

FY2025 
Audit 

FY2026 
Audit 

8.4 

Change of system 
during the year 
(transition to new 
accounting software) 
(NEW) 

$9,400 - - - - 

8.5 Other services (to be 
determined) (NEW) 

$2,000 - - - - 

Yearly Total Not-To-Exceed $123,100 $154,001 $158,335 $163,379 $167,976 
Three-Year Total Not-To-

Exceed $435,436 
Total Option Year Term $331,355 

Total Not-To-Exceed, including Option Years $766,791 
Note: 
1. Audit work for a particular fiscal year-end always occurs in the following fiscal year.
2. Total NTE for FY22 thru FY26 revised.
3. Total NTE for FY23 thru FY26 revised.

3. Terms and Conditions (REVISED)

A. Payments for Services performed, as described in each Task Order, which applies to the
specific Services, will be based on the following terms:

1) Valley Water will pay for Services provided by the Consultant according to the rates
for professional, technical, and administrative personnel, as well as materials and
supplies as listed below in the Hourly/Unit Rate Schedule.

2) The stated hourly rates for the FY 2022- FY 2026 Audits are effective the term of this
Agreement unless otherwise revised as indicated.

A. Reimbursable Expenses (UNCHANGED)

1) All reimbursable expenses not already covered in overhead may include, but are not
limited to, mapping, rendering, printouts, leased equipment, mailing and delivery
services, printing services, film and processing, plotting, and supplies. These other
direct expenses as approved by Valley Water Project Manager (VWPM) will be billed
on a monthly basis at actual cost linked to each Agreement Task, provided that the
Task total NTE amount is not exceeded. Consultant shall provide receipts for each
other direct expense item(s) with monthly invoices submitted.

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

Attachment 1 
Page 3 of 5105



AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT A4650A 
BETWEEN THE SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

AND VASQUEZ & COMPANY LLP 

Amendment No. 1 to Agreement No. A4650Aa Agreement No. A4650A / PB File No. VW0125 
Financial Audit Services for FY2022, FY2023, & FY2024 
Standard Consultant Agreement-Admin-GEN 
Ver. 10/11/23  

2) Equipment purchased on behalf of Valley Water that costs $50 or more must receive
the prior written approval of Valley Water Project Manager (VWPM). All equipment
purchased on behalf of Valley Water and paid for by Valley Water shall become the
property of Valley Water and be delivered to Valley Water prior to expiration of this
Agreement.

3) Travel expenses are reimbursed at actual cost. Travel and overnight
accommodations, including per diem, required for performance of this Agreement will
be paid at reasonable cost not to exceed the U.S. General Services Agency Per
Diem Rates for Sunnyvale/Palo Alto/San Jose, California area, provided prior
approval has been obtained from Valley Water Project Manager (VWPM). For air
travel, Valley Water will pay the cost of a coach class or equivalent ticket. Where air
travel is required, Valley Water will pay the total cost of taxi, rideshare, public
transportation, or a rental car, which may include insurance, gas, car fee, and taxes
and will be paid at the actual costs incurred. Vehicle rental is limited to a compact or
economy model, unless prior approval has been obtained from Valley Water Project
Manager (VWPM) for a different type of vehicle.

4) Expenses incurred by the Consultant for Subconsultants, subcontractors and
vendors, including lab services, will be reimbursed at actual cost. Consultant shall
provide invoices for all such services regardless of cost.

HOURLY/UNIT RATE TABLE (REVISED) 

1 Year 
Extension 

1 Year 
Extension 

Role FY2022 
Audit 

FY2023 
Audit 

FY2024 
Audit 

FY2025 
Audit 

FY2026 
Audit 

Partner $325 $375 $386  $398 $410 
Director $250 $300  $309  $318  $328 
Manager $200 $225  $232  $239 $246 
Supervisor $175 $200  $206  $212  $219 

Senior $150 $175  $180  $186  $191 

Staff $120 $140  $144  $149  $153 

3. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement A4650A, and Amendment No. 1 not
otherwise amended as stated herein remain in full force and effect.

(SIGNATURES FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE) 

Attachment 1 
Page 4 of 5106



AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT A4650A 
BETWEEN THE SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

AND VASQUEZ & COMPANY LLP 

Amendment No. 1 to Agreement No. A4650Aa Agreement No. A4650A / PB File No. VW0125 
Financial Audit Services for FY2022, FY2023, & FY2024 
Standard Consultant Agreement-Admin-GEN 
Ver. 10/11/23  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE SET FORTH BELOW THEIR CONSENT TO 
THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT A4650A 
THROUGH THE SIGNATURES OF THEIR DULY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES. 

SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Valley Water 

VASQUEZ & COMPANY LLP 
Consultant 

By: By: 
John L. Varela Roger A. Martinez 
Board of Directors Partner, Audit Practice Leader 

Date: Date: 

ATTEST: Consultant’s Address: 
655 North Central Ave., Suite 1550 
Glendale, CA 91203 

Michele L. King, CMC 
Clerk, Board of Directors 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

Attachment 1 
Page 5 of 5107



108



Santa Clara Valley Water District

File No.: 23-0901 Agenda Date: 10/18/2023
Item No.: 4.3.

COMMITTEE AGENDA MEMORANDUM
Board Audit Committee

Government Code § 84308 Applies:  Yes ☐   No ☒
(If “YES” Complete Attachment A - Gov. Code § 84308)

SUBJECT: ..title

Review and Discuss the 2023 Board Audit Committee (BAC) Work Plan.

RECOMMENDATION:
Review and discuss topics of interest raised at prior BAC meetings and make any necessary
adjustments to the 2023 BAC Work Plan.

SUMMARY:
Per the BAC’s Charter, Article III, Paragraph 6.2, “The Committee shall, in coordination with Valley
Water’s Clerk of the Board, develop a proposed Annual Work Plan. Items shall be included in the
Annual Work Plan based upon a majority vote of the Committee.”

Under direction of the Clerk, Work Plans are used by all Board Committees to increase Committee
efficiency, provide increased public notice of intended Committee discussions, and enable improved
follow-up by staff. Work Plans are dynamic documents managed by Committee Chairs and are
subject to change.

Per the discussion at the June 21st BAC meeting, staff added a topic to the September 20, 2023,
BAC meeting agenda regarding a review and discussion of audit requirements pertaining to JPA
Agreements (new item #38). At the September 20, 2023 BAC meeting, staff was asked to bring back
the topic regarding JPA Agreements to the November BAC meeting. These changes have been
captured in the BAC Work Plan (Attachment 1).

Looking forward, the topics of discussion identified for the November 15, 2023, BAC Meeting can be
summarized as follows:

1. 2023 BAC Work Plan
2. 2023 Risk Assessment Final Report
3. Review Draft Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023
4. Quarterly Financial Status Update for Q1 of Fiscal Year 2023/2024 (FY24)

Santa Clara Valley Water District Printed on 10/12/2023Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™109

http://www.legistar.com/


File No.: 23-0901 Agenda Date: 10/18/2023
Item No.: 4.3.

5. BAC Authority regarding Joint Powers Authority (JPA) Agreements

Attachment 1 is the 2023 BAC Work Plan. Upon review, the BAC may make changes to be
incorporated into the work plan.

ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE IMPACT:
There are no Environmental Justice impacts associated with this item.  The Board Audit Committee
Work Plan serves as a tool utilized by the BAC to identify topics to be discussed during the public
meeting and when that topic may be presented.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1: BAC Work Plan

UNCLASSIFIED MANAGER:
Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068

Santa Clara Valley Water District Printed on 10/12/2023Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™110

http://www.legistar.com/


20-Jan 15-Feb 15-Mar 19-Apr 15-May 21-Jun Recess 16-Aug 20-Sep 18-Oct 15-Nov 20-Dec
Board Audit Committee Meeting Dates

Number of Agenda Items per Meeting 
Date

6 6 4 3 6 7 0 8 5 2 5 2
Note: For informational purposes only.  This value excludes Item 12 
because that items is prepared by the Committee Clerk, not the CI Team, 
and is for the Full Board, not just the BAC.

Meeting Dates • • • • • • • • • • • Note: The BAC approved a regular meeting schedule for 2023, to meet 
monthly, on the third Wednesdays at 2:00 p.m.

Board Audit Committee Management

1 Election of 2023 BAC Chair and Vice Chair •
Recommendation:
Nominate and elect the 2023 Board Audit Committee Chair and Vice 
Chair.

2 Board Audit Committee Audit Charter • •

Recommendation:
Propose modifications to the Board Audit Committee Audit Charter to be 
presented to the full Board.

NOTE:  This is an "as needed" topic

3 Review and Update 2023 BAC Work Plan • • • • • • • • • • •

Recommendation:
A. Review and Discuss topics of interest raised at prior Board Audit 
Committee Meetings and make any necessary adjustments to the Board
Audit Committee Work Plan; and
B. Approve the updated 2023 Board Audit Committee Work Plan.

4 Discuss Scope of Annual Audit Training 
from Board Independent Auditor

• Recommendation:
Discuss scope of Annual Audit Training from Board Independent Auditor.

5 Receive Annual Audit Training from Board 
Independent Auditor

•

Recommendation:
Receive Annual Audit Training from Board Independent Auditor.

Notes:
Training will be conducted by the Chief Audit Executive during the regular 
September BAC Meeting

6 Conduct Annual Self-Evaluation • •

Jan. Recommendation:
A. Discuss Annual Self-Evaluation Process; and 
B. Authorize Staff to initiate the process and return to BAC with results at a later date

Feb. Recommendation:
A. Receive and Discuss the Results of the Annual Self-Evaluation Discussions; and
B. Authorize staff to Prepare Formal Report and Present to the full Board.

Note:
Jan = Discuss the Eval process and alert BAC to upcoming interviews; Feb = Discuss results of 
interviews and seek authorization to present to the full Board; Apr = Present interview 
summary to Full Board

7 Receive and Discuss CAE Activity Report to 
Evaluate Auditor Performance

• •

Jan. Recommendation:
Request CAE Activity Report from Sjoberg Evashenk to evaluate CAE 
Performance.

Mar. Recommendation:
Receive and discuss the CAE Activity Report

Note:
Jan = BAC Requests report from CAE; Mar = Receive and discuss report 
from CAE

8

Discuss Extension or Termination of Board 
Chief Audit Executive (CAE) Contract for 
Board Independent Auditing Services Prior 
to Expiration of the Agreement around 
December 2024

Recommendation:
A. Discuss option to extend Board Independent Auditor Contract with 
TAP International, Inc. for Board Independent Auditing Services currently 
scheduled to expire effective June 30, 2022; and
B. Approve recommendation to the full Board to: 1. Allow the expiration
of the Board Independent Auditor Contract with TAP International; or 2. 
Exercise option to extend Board Independent Auditor Contract with TAP 
International, Inc.

Note:
Agreement effective date was 12/27/21 or 1/1/22.

9 Chief Audit Executive - Request for 
Proposal:  Review Panel (Apr 2024)

Note:
Review Panel for the role of the Chief Board Auditor will be the BAC 
members

10 Provide a Progress Update of the current 
Risk Assessment

• • • Recommendation: 
Receive a Progress Update for the 2023 Risk Assessment.

11 Provide Report on Tri-annual Risk 
Assessment  (CY 2023)

• •

Recommendation: 
Discuss the scope of work for the 2023 Risk Assessment.

Note:
Initiate discussions in February 2024; Deliverable due by September 
2024; At its 4/19/23 meeting the BAC authorized CAE to conduct risk 
assessment sooner than planned, in light of changed conditions following 
the Pandemic (tentative target 10/2023 for Draft and 11/2023 for Final)

Board Audit Committee Special Requests

12 External Financial Auditor Meeting with 
Individual Board members

Note: Schedule as needed.

13 Provide BAC Summary Report to full Board • • • • • • • • • • •
Note: Report to be provided to Board in non-agenda the month after 
each BAC meeting, or as part of the Board Committee Reports, prepared 
by Committee Clerk

Management and Third Party Audits

14 Review Draft Audited Financial Statements •

Recommendation: 
A. Review draft Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the Fiscal
Year Ended June 30, 2023; and 
B. Direct staff to have Financial Auditor to contact Board Members and
present, if necessary.

Note:  This is a Nov. agenda item

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE 2023 WORKPLAN
January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 NOTES/RECOMMENDATIONSACTIVITY/SUBJECTItem #

Note: The  •  denotes that an item is on the BAC meeting agenda for the corresponding month in which the  •  is listed. The shading represents that the items have been completed. 10/11/2023 - 9:04 AMAttachment 1 
Page 1 of 3111



20-Jan 15-Feb 15-Mar 19-Apr 15-May 21-Jun Recess 16-Aug 20-Sep 18-Oct 15-Nov 20-Dec

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE 2023 WORKPLAN
January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 NOTES/RECOMMENDATIONSACTIVITY/SUBJECTItem #

15 Audit Report of the Water Utility 
Enterprise Funds for the Fiscal Year

•
Recommendation:
Receive and Discuss the Audit Report of the Water Utility Enterprise 
Funds for the Fiscal Year.

16 Receive QEMS Annual Internal Audit 
Report

•
Recommendation:
Receive information regarding the Quality and Environmental 
Management System.

17 Audit Recommendations Implementation 
Status

• •

Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of audit 
recommendations.

Note:
This is a December/June item; February 2023 item was delayed from Dec 
2022;  Return to the BAC every 6 months - For the 2024 BAC work plan, 
we will return in February and August 2024.

18 Review and Update Annual Audit Work 
Plan

• • • • • • • Recommendation:
Discuss the Annual Audit Work Plan and update, if necessary.

Audit - 2019 Contract Change Order Audit

19
Recommendation Implementation Status 
(Annual Rpt. in August; Target Completion 
= TBD)

Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of audit 
recommendations.

Audit - 2020 District Counsel Audit

20
Recommendation Implementation Status 
(Annual Rpt. in January; Target 
Completion = TBD)

Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of audit 
recommendations.

Note:
This is a January item; February 2022 item was delayed from January; 
This effort was completed in 2022 and is closed.

Audit - 2020 Real Estate Audit

21
Recommendation Implementation Status 
(Annual Rpt. in November; Target 
Completion = TBD)

Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of audit 
recommendations.

Note:
Per the Febrauary BAC Update, this effort was completed in 2022 and is 
closed.

Audit - 2020 SCW Program Grants 
Management

22

Recommendation Implementation Status 
(Semi-Annual Rpt. in March and 
September; Target Completion = June 
30,2023)

•

Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of audit 
recommendations.

Note: 
Updates in 2022 slipped by 2 mos.

Audit - 2021 Permitting Best Practices

23
Recommendation Implementation Status 
(Annual Rpt. in May; Target Completion = 
TBD)

•
Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of audit 
recommendations.

Audit - 2023 CIP Performance Audit
24 Receive notification of initiated Audit Note: Audit Objectives - What is the objective of this audit?

25 Review Audit Progress Report • Recommendation:
Receive an update on the status of the on-going audit.

26 Review Audit Draft Report Presentation • Recommendation:
Receive and discuss the preliminary Draft Audit Report.

27 Review Management's Response to Audit 
Draft Report

Recommendation:
A. Receive and discuss the Management Response to the Draft Audit 
Report; and
B. Provide feedback to staff as appropriate.

28 Receive Final Report with Management's 
response and Audtor's comments

•
Recommendation:
A. Receive the Final Audit Report; and
B. Authorize staff to take the report to the full Board.

Audit - 2014 Transparency Compliance 
Audit

29
Recommendation Implementation Status 
(Annual Rpt. in November; Target 
Completion = TBD)

•

Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of audit 
recommendations.

NOTE:
January item was delayed from Nov/Dec 2022; Chief of Staff is waiting for 
the last set of metrics before taking to the Chiefs for a final approval of 
the Performance Measures

Audit - 2015 Consultant Contracts Audit

30

Status Update on the Implementation of 
Recommendations from the 2015 
Consultant Contracts Management 
Process Audit Conducted by Navigant 
Consulting, Inc. and the Consultant 
Contracts Improvement Process.

•

Note: Staff update every 6 months; January item was delayed from 
Nov/Dec 2022 by new Deputy (Tony Ndah) to allow him to get familiar 
with the issues, and to allow staff to complete the last of open 
recommendations

Recommendation:  Receive and discuss a status update on the 
implementation of the recommendations made by Navigant in the 2015 
Consultant Contracts Management Process Audit and on the Consultant 
Contracts Improvement Process.

This audit is complete; final report was provided in January 2023 
Audit - 2019 Lower Silver Creek Audit

Board Independent Auditor - Sjoberg Evashenk Items 

Management Audits - PMA, MGO, and 3rd Party Items

Note: The  •  denotes that an item is on the BAC meeting agenda for the corresponding month in which the  •  is listed. The shading represents that the items have been completed. 10/11/2023 - 9:04 AMAttachment 1 
Page 2 of 3112



20-Jan 15-Feb 15-Mar 19-Apr 15-May 21-Jun Recess 16-Aug 20-Sep 18-Oct 15-Nov 20-Dec

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE 2023 WORKPLAN
January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 NOTES/RECOMMENDATIONSACTIVITY/SUBJECTItem #

31
Recommendation Implementation Status 
(Semi Annual Rpt. in February; Delayed to 
September)

Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the implementation of audit 
recommendations.

2022 QEMS Improvements 
Implementation

32 Recommendation Implementation Status 
(Annual Rpt. in August)

•
Recommendation:
Receive and discuss a status update on the opportunities for 
improvement.

33 Financial Status - Quarterly Update • • • •
Note: suggested frequency is as follows:  February for mid-year review; 
May for Q3 review; September for unaudited close; November for Q1 
review

34 Financial Audit - Periodic Update •

Schedule as needed

Recommendation: 
Discuss the Financial Audit

35 Board's Auditor Pool RFP Status Update

Schedule as needed

Recommendation: 
Receive a status update regarding the Request for Proposal (RFP) for 
Board Auditing Services

36
Process to report on implementation of 
audit recommendations, and to close 
Board-directed audits 

•

Stand-alone Topic

Recommendation:
Discuss process roles and responsibilities related to reporting on 
implementation of audit recommendations and closing Board-directed 
audits.

37 Threat to Public Services or Facilities •
CLOSED SESSION:
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(a)
Consultation with Alex Gordon, Assistant Officer

38 BAC Authority as it relates to Joint Powers 
Authority agreements (JPAs)

• • Stand-alone Topic

Miscellaneous BAC Work Plan Items

Note: The  •  denotes that an item is on the BAC meeting agenda for the corresponding month in which the  •  is listed. The shading represents that the items have been completed. 10/11/2023 - 9:04 AMAttachment 1 
Page 3 of 3113



114


	0000_Agenda
	Page blank
	0001_0_Board Agenda Memo
	Page blank
	0001_1_Attachment 1 092023 BAC Minutes
	REGULAR MEETING SESSION
	1. CALL TO ORDER:
	2. TIME OPEN FOR PUBLIC COMMENT ON ANY ITEM NOT ON THE AGENDA:
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
	4. REGULAR AGENDA:
	5.       CLERK REVIEW AND CLARIFICATION OF COMMITTEE REQUESTS:
	6.       Adjourn:

	0002_0_Board Agenda Memo
	0002_1_Attachment 1 2023 Risk Assessment Draft Report
	0002_2_Attachment 2 PowerPoint
	Santa Clara �Valley Water District��Districtwide Risk Assessment��Draft Report��October 18, 2023� BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE
	Project Objectives
	Project Approach
	Project Approach (cont’d)
	Project Approach (Cont’d)
	Agency-Wide Risk Ratings
	Slide Number 7

	0003_0_Board Agenda Memo
	0003_1_Attachment A Gov. Code § 84308, Vasquez Company LLP
	0003_2_Attachment 1 Amendment No. 1 to Agreement A4650A
	0004_0_Board Agenda Memo
	0004_1_Attachment 1 BAC Work Plan
	Sheet1




